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CERTIFICATE OF RESALE

(Use only for Condominium Projects of 7 or more units)

RESALE CERTIFICATES ARE NOT TO BE USED BY TITLE COMPANIES FOR
SETTLEMENT INFORMATION. TITLE COMPANIES MUST CONTACT THE ABARIS
REALTY ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE DEPARTMENT VIA EMAIL FOR ACCURATE
SETTLEMENT INFORMATION.

To: Council of Unit Owners
Condominium Project: Potomac Oaks Condominium
Address of Unit: 760 Quince Orchard Blvd. #102

Gaithersburg, MD 20878

Unit Owner(s): Anthony Malek

Section 11-135(c) of the Maryland Condominium Act requires that effective July 1, 1982; the
Council of Unit Owners must provide the following information within twenty (20) days after
receipt of request by the unit owner. The undersigned unit owner(s) of the above described
unit request that you provide this information. A reasonable fee, if any, not to exceed the cost
to the Council of Unit Owners for providing this information, is enclosed herewith. If you have
your own form for this certificate, which complies with the statute, as amended on July 1, 1982,
then please provide certificate in lieu of completing this form.

(Signature) Unit Owner/Seller (Signature) Unit Owner/Seller

Pursuant to Section 11-135(a) of the Maryland Condominium Act, the following certificate is
provided for the benefit of the above described unit owner and purchaser(s) thereof, and
reflects the herein stated information as of the date indicated below:

1. Right of First Refusal: The effect on the proposed conveyance of any right of first
refusal or other restraint on the free alienability of the unit, other than any restraint
created by the unit owner, is: There is NO right of first refusal in the condominium's
declaration or bylaws.

2. Common Expense/General Assessment: The amount of the monthly common
expense assessment is: Condo Fee $371.00, Utility (Electric, Gas and Water)
$302.00, Replacement Reserve $181.00, Special Assessment $53.00. Monthly total
of $907.00
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3. Other Fees: The amount of any other fees payable by the unit owners to the Council of
Unit Owners is: none to the best of our knowledge

4. Unpaid Assessments: The amount of any unpaid common expense and special
assessment adopted by the council of unit owners that is due and payable from the
selling unit owner is: $440.00 as of today’s date.

5. Unbudgeted, Approved Capital Expenditures: Capital expenditures approved by the
Council of Unit Owners planned at the time of conveyance (estimated to be six months
from the date hereof) which are not reflected in the current operating budget disclosed
under item 5 are: none to the best of our knowledge.

6. Balance Sheet and Income Statement: Attached hereto is a copy of the most recent
regularly prepared balance sheet and income and expense statement of the
condominium.

7. Budget and Reserve Study: Attached hereto is a copy of the current operating budget
of the condominium including details concerning the reserve fund for repair and
replacement and its intended use, or a statement that there is no reserve fund.

8. Outstanding Judgements and Pending Lawsuits: The following judgments against
the condominium remain unpaid and unsatisfied: none to the best of our knowledge.
The existence of any pending suits to which the Council of Unit Owners is a party: none
to the best of our knowledge.

9. Insurance Policies: Any insurance policies provided for the benefit of unit owners are
described below: (Terms if the policy prevails over the descriptions.) A description of the
various insurance policies is attached.

PROPERTY INSURANCE DEDUCTIBLE DISCLOSURE: The condominium maintains
property insurance, and the deductible under the property insurance is: $25,000.00. If
the damage originates in a Unit, the owner of that Unit is responsible for the payment of
the deductible under the Association's property insurance policy, up to $25,000. Copies
of the policies are available for inspection at the following location: Martens-Johnson
Insurance (o) 301-231-5447, (1).

10. Known Violations: The Council of Unit Owners has no knowledge that any alteration or
improvement to the above described unit or to the limited common elements assigned
to the unit violates any provision of the Master Deed, Declaration, Bylaws, or Rules and
Regulations, except for: none to the best of our knowledge.
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11. Known Violations of Health and Building Code: The Council of Unit Owners has no
knowledge of any current violation of the health or building codes with respect to the
above described unit, the limited common elements assigned to the unit, or any other
portion of the condominium, except for: none to the best of our knowledge.

12. Leasehold Estate: The remaining term of any leasehold estate affecting the
condominium and the provisions governing any extension of renewal thereof are: none
to the best of our knowledge.

(Black's Law Dictionary defines “leasehold” as an estate (interest) in realty held under a
lease. The existence of a ground rent on the land would usually indicate that the land
itself is leasehold.)

13.  Recreational Facilities: The following is a description of any recreational or other
facilities which are to be used by the unit owners or maintained by them or the Council
of Unit Owners: swimming pool and club house. These facilities are part of the
common elements, except: none.

14.  Move-In Fees: The Association charges for every move-in, whether owner or renter, a
move-in of $300.00 must be collected at the time of settlement.

June 6, 2019
Date

Please notify Abaris Realty, Inc. when settiement is complete. This will help expedite
updating records for the new unit owners.

Resale Certificates are only valid for thirty (30) days from the date on the Certificate.
Subsequent Resale Certificates are available for $75.00 excluding documents
previously received.
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UECLARATION
DIAMOND PARMS CONDOMINIUM

TS DECLARATION, made and entered into thisIvtday ofxaanafu e,
1981, by DIAMOND FARMS ASSOCIATLS, INC,, o Deluware corporation (hereinafier
and in the cxhibits attached hereto ealled the *Deetarant).

WHEREAS, the Declarant is the owner in fee simple of cortain jnnd and premises
and the buildings constructed or to be constructed thercon and all’ appurtenances
thereto (hereinafter calied the "Property™ loeated in Montgomery County, State of
Maryland, nnd more particularly deseribed on Exhibit "AY, stinched hereto and made a
purt hercof; and,

WHEREAS, the Declurant desires to establish a Condominfum pursuant to Real
property Article, Title 11, Section 11-101, ¢t scq., of the Annotated Code of Maryland
(1974) (hereinafter called the MAet™), and it is the desire and intention of the Declurant
Lo divide the Property into condominium unils and to scll and convey the same subject
to the covenants, restrictions, uses, linitutions, obligations, cusements, equitable sorvi-
tudes, charges and liens hereinafier set forth, each of whieh fis for the benefit of the
Property and the owners thereof from titne to time; und,

WHEREAS, prior to the recordation hereof the Deelarant has filed for record in
e Office of the Clerk of the Cirenit Court for Monlgomnery County, Maryland, a
certlain "Plat of Diamond Farms Condominium® {hercinnfter referred to as the "Condo-
mimium Plat"), which Condominitm Plat {consisting of i 8y (131 ) sheets)
is recorded in Condomininm Plat Book 22> , 8t Plut M, el seq.iand,

WHEREAS, the Declarant hereby desives und intends by the recordation of this
Deeluration 1o submit the Property and all appuricnances thereto Lo the provisions of

the Actl. J1Se. 27200
S%BT%T Al Jg; gg
ARTICLE ) CHEC ) 397, 0

DEFINITIONS B43708 218 R%cfég.g(}

Unless the context shall pluinly require othervise, the following words when used
in this Declurution and/or any and all exhibits nttached hereto shall have the Tollowing
meanings: :

(a) "Common EBlements" means all of the Property other than Units, and_
includes both General Comimon Llements and Limited Common Elements, as defined in
Article 1l hereof, :

{b) "Condominium" meuns the Property having the status of a "Condo-
minium® pursuant to and as defined in the Act.

‘D
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{c)  “"Council of Unil Owners” mcans the unincorporated entily comprised
of all Unit owners.

(@) "DPeelarant” shall mean and refer to Bismond Farms Associales, Inc.,
and s successors and gssigns to whom the special rights, reservations, casements,
interests, excmptions, privileges and powers of the Declarant are speeificnlly assigned
or transferred in writing. )

() “Eligible Mortguge Holder® mneuns a holder of a first morlgage on o
Unit who has requested notice from the Couneil of Unit Owners of amondments to the
Condominium documents or other significant matters which would af{feet the interests
of the Mortgugee.

(0 "percentnge Interest" meuns the undivided interest of ench Unit
owner, as set for(h on Lxhibit "DY, with respeet to Common Elements of the Condo-
mintum.and the Common Profits and Cominon Expenses of the Council of Unit Owners.

(g) “Unit* menans a three-dimensional aren, #s described below and as
shown on the Condominitun Plat, and includes gll improvements conlained within the
aren excepl such as are expressly excluded in this Declaration or on the Condominitun
Pint, ‘The lower boundary of sueh Unit is a horizontal plane {or plaes), the elevation of
which coincides with the clevation of the upper surface ol the unfinished subfloor
thereof extended to intersect the luteral or perimetrienl boundarios thercof. The upper
boundary of any such Unit is a harizontal plane (or planes), the elevation of which coin-
cidos with the top surface of the plasterboard of the uppermost ceiling in the Unit,
extended to interscet the lateral or perimetrical boundaries thereofl. ‘The laterul or .
perimetrical boundaries of any such Unit is a vertical plane (or planes) which coincide
with the outerinost surfuces of the perimeter plasterboard walls thereof, including win-
dows aud doors thereof, extended to interseet the upper and lower horizontal boundaries
thereof and to intersect the other Interal or perimelrical boundaries of the Unit.
Unless otherwise designated herein and/or on the Condominium Plat as u Common
Element, mechanical cquipment and appurtenunees located within or without any Unit
and desimnated to serve anly that Unit, sueh as pipes, wires, cables, conduits, electrical
receptacles and outlets, ducts, flucs, chutes, appliances, range hoods, fixtures, and the
like, shinll be considered o part of the Unit. .

(Y "Unit owner® menns any person, group of persons, corporntion, trust or
other legul entity, or any combination thercof, which owns & Unit; provided, however,
that any person, group of persons, corporation, trust or other legal entity, or any
combination thereof, which holds sueh interest solely as security for the performance of
an obligation shall not be a Unit owner solely by reason of sueh inlerest. :

ARTICLE 11
CREATION OF CONDOMINIUM REGIME

Scction 1. Submission of Property to the Act. The Property and all appurten-
nnees therclo shall be heid, conveyed, divided or subdivided, leased, rented and oceu-
pied, improved, hypothecated and/or cncumbered stbject o the Act and the covenants,
restrictions, uses, limitlations, obligntions, casements, equitable serviludes, chargus and
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liens {hercinafter sometimes referred to as "Covenunts and Restrietions™ herein set
forth, including the provisions of the bylnws of the Council of Unil Owuers of Diamond
Farms Condominium {a copy of which is atlached hereto and made o part hereof as
Exhibit "6"), all of wlich are deelured and ugreed to be in aid of a plan for the division
of he Droperty into a Condominium pursuant Lo the Act, and all of which shall be
deemed Lo run with and bind the land, and shall inure to the benefit of und be cn-
foreenble by the Deelarent and by any person acquiring or owning an interest in the
Property, including, withoul limitation, any person, group of persous, eorporation, trust
or other entity, or any combination thercof, which holds such Interest solely as security
for the performance of an obligation; provided, however, that the specinl rights, re-
strictions, cascments, inlerests, cxemptions, privileges, and powers of the Deelarant
shall inure Lo the benefit of and be enforceable by only thosc suecessors and assigns of
the Declarant to whom any of the same have been specifically ussigned or transferred
in writing. - -

Scetion 2. Deseription of the Units. The general deseription and number of cach
Unit, including its ares, Toenlion and such other data us may be necessary or appro-
printe for its identificution, is set forth on the Condominium Plat, which Condominium
Plat is annexed heroto as Exhibit *C {und by this refarence is made a part hereof).

Seetion 3. Nune of Condominium. ‘The name by which the Cendominium shall be
known is "Diamond Farms Condominium.”

ARTICLE Il
COMMON ELEMENTS

Scetion 1. General Commou Elements, ‘The General Common Elements means all
of the Cammon Elements exeept Litmiled Common Elements, and shatl {uniess otherwise
specifically designated hercin or on the Condominium Plat), include the following:

(W ‘the Property (other than Units); and,

() the foundation(s), bearing walls, perimeter walls, main walls, roofs,
purking nreas, landsenping, nalis, hullways, columns, girders, benins, supports, corridors,
stairways, und entrances and cxits or communication ways; nnd,

(e) 'The lnundry rooms, boiler rooms and roof(s); and,
{d) ‘The components or installations of central services such as power,
light, gas, waler, sewer, telephone, master antennae, including tanks, pumps, moiors,

fans, compressors, pipes, valves, controls or other siinilar equipment to be used in
common {uinless designated to serve only onc Unit); and,

{c)  All Units which may nerealter be aequired and held by the Couneil of
Unit Owners on behalf of all Unit owners.

(f) Al reercational facilitics, {ncluding swimnming pool, tennis courts and
clubhouse. .. -

-]
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(g} All other clements of common use or nceessary 1o ils oxistence,
upkeep und/or saflety., :

Scetion 2. Limited Counnon Elements, The Limited Common Elements include
those designated as suclh on the Condominium Plat, « All areas desiginuted as Limited
Coimmon Llements are reserved for the exclusive use of the Unit owner{s) of the Unit(s)
o which they ure declared to be uppurtenant by approprinte designation on the Con-
dominium Plol. I no sueh designation is made on the Condominium Plat, thén the
Limiled Common Elements shall be decmed Lo be appurtennnt to Unit(s) to which they
are ndjacent or which they rationally are designed andjor arc intended to serve and
Lenefil. The right of the Unit owner(s) to whose Unit{s) the Limited Common’ Elements
are uppurtenant to use and enjoy the sume shall be subjeel to such reasonable rules and .
“regulalions ps the Board of Directors of the Council of Unit Owners may {romn lime to -
time cnact. - . L R ’

ARTICLE IV
PERCENTAGE INTEREST AND VOTING WIGHTS

Each Unit shall huve the saine incidents as reul property, and the Unit owner shall
hold the same in fee simple and shall have a cammon right to a share with the other
Unlt owners of an undivided fee simple interest in the Common Elements, which shall
be knows us the "Percentage Interest in the Common Elements". The Percenlage
Interest in the Common Elements appertaining to eaeh Unil is set forth on Exhibit "D™
Also sel forth on Exhibit D" is the Percentage Interest of eaeh Unit owner in the
Common Profits and Common Expenses of the Council of Unit Owners and the vote of
cach Unit owner in the Council of Unit Owners, there being a total of one hundred (100)
votes. Lxcepl ns otherwise speeifically provided in this Declaration, ihe Percentuge
Interests heretofore deseribed and votes herein established shall not be changed without
the unanimous consent of ull of the Unit owners and the wortgagees {(ns defined in the
Act) evidenced by an approprinte amendnent to this Declaration recorded aimong the
Land Records of Monigamery County, Maryland; shatl not be separnted from the Unit to
witich they nppertaing and shall be deemed conveyed or encumbered with the Unit even
though such Pereentage Interests and/or voles are not expressly mentioned or deseribed
in the conveying deed or othier instrument, Subjeet to the provisions of the bylaws of
the Council of Unit Owners, and the Decluration, n Unit owner may, pursuant o and in
necordanee with Section N-107{d) of the Aet, grant n part of his Unit to another Unit
owner and the part of the Unit conveyed may be incorporated ns part of such other
Unit, or he oy subdivide his Unit, whercupon be shall reallocate a portion of his
Pereentage Interest in the Common Elements of the Condominium and Percentuage
Interest in the Common Profits and Common Expenses of the Couneil of Unit Qwners,
and the voic appurtenant ‘to his Unit, accordingly, in aceordunce with procedures
established by the Board of Dircetors. = -

ARTICLEY .
COVENANT AGAINST PAITITION; ENCROACHMEN'TS, EASEMENTS

Scetion 1. Covenant Against Partitlon. The Common Elements, both General and
Limitéd, shall remaln ungivided and, cxeept as otherwise provided herein and in the
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Act, shall remaein appurtenant to the designoted Unit. No Unit owner or any other
person shall bring any action for purtition or division hercofl esceptl as mny be provided
for herein and in the Act.

Scetion 2. Encrouchments. I any portion of -the Common Elemenls now en-
croaches upon any Unit, or if'any Unit now encroaches upon any olhier Unit or upon any
portion of ‘the Common Elenmients, us n result of the construction, reconstruction,
repuir, shifting, scitiement or mmovement of the Units and/or Common Elements, or if
any such encroachment shall oceur hercafler as a result of construction, reconstruction,
repair, shifting, movement or scttlement, or otherwise, a valid casement for the
encroachment and for the maintenance of the snme shall-exist so long as the encronch-
ing Unit and/or Common Elements shall stund, In the event any Unit, any -adjoining
Unit, or any ndjoining Common Elements shall be partiully or lotally . destroyed as o °
_result of fire or other casunlty or as a result of condemnation or eminent dowmain pro-"
ceedings, and then constructed, reconstrueted or repaired, cucroachinent of parts of the

Common Elements resulting from such reconstruetion, construction or ropair shall be
_permitted, and valid casements {or such encroachment and the miaintenance thercof
shall exist so long as the encronching improveinents shall stand. i - :

Seetion 3. Easements.

{a) . ‘The Council of Unit Owners, its agents und employees, shall have an
ireevocable right and an easement to enter Units to make repairs to Common Elements
when the repairs rensonably appear necessary for publie safoty or to prevent damage Lo
other portions of the Condominjum. Excepl in cuses involving manifest danger to public
sitfety or property, the Couneil of Unit Owiers shall make o reasonable effort to give
notice to the owner of any Unit to be enlered for the purpose of such maintenance and
repair.  1f damage is inflicted on the Common Elements or any Unit through which
nceess is taken, the Unit owner responsible for the damage, or the Council of Unit
Owners if it is rosponsible, is liable for the prompt repair. An enlry by the Council of
Unit Owners for the purposes speeified in this seetion may nol be considered o trespass,
An casement for mutunl support shall exist {n the Units and the Comimon Elements.

(b) Ench of the sidewalks, puths, walks, lancs, driveways, paved arcas,
rondways, stuirwells and other General Common Elements shall be subject lo an cuse-
ment in favor of all the Unit owners for reasonable ung necessary pedestirinn and ve-
hicular ingress and cgress Lo and from the improvemunts to and from public and private
rondways and streets.

(¢) There is hereby reserved unto the Declarant and its agents a non-
exclusive casement over, across and through all of the Property for the purpose of ac-
vess, the storage of building supplics and malerials and equipment in the Cominon
Llements and, without any limitation, for any and all purposes reasonably related to the
comnpletion of the construction or rehabilitation and repaic of the Property.

(@) ‘There is hercby reserved unto the Declarant (and its suecessors and
assigns 1o whom such casement hns been specilically assigned in writing), for the
benefit of the real properly deseribed on” Exhibit "E" attached hiereto and made & purt
hereof, o blanket eascment upon, across, and under all of the. Genernl Common
Elements for ingress, egress, installation, replacement, repair and maintenance of all
utilities, inceluding, but not limited to, water, sewer, drainnge, gus, cable television,
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‘telephones and cleetricily, and further including the right to connect lo und use any
such utitities whiceh may exist or be loeated upon the Property from time to time. By
virtue of this casement, it shall be expressly permissible to ercel and muintain the
necessary poles and other equipment on the Property, 0 affix und maintain ceetrical
or lelephone wires and condults, sower und waler drainage lines, on, above, or below
any portion of the Property, including any improveinents constructed thercon and to
nave consiruction vehicles, cquipment and the like excreise the aforesnid right of
ingress und egress over the Property. There is further rescrved unio the Declarant (and
i1s suceessors und asslgns to whom such right has been specifically ussigned in writing),
the right to grant specifie easements, both temporary und permanent, to any person of
entity, including all public authorities and utility compnnics, over any part of the
Property in furtheranee of the blanket cascmment crentad by this subsection-(d),

ARTICLE VI
DECLARANTS RIGHT TO RENT OI SELL UNITS

Anyuﬁng'conluincd in s Declaration or the byluws of the Council of Unit
Owners to the contrary nolwithstanding, the Declarant shall hive ihe right to transact
any business on the Property (including the Common Elements) nceessury or desirable to
consummate sales or renluls of Units owned by it, including, bul not limited to, the
right to maintain employees in the sales or rental office, and to show Units for sale or
rent. The sales or rental office, the furniture and furnishings in the model Units, signs
and all ileins pertiining 1o the sate or rental of Units by the Declarant shall not be
considered Coimmon Flemants but shall remain the property of the Decelurant, - -

ARTICLE Vi
DECLARANT'S EXIPANSIOH RIGHTS

soction 1. ltescrvation of Right_to Expand Condominium. The Declarant hereby
reserves the wght to expund the Condommium without the consent of Unit owners and
to nnnex to the Property additionnt land and improvements thereon, provided that this
reserved right shall terminate on the seventh (7th) anniversary ofter the date of the
recordation af this Declaration and shall otherwise comply with the provisions of
Section 11-120 of the Actl :

Section 2. Conditions of Right to Expnnd Condominium,

(n) The lund and the improvemcnts how or hercaiter to be locnted thercon
which may be annexcd to and made n part of the Condoiminium dre described by metes
and bounds on Exhibit "EY ftercof and are graphically shown on Lxhibit "F" attached
hereto and made @ purt hereof. : . .

{t) The total number of Units which may be added o the Condominium
are two hundred eighty-eight (288).

{¢) 'The Pereentage Interest in the comon clements, in the common
expenses and comimon peofits of the Council of Unit Owners and the number of votes
appurtenant to uny Unit Following the addition of units to the Condominium deseribed
in Scetion 2(a) nbove are as sel forth on LExhibit "G* unnexed hereto

-G




BERS 8 | 4 Fon60 9

and mode a part hercof.

(<) 'The expunsion of the Concominium shall not be effective unlil sueh
time as there bas been recorded wmong the Lond Records for Monigomery County,
faryland (i) an amended Decluration setting forth the new Percentage interest in the
Commnon Elements and Pereentage Interest in the Common Profits and Common Lx-
penses appurlenant to cach Unit nnd the vote appertaining thercto, and {ii) un
amcendment to the Condominium lat setting forth with respeet to the new properly
which has been ndded to the Condominium the detull and inforination that is required to
be shown upon the Condominium Plat, pursuant to Section 11-105 of the Act.

Seetion 3. Effect of Expnnsion. Upon the recordution of the umended Deelary-
tion and Condominiumn Flat, ench Unit owner shall nutomatieally have the-Pereentuge
Interest in the Common Elements and Percentage Interest in the Common Profits nnd
Common Expenses and the nwmber of voles appurtenant to his- Unit set forth in the
amended Declaration, The interest of cach mortgagee, as that term is defined in the

_ Aet, shall attach by operation of law o the Percentage Interest-in the Common
Elements appurienant to the Unit with respect to which it holds o lien. - ST

Scetion 4. Power of Attornev. 'there is hereby reserved unto Lykes Boykin (or
such othor purtly us may in wriling be designated by the Declurant) an irrevocable
Power of Altorney, coupled with an interest, for the purpose of reullocating the ler-
centage Interests and voling rights appurtenant to cach of the Units in the Condo-
miniwm in accordance with the provisions of this Deelaration und to execute, acknowl-
cdge and deliver such further instrumients as may from time to time be required in
order lo nccomplish the purposes of this Article VII.  Each Unit owner und ench
mortgagee of a Unit shall be deemed fo have uequicseed in amendments lo this
Deelaration and in amendments to the Condominium Plat for the purpose of adding the
aforesaid additionnl Units and Common Elements to tie Condominium, as set torth
above, and shall be decmed 'to hiave granted unto Lykes Boykin {or such other purly as
may in weiting be designated by the Doclarant), an irecvocable Power of Allorney,
cottpled with an interest, 1o effectuate, cyecute, neknowledge and deliver any such
amendments and eneh such Unit owner and morigngee shell be deemed to have agreed
and covenanicd 1o esceute sueh further assurances and instruments, if any, as may be
required by the Deeinrant and/or the said Lykes Boykin, his sucecessors or assigns, to
properly nccomplish such amendments, ‘

Seetion 8. FRulure Improveinents. All future iinprovemcnts to the Property which
result” Trom an oxpansion of the Condominium shall be consistent with the initinl
improvements in terins of quality of construction and must be substantially complcted

prior to annexation, s

Scetion 6. FHA and VA Approvals, Provided thal any Uuit subject to this
Declaration 1s then encumbered by a deed of trust or mortgage which is insured by thé
Federn! Housing Administeation or guaranteed by the Veterans Administration, nelihier
the Declarant nor the Council of Unit Owners shall (i) amend this Declaration und/or
fhe exhibits herclo so as to include within the effcet of the condominium regime
created hereby any other condominiwm regime or (il merge the Condominimm with a
suceessor condominium repime, without the prior writien approval of the Federnl

- Housing Administration and/or the Velerans Administration (as applicable). Nothing
contnined in this Section §& shell be construed to restriet or restrain the

K
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Declarant's right to expnnd the Condominium in uceordance with Seetion 1 of ihis
Articte ViL,

ARTICLE VIl
WASHINGTON SUBURBAN SANIPARY COMMISSION AGHEEMENT

(n) In the cvent that any sewer or waler use charge, or sewer charge, or
ad valorem tux, iimposed pursuant to the Washington Suburban Sanitary Distriet Code is
nol paid by the Council af Unit Gwners, or by one or more of the Unit owners, the
Washington Suburban Sanftary Cominission shall. have the right, ‘within the time
provided by law nnd the Regulntions of stid Commission, to terminale sewer and waler
service to all of the Units.

{b)  Ench present and future Unit owner und tenant shall neknowledge and
take titla subject to the obligation for payment by the cueh Unit owner of annual front-
fool benefit charges levied by the Washington Suburhan Sanitury Commission, based
upon wiler and sewer front-foot alloentions made by the Washington Suburban Sunitary
Commission und cotnnensurate with the tife of the bonds issued for the construetion of
<ald waler andfor sower lines as applicable,

. {¢) BEach present and future Unit owner and, if npplicable, tenanis of ench
Unit owner, shall grant a vight of aceess to his Unit to the manegement ageit employed
by tiie Unit owner or the Councit of Unit Owners and/or any other person authorized by
suid Council of Unit Owners for the purpose of making inspections of the plumbing
system or for the purpoese of correcting uny plumbing problems in any Unit which might
affect that Unit, any other Unit in the building or any of the Comimon Elcments, In
ense of cmergeney, such entry shall be iminediate whether the Unit owner or tenant is
present or nol.  The management agent or other person nuthorized may permit
cuployees of the said Commvission to cnter the premises for the purpose of making
correetions in order (o protect the Washington Suburban Sanitury Commission’s water
and sewer system,

ARTICLE IN
MISCELLANEOUS

e e

Section 1. Construciion and Enforeement.

(8) The provisions horeof shall be liberally construed to nchieve the
purpose of ereating a uniform plan for the operation of the Properly asa Condoiinium.
Enforcament of these Covenants aud Restrictions and of the bylaws attached herelo
shull be by any Unit owner and/or the Council of Unit Owners by any proceeding at law
or in cquity against any person of persons violating any of the.same, cither o restrain
or cnjoin violation or to rccover danages, or both, and against uny Unit to enforce any
lien created hercby; and the failure or forebearance by the Council of Unit Owners or
the Unit owner of any Unit to cnforce any of the covenants or restrictions herein or in
the bylaws contained shall in no ovent be deemed a waiver of the right lo do so
therealler.
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() ‘there stwll be nnd there is hereby created and declared to be a
conelusive prestnption that any viclnlion or breach or any attempted violalion or
breach of any of the within Covenanls and Restrictions eannot be udequately remedicd
by action at luw or exclusively by reeovery of damages. )

{¢) In aceordanee with the provisions of Scetion 11-108.1 of the Act, the
maintenance responsibilities for the Property shall be as set forth In the Bylaws.

(d)‘ In neeordance with the provisions of Seetion 11~1135 of the Act, the
right lo make improvements, alterations, ndditions or ehanges to uny Units by any Unit -
owner shall be governed by the provisions of the Byluws. ) R -

Scelion 2. Severabilitv, Invalidation of any part of this Dé&larntiqnby judgment, '
decree or order shall in ne way affect any other provisions hereof, ecach of ~which'shall -
remain in full force and cffeet, i - -

Scction 3. Cuplions, ‘The captions contained in this Deelarution are for con-
venience only, are not o part of this Declarution and are not intended in uny way to
limit or enlarge the terms and provisions of this Declaration.

Soelion 4. Amendments. This Declnration may be amended only by the wrillen
consent of every Unit owner and the writlen vonsent of every mortgagee, ns defined In
Secotion 17-101(g) of the Ael. Any nmendment to the Declnration shall not become
effective until such time as it has been recorded in the saine manner as the Declaration
amony the Land Records of hiontgomery County, Marylund.

Section 5. Consents, Notwithstanding any other provision of this beclnration,
eseept as provided by slatule in ease of condemnation or substantinl loss to the Unils
and/or common clements of the Condominium, neither the Association nor the Bourd of
Dircctors shall tnke auy of the following nctions:

(a) by acl or omission, scek lo abanden or terminate the Condominium
project unless at leussl one tundred pereent {100%) of the Unit owners and sixty-seven
pereent (67%) of the Eligible Morlgage Holders (based upon one vote for cuch first
mortgage owned) have given their prior wrillen approvil;

(b) except in conneclion with an expansion of the Condominitm pursuant
1o Article VI of this Declaration, chenge the pro-rala interest or obligation of any
individunl condominium unit unless all the first morigagees and Unit owners of the
individual condominium units have given their prior writien approval;

{c) partition or subdivide any Unit, unless ul least fifty-one pereent (51%)
of the Eliggible Mortgage Holders (based upon onc vote for cach first morlgnge owned),
and Unit owners representing sixly-seven pereent (679) of the votes in the Associntion
nave given their prior wrilten approval; :

B {d) by act or omission, seck 1o abandon, partition, subdivide, encumber,
sell or transfer the common clements, unless at least fifty-one percent (51%) of the
Eligibte Mortguge Holders {based upon ohc vote far cach first mortgage owned) and Unit
awners representing sixty-seven pereent {67%) of the votcs in the Comneil of Unit
Owners have given their prior written approval (the granting of casements for public

-g-
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utilities or for other public purposes consistent with the intended use of the common
clements by the Couneil of Unit Owners shall not be decmed o teansfor within the
meaning of this clause);

{e) use haward insurance proceeds for losses to any condominium property
{whether to Units or to comimnon clements) for other than repair, replucement or
reconsiruction of such condominium property in necordance with this Declaration and
the originn) plans nnd specifications, unless at lenst filty-one pereent (51%) of the
_Eligible Mortgage Holders (based upon one votce for ench first mortgage owned) and Unit
oivners ropresenting sixly-seven percent (67%) of the votes in the Assoelntion have
given their prior written approval. - . -

{r} unless tic consent of the Unit owners lo which at least sixty-seven
pereent (67%) of the votes in the Coungil of Unit Owners are allocated {or such higher
pereentnge as reguired by statute) and the approval of .Eligible Mortgage Holders .
holding mortgages on Unils which have at least fifty-one pereent (51%} {or such higher
percentuge as reguired by slatute) of the votes of Unils subjeet to mortgnges or deeds
of trust held by Bligible Morigage tlolders is obtained, add or umend any materinl
provisions of the constituent documents of the projeet, which estublish, provide for,
govern or regulnle:

(i) Voling;
(i)  Asscssinents, assessment liens or subordinntion of such liens;

(iii) Nescrves for waintenance, repuir and repineement of the Comn-
mon Elements (or Units if npplicable);

{iv) losurance or Fidelity Bonds;
(v) Right to use the Common Elements;

{(vi) Responsibility lor maintenance and repair of the several portions
of the Condominium;

(vii) Expansion or contraction of the Property or the addition, nnnex=-
ation or withdrawal of the Property lo or from the Condo-
mintum;

{viii) Boundarics of any Unit;

(ix) The interests in the General or Limiled Common Elements;

(x) Convertibility of Units into Common Elements or of Commonr_
Elements into Units;

{zi) Lensing of Units;
(xil) Impositlon of any right of first refusal or similar restriction on

the right of a Unil owner to sell, trans{er, or otherwise convey
his or her Unit;

~10~
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(xiii) Any provisions which are for the express Lrenefit of mortguge
holders, Kligible Mortgage Holders or eligible insurers or guardn-
tors of first mortgages on Units. :

. INWITN LSS WHEREOF, the Declurant hns caused this writing lo be exceutled and
delivered in its nume and on its bohnif on the day and year firsl above writlen.

ATTEST: DIAMOND FARMS [\SSOCU;\THS, INC., -
a Delaware corporation -

w BW%" ‘///7(7 ek
Qual ) ., Sceretary 2\ , Wice) I’rcsidcn}\i
{CORPORATE SEAL)

* % *
CSTATE OF Wl 1t *
% lowil
COURNTY OF MOy
1 HEREBY CERTIFY Uit an the Ty oday of e e, O , 1081, before

the subscriber, n Notary Publie in and Tor the above jurisdietion, personnlly uppeared
VA VL Bl atind Yty sy O o=, who have been satisfoctorily proven
fo be the persons whose names are subscr{bcd to l{\is‘ written, instrument, who
acknowledged themselves to -be {vica) I'resident and! Beéretary, respectively, of
Dinmond Farins Associates, Inc, o Delawarc corporation, and that suid ot -
qAL TS and SR A Cinadoit-, 0§ sueh (~Vﬁce)-l’rcsidcul andSceretary,
being autharized so to do, exovuled the joregoing instrament for the purposcs therein
contnined, by signing the name of the carporation by themselves us (ice) President nnd
s Seeretary, respeetively. '

GIVEN under my hund and scal thisr2va day of IR RNL I Y

_FNotary ‘l'ublic’)

My Conunission Fxpires: .
My Conn i oy "
[NOTARIAL SEAL] - . T

“li-
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DECLARANT'S CERTIFICATION

1 HEREBY AUFIRM under penally of perjury ‘that the notice requirements of
Scetion 11-102.1 of the Renl Property Article of the Annotaied Code of Muryland, if
applieable, have been fulfilled.

ATTEST: DIAMOND FARMS ASSOCIATES, INC.,
. a Delaware (':qrpomtion T . v

- WVQ %'g !Wi‘y/\?’fw /31 //Cﬁw ’
M N ¥ TV Tresidch
S FANA) ( .1007 resi em\\

{CORPORATE SEAL]

ATTORN EY'S CERTIFICATION

1 HERERY CERTIFY that the foregoing instrumnent was prepured by or under the
supervision of an attorney duly admitied to practice before the Court of Appeals of
Maryland.

! > o N
Kl ; e T e
Loy ///é_’_/ Lol 2N

Roger D. Winslon

7
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Exhibit "A" to Declaration

{Description of Phase I)
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PEHTE i LUMet 1L
CWVIL CHGINELAS, LAND PLANNENS L SUNVEYORS Bt st COvTAtR

Stmin & vealim RiE Gtow
270 MONTGOMENY AVENUE, DUHE 300 « UCINLOUA, UMD, 201 » 30154980 :‘l':l::‘l.:’l:::;
31000 Lksinstl DELGY

JOHH . ALy, PLS, . 3100 yratth SeamsLEMLNT

CLORGE A -S1psON, 1.0 BUSLANIIN T i
wittiAs [ Mutenew, g DHGRAPRE MAPFRD
LAt W, WALVATE, LT, . Fend & LEiLIaL §ILOPNOM CAVEY

pavip L. WATER PLS,

- Aupust 27, 1981
. A-0575-H

DESCRIPTION OF
DIAMOND FARM CONDOMINIUMS
PHASE 1 {in three parts)
. PART 1 ' T
PART OF LOT 1, BLOCK "A", PLAT ONE, DILAMOND FARMS
OTH ELECTYION DISTRICT
GAITHERSRURG, MARYLAND

Plat Bodk No. 84, Plac Wo. B/4B

Being part of Lot 1, Block A as shown on a plat of subdivision
entitled "Plat One, Diawond Farm" and recorded ameng the Land Recovds
of Montgomery County, Maryland {9th Election District} in-Plat Book
B4 as Plat 87487 and beinp wore partleularly described as follows:

Hepinning at a point in the ecasterly line of Quince Orchard
Boulevard, scventy (70) feet wide as shawn on said plat of subdivision,
said point bedng the point of cowpound curvature between Curves 19 |
and 22 as shown on said plat; thence ruaning with said easterly line
of Quince Orchard Hoolevard,

1. 723.07 feet along the arc of n curve to the vighe having a radius
of 580.00 fect and a chord bearing n. 11 56' 52" E., 677.15
feet; thuance,

2. N. 47° 39' 45" E., 254.43 fcet; thence,
3. 292,30 feet along the arc of a curve to the lefr hoving a radius
of 470.00 feet and a chord bearing N, 29° 50" 46" E., 287.61

feet; thence,

4. N, 12° 01" 47" E
Lot 1, Block A,

, 132.50 feer; thence rumning through said -

.

5. S. 77° 58' 13" E., 285,00 feet; thence,
6. S. 12° OL' 47" W., 365.00 feet; thence,

7. S, 77° 58' 13" E., 317.20 feet; thence running with the easterly 'i
line of said Lot 1, Block A,

nn:v(s\;cs-t PECi trAliDNt b MARTLAND, YiRTIkth, DETALT OF EOUWS.4, DILAA W], PEAAINVINA ROATH CEED0 3 WIST ViACML

Vivetuy 0F swi®Sin CONCULSS ON LUUFITNG & MLPANG » WARTLAND SOCHIT OF SR ¢TTERS « RETOVL SOCHTT OF FAOH 33INML tnintins
wihgraie ASEOCIINLON OF SLOVETOAS » miswaCIDN SOLEEY OF PuaTens

CLERK'S ROTATION
Dosument submitted for yecord
in a condition not pemmitting
sstisfactory photographle vepro~
duction, - !
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i amond Farm Condominlum, Phase 1 Page 2

8. 308,00 feet along the are of a1 curve to the Jelt having a radiun
of 2400.00 fect and a chord beacing 5. 15¢ 20" 28" w., 302.7
feet; theace running through said Lot 1, Bluck A,

9. N. 77° 58" 13" M., 120.00 feet; thence,

10... 8. 12° 01' 47" W., 53.00 feet; thence,

1. W, 77° 58 13" W., 180.00 feer; thenece,

12. 60.00 feet along the arc of a curve to the right.hnvihgrai;adiﬁs'
of 130.00 feet and o chord bearing M. GA® L4t SEM M., 59.47.
feer; thence, .

13. S. 38° 28' 26" W., A0.00 feet; thence, °

14. S, 12° 01" 47" W., 118.00 featy thence,

15. N. 77° 58' 13" w., B82.00 feet; thence,

16. M. 12° o1’ 47" E., 95.00 feet; thence,

17. N. 77° 58° 13" W., 92.00 fcet; thcnec,

18. S. 12° 01' 47" W., 520.00 feet; thence,

19. N, 77° 58" 13" W., 80.00 feet; theuce,

20. S. 12° OL' 47" W, 98.00 feet; thence,

21. K. 77° 58' 13" W., 125.26 feet; thence running with the aforesaid
castecly line of Quineco Orchard loulevard,

22. 122.90 fect nleng the are of a curve to the ripght having a radlus
of 3000.00 feet and a chord bearing N. 247 56° 25" W., 122.89

fect to the place of beginning, containing 616,676 square feck or
14.15693 acres of Jand.

and also,

CLERK'S KOTATION
Document subabtted for record
_ in & condition not pormitting
 satisfactory photographle repro-
{ duction, o
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\J TN b o "+
JOUN J. ALLEN ASSOCIATES e ar sunrt 5
St CHGINEEHS, LAND PLARNERS & SUNVEYORS

A DuiNT LONIMA
sialin & Walhn HEee
175 MONIGOVEHT AVENUE, LUIL 300 » DETHESDA, MD, 20014 ¢ 321623310 e

SICPM Dlanabht § E

.

JOHH ), ALELI, PRS. SIONG VeATSR MaraBUIut
GLORGE A BIGPSON, .0 SUNCIOH BEIEN
WALLIAM L MOt P8 . . WDHOCAMEG Sikpnl

LARRY 19, WALLACE, L3I, . Jowws & BerCest 1 ELLFION CASLS
pAVID L WHDED, LS. ' :

September 10, 1981
Description .
PART 2 N
B{:ing Parcel I as shown on a plat of subdivision entitled "Plat ’
Fout, Orchard Place” and recorded among the Land Records of HMontponecy -

Coumby. Maryland (9th Flection District) in Plat ook 108 as Flat 125273 . .
and being wmore particularly described as follows: o T

Beginning at the nmxthweﬁtcrly corner of sald 1‘5rcc:l i3 I:lu:x.wce'
running with the outlines thereof;
1. N. 12° OL' 47" E., 2BL.59 feet; rhence,
2. §. 77° 58' 13" K., 82.00 feet; (;hcm:;,
4. §. 12° O1' 47" W., 95.00 feer; thence,
4. S. 77° 58' 13" .F.., 82.00 feet; thence,
5. §. 12° O1' A7" W., 149.46 [ect; theuce,
6. S§. 37° 52' 13" w,, 41.26 [cet; thence, -
7. H. 77° §8' 13" W., 146,02 feet Lo the place of beginning

Containing 38,056 square Teet or 0.87305 of an acre af land.

and also,

FAQE (3309 pitis1ashond By HARELND, vikGueia, HIIENLCE O CorrvaIe DILARBT, PERNSTLYINIG ATATN J40TLMA & Wt 8 MATIMA -
ViVEINS OF 4V MTan LONSAISS ON NG & PARNNG ¢ PARILsND 3O0ITTY OF STNYEYENE » AATIOGAL STOILTY OF ARDFEAITNAL EnCingind .
e me smetARA § RALWINGION SOUEIT OF INGINTINS

CLERR'S NOTATION
bocument subuitred for record
in & condlition nst pormitiing
; setiafuceory photopraphic repro-
duction,
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JOUN J. ALLEN ASSOCIATLS erntens e

Cotl CRGINLTHS, TAND PLARNEDG & SURYVEYONS :"";?::'v ;;:‘:“;::uu

SEmiR L matln (30w
SN RaNnG
3IMLE O S
EST- L ST A R LT

.

634 VOMIGDVERY AVLLUL, JUITE X0 » BUTHLLDA, MO, 20310+ 333800 9320

JUMN g, ALK, PLS
GLoAGL A LIuPL0N, RL
JAULE WL ANDREWA, UG, JULZ LT 14 S
viRLIAM [ MORELL PO VOSOLALP L BsAPMnD

H
SIDY wealih Vewabfuiwd
LARAY W, WALLACL, C4Y, ' X JOMIT 3 SPECIAL LACEPIOW Cabtd
.

Laviy L wWRDIR PLS,

¥arch 18, 1980
peseription for Quince Associates

) PART 3 : . - }
All that land being a part of Diawond Farm, Tart of Lot 1,-Block AT
as recorded in Plat Rook 84 at Plat 8748 in the Land Records of Montpomery
County, Maryland and being wore particularly described as follows: = -
PARCEL 'A' .

. Begianing for the~§ame the following courses. [rom the southeasterly corner
of Dinwond Farm, P§rt of Lot 1, Rlock 'A', vhich is a point on the northerly line
of Quince Orchard Boqlcvqrd: 386.82\Icc: muasufed northerly along a curve to
the right of 1200 feet radius; 970.435 feet measured-northerly aloug a curve to
the right of 2400 feet radius; and N, 77° 58' 13" W., 92.00 feet.

Thence, from the point of beginming, S. 12° 01' 47" W., 53.00 feet;
thence M. 77° 58" 13" W., 28.00 foet; - v
thence W. 12° Q1 &47° w., 53.00 {eet;
chéncc 5. 717° 58‘.13" E., 28.00 feet to the point of bcgihning. and
cont."xining 1,484 square feer. Subject to yestrictions of recovd.
PARCEL 'B’
Beginning for the same N. 77° 58" 13" W., 122.50 -feet {rom the southwesterly
corner of Parcel 'A' dcscribcd. abave. 4
Thence S. 12°‘01' K7 W., 27.00 feet;
thence N. 77° 58' 13' W., 57.50 feet;
thence 72.46 [eer measured northuc.;stcrly along a curve go the right of 157-00
feet radius;

thence N. 38° 28' 26" E., 27.00 feet;

thence 60.00 feet measured southeasterly along a curve o the left of 130.00

CLERK'S NOTATION
Document subaltted for record
{r a cond{tion not permitting
: satisfactory photegraphic rvepros
{ duction,
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vape 2

feer radius;
- thence S. 77" 58° 13 E., $57.50 feet to-the polnt of bugénnlnxplavd :

‘econtaintng 3,340.7 square feet. Subject Eq,réﬂtrlct;pns of record.

Containing a total area for Thase 1 of 659,556.7 sguarc feet i

or 15:1413 acres of land.

CLERK'S BOTATION
Docuweat subcitted for rvecord
fn a zondition not parsitting
; satisfzctory photogrephic vepro-
{ duetion.




MRS S | L FOL0B 5 7

Exhibit "C" to Declaration

{condominium Plats - Phase I)
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Document pubm(tted for record
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{ duction,




PATIO { SALCOY MEADUREIARLITS
TYPICAL OF ALL UNMITS .

BEALET v IO

PLAT OF CONDOMINIUM
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CLERK'S NOTATION
Dotument submitted for vecord
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860 07P2 o .003393 -
860 101 T Ne3933
g86b 102 ' 003933 S
860 201 . 803933 S
860 202 003033
862 0™ 211 R Arde
862 0P2 003393
862 101 L00393Z
862 1h2 C L 003923
862 201 003933
B2 292 LBG63933
864 0P1 LD03PET
864 0P2 LON3393
864 101 .003%33
864 102 003933
g64 201 L 003F3S
864 202 .. 03933
866 071 T eickd
B6e  O0P2 03292
ge6 101 , DOSRS0
866 102 L003PIT
BoE 201 L 0052540
8a6 202 L603953
B8 0P . L8032
868 0P2 L BBE250
868 101 _ LOU3P3S
868 107 : L 0DERSD
868 201 ,003933
Beg U2 . 005250
870 OP1 O03Z03
870 0P2 L BO393T
870 101 003933
8706 102 O0Z9TT
g70 201 (003933
870 202 L 003933
872 0Pt 003352
g72 0°P? (003933
872 101 ,B03DE3
g7e 102 L00u933
|72 201 (003933
|72 202 LORTRER
[ 20N T L e

CLERK'S NOTATION
Docuwent submitted for record
. in a condlition not permitting
i satisfsecory photographle repro~
}' duction,




LUBERS 8 |1 &4 FOLOB T G

PFRCENT DWBFPOHIY | ISTING-PHARF ONF ) 1072508

B8R82
gaz
gaz
884
884
884
884
884
884
886
886
884
886
886
886

TOVAL OWNERSHIP= 1,00000000004

TUNTT
NUMEER

201
202
0Pt
0Pz
101
inz
201
202
0Pl
W hard
101
102
201
202
0Py
oP2
101
102
201
202
0Pt
0v2
101
toz2
20t

202

PFRCFNT OWNERSHIP
OF PROJECT

L003292
003274

002933
003274

L003933

Q03398

003274

002933
002274
L 003933

003274 -
0032933

003373

, 003933

003933

., 003933

Q03923

JO03P33

L003393

L003933

003933

L. 003233 .

003933
A NAK )
JABES93
003933
LON3SA3
LAOEPEE
1] LRIAON
0032933
L B03393
003933
003933
N03933
. 003933

TOTAL UNITS= &2
50

CLERK'S BOTATION
Document submltted fat vecord
. in a condition not permitting
, sstisfactory photographic vepro=
| duction,
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Exhibit "E" to Declaration

(Propérty pescription of Phase IT)

CLERR'S NOTATION
Document submitted for vacord -
* in & condition not permitting
i’ setinfactory photographic veproe
| ductien,
Lo
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\ N T teotoAtal Mtuba s
JOIN J. ALLEN ASSOCIATES jooa sty
CIVIL ENHGINEENS, LAND PLAHNERS & SURVEYORS - FrEAT TR Lo H]

vl 3 WAt W OIMGY

" " o . Vit BLENiNG

A3 HONIGOMEHY AVENUE, SUITE XO ¢ BETHLSUA, MU, J0014 » 301528 950 SN GESGE

SIOHU DROINAGY TS0
JOMN S ALLLY, PLE BEONE WATEH LAt E U bRt
GLOKGE A; BIMPLON, PL BURDISION RE A
witinas L. el fE TOMRHREAG BIAPRYD
LANRY W, WALLACE, TAY, N 20wisD L LPLTIN, PILIRHON CASEY

DAVID € WHDEA, PLS. . B

Avgust 27, 1981
A-G575~-H

DESCRIPTION OF
DIAMOND FARM CORDOMLNLUMS
PHASE 2

PART OF LOT 1, BLOGK “AY, PLAT ONE,. DEAMOND FARMS. -~ '
9TH ELECTION DISTRICT . -
GALTHERSBURG, MARYLAND .

Plat Book No. 84, Plat No. 8748

Being part of Lot 1, Block A as shown on a plat of subdivision
entitled "Plat One, Piamond .Farm' and vecorded awonp the Land Records
of Montgomery County, Maryland {9th Flection District) in Plat Book
84 as Plat 8748; and beinpg more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at a point in the casterly line of Quinece Orchard
Boulevard, sevenry (70) feet wide as shown on said plat of subdivision,
sald point lylng N. 12° 01' 47" E., 132.50 fecet from the point of
tangency of Curve 16 as shown on satd plar; thence running with said
easterly line of Quince Orehard Boulevard,

1. N. 12° 01" 47" E., 517.50 fect; thence,

2.  456.54 feet along the are of a curve to the cight’ having a radius
of 350.00 feet and n chord bearing . 49° 23" 54" E., 424.80
feet; thence,

3. 158.13 fect along the arc of 2 curve to the right having a xradius
of 4330.00 fcet and a chord bearing N. 89" p8' 10" E., 358.03
feet; thence, .

4. 78.66 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius .-
of 470.00 feet and a chord bearing N. 86° 42' 40" E., 78.57
feet; thence running with the casterly line of said Lot 1, Block A,

5. 1046.45 fcet along the arc of a curve to the right having a radius
of 2400.00 fcet and a chord bearing S. 13° 33° 12" W., 1038.18
feet; thence,

6. 288.05 feet along the arc of a curve to the left havi’ﬁg a radius
of 2400.00 fcet ond o chord bearing §. 22° 36' 22" W., 287.88
feet; thence running through said Lot 1, Block A,

PAOHIIRONEL FICIERATONS th WaRyLAND, wiRGints, DIYIRCT OF CORVUDR DIVARARL, PEundrivara, MONIR CASOLINA & WiST Whiuak
LIMEIAS OF AWENCAN CORGELSS ON BURVEHING B MAING & MARRLANG $OOLTY Of SURYETORS o NATORAL SDCETY OF FROIEITONAL INGINITRS
WInGiA A3SOCITION OF SURYITONY ¢ MAGeAGIDN JOULNY ©F LnCiaitns

CLERR!S LOTATION
Documant svbosltted for record
; in & condltion not parsitting
« sstistactory photographie repro-
| ductlon,




UBERS8 | 4 rote6 7 S

¥
Dinmond Farm Condominium, Fhase 2 Page 2

4. N.. 777 58' 13" W., 317.20 feet; thence,
§. H. 12° 01' 47" E., 365,00 [eet; thence,

9 M. 77° 58" 13" W., 285.00 fvet to the place of beplnning,-
contalning 736,721 square feet or 16.91280 acres of land.

CLERR'S HOTATION .

Documant subnitted for vecord

, in & condition not pormitting

i satisfzctory photographic repra-
t duction, R
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Exhibit "F" to peclaration

(plat for Phase II)

CLERK'S KOTATION
Docuzent subnitred for record
. in a condition not permitting
i satisfsctory photographie vepros
duecton,
t




OWIIERS! DEDICATION

Yo, Ovimond Marmme Asstcates, IS, 8 To'anes Corpomdon, by Lroes
Boylun, Froucant, Nd ptlawn irang{ fusi Wrenry, onrars o THa property Sonm
Poreon ond dascribad m e Bufvavery brd’ Engras- tactificatione, hareby Mdopt
thiv Mat of Condomwion, conarating ot % atwa it pursariy Te H (rinwins ond
ragaramanis o Title 16 the Radl fFrunerty Artule, Gacnon 110101, 6t seq, tF the
Areateted Cum of Maryland (1038 8q0).

Oiotrond Parms Asssoiates, ino
Outes © o Dslawsrs Sepweten *
wWithees Tymic 72 Goymm, frevdont
Witresda T T TR e Corenry  Aemibtand Cecralory

Y- ay
e T A
s P e i) 2.:-;';?!:

PHASE X
MEFREIEUTS POMTION OF
PROFENTY PReviousiy
SOEM (TY B0 10 TRE LONDOMIMILIM
REMail W ACCLADAMCE PITIS
THE DECLARATION

ELGI 8 CLRATIM e
I nercty Carify thot this plab of sundonmvun sub-
ramaon, cuneahng of 1D aneats, tigeirer with bre apphrable
wordeg of the decleration, e correct rograssntution o by
OB VIstTiDsdy Rurthiirmore, the dant-hoation ond
T ton of 2och unit snd the Comenun slements, os anetructed,
Gon ta datermmad from them
1 furtner cartiPy Y1at Inm et of Lorasnenom wddaon
won 1Ep70d v ACCUrdars with e frasramante of TiHla 11,
Reot Mrerarty Ardick, Section $1+10%, ot waq, of the Arnotsted
Cude of Harglond (1017 fga)

Dube LOLTIAN_ B _Wﬁzﬁféﬂ
[ 1%

8 NG GO0V, o%.
d k

PLAT OF COHDOMINIUN

SUAVLIYOR'S CERTITICATE

| horebu certify that ihg locebon wid dmmaiotng of DIAMOND FARMS COHDOMIRIUM
1he haldngs »g GMarimprowements Vigws tn ahaete 3,0, (4cF 19 . PHASING PLAN
tha plat of Urvunhrm abdrnion wit acvomphw il by 8
st tept srwy:d‘m srrech, Unlyes @ har mns foded, Mhere PHASH® IT
e mev::::-(? rat 1': Id:ﬁn\d 1re t;'»ldgp d-:;ﬂ Wik ERECTHION BIRYRICT

ereun 1 Lt s, Bick A, Flat Sat, Diammnd Mema, .
o it ed 71 Pint Bovk 54 of Pt 135 .m'ov-gl 1he Land - . HOWTDOUTAY COUNTY, MARTLAN
. Sostes 1= 200° Avgrei, 1ORY

Records o Hantgemeny Goundy, Hardand .

L Xaffts Medive, las.
1he $afois Aaed

) Bethonte, Motpest Wond
_oer. 26,2900 _Shidn Q. Rl b = .
Tt Ents Johiieu, vk e

Reg.atarad Land Durvgyer
Visigiara Vo 2106

31C0

|

CLERK'S KOTATION
Document submitted for tvecord
. in a condition not pormiteing
| sattsfactory photographic vepro-
[ duetfon,
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£xhibit "G" to Declnration

{Percentage Interests for Phases fand 1)

CLERK'S ROTATION
© Dotument submitted for record
; In & eondition net permitting
;i sstisfactory photogrsphlc repro-

ductlon,
L
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PERCENT OWUNERSHIP LISTING 09/28/84
UNIT PERCENT OWNERSHIP
NUMBER OF PROJECT
702 0T 001916
702 oT2 . 0017861
702 10t L001918
e . 762 102 .001943
702 261 LE01%iET T e e
702 202 001943 , -
704 0Tt 001916 -
704 0TR2 ,001781. -
704 101 Jo00te . T
704 102 ,001943
704 201 001916
704 202 ,001943
786 OP1 001916
786 07F2 , 081781
786 101 ,001918
706 162 .0015943
706 201 L001916
796 202 ,001943
708 0™ ,001916
708 0p2 ,001781
708 101 L 001916
708 102 , 001943
708 201 ,001916
708 202 .001943
710 0Pt L001741
710  0P2 , 002445
710 3101 001915
710 102 002445
710 201 ,0019186
710 202 L002445
712 oM ,001463
712 O0P2 .001781
712 101 ,0014565
712 1028 .001943
712 2m ,0014565
712 202 .001943
714 0™ .001741
714 072 ,001465
714 101 L0019t o
714 102 . 001465
714 201 . L001916
714 202 .001465
716 071 : 002445
716 072 , 001741
716 101 . 002445
716 102 L001916
716 201 .002445
716 202 L001914
718 071 .001781
718 o712 L001918
718 101 ,001943
718 1082 .0019t6
718 201 , 001943
718 =202 ,001918
720 09y 001741

CLERR'S KOTATION -
Document submlttad for vecord
. in & condition not parmltting
sati{sfactory photographic repro«
| duction,




UBERS B | 4 FoLoB 8 4 :

PERCENT OUNERSHIP LISTING pe/s26/81
UNTT PERCENT QUNERSHIP
NUMBER OF PRUOJECT

072 LBU1943
101 001914
102 L 001943
2081, .001916
po2 0301943
0Pl 001943
gtp L 601741 :
101 V001843 - e o
103 Lootets - T -
281 001943 .. L T
202 001918 T - oL ’ S
P .001781 e o
PR L001916 0

101 001943 C

102 001916

201 001543

202 001914

0P .001781

P2 . ,001916

101 .881943

102 . ,001918

201 001943

292 001914

81 : ,001781

0P 001916

101 001943

162 L001916

201 ,001943

ana 801916

0Pt 001741

0F2 0014635

101 001916

102 001465

201 L001915

202 ,001465

071 . 001465

02 , 001781

101 . 001465

102 ,601943

201 001465

202 ,001943 ' :
Pt 001781

pte 001916

101 001943

102 001916

201 .001943

202 001916

Pl L.001465

02 .001741

1801 . 801465

102 .001916

201 ©.001465

202 .001916

o™ 001741

CLERR'S ROTATIOR .
Docusent subalzted for tecord
; in a condition not parmitting
l sstisfectory photographic repro-
! duction,
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.

" PERCENT OUNERSHIP LIGTING

n9/28/81

UNIT PERCENT OWNERSHIP

NUMBER OF PROJECT
738 072 L001465
738 101 .001916
738 102 001485
738 201 001916
738 202 001465
740 0T 001741
740 0P2 002445
740 101 .001916 -
740 102 002445
740 201 001915
740 282 . 002445
742 0P1 002445
742 0P2 (801741
742 101 L 002445
742 102 801916
742 201 002445
742 202 .001916
744 OP1 001741
744 02 001916
744 101 001916
744 102 ,001916
744 201 L001916
744 202 001916
746 OFP1 .0017A41
746 072 002445
746 101 L0019186 )
746 102 .002445 .
746 201 (001916
746 202 002445
748 0P1 002448
748 072 001741
748 101 . 002445
748 102 001916
748 201 002445
748 202 001916
750 671 001465
750 072 001741
750 101 001465
750 102 001916
750 201 001465
750 202 001916
752 0PI L001781
752 172 001463
792 101 L 001943
752 102 081465
752 201 ,001943
752 202 001465
754 0TI .002445
754 072 001741
754 101 . 002445
754 102 .001916
754 201 . 002445
754 202 001916
756 078 L 002445

CLERK'S NOTATION
© Doguwent submitted for record
; fn & condltion not permitting
satisfactory ghatographle repra- §
| duction,




LIBER . ‘
S8 14 1006 8 Frpcent qunersHie LisTIn 09/28/81

UNIT PERCENT DWNERSHIP
NUMBER OF PROJECT
756 072 001741
756 101 . 002445
756 102 L001916
756 201 , 002445
_ ) 756 202 ,001916..

- 758 071 L0174 e .
758 092 L002445-- . . T
758 101 L001914 : .
758 102 L 002445 .

758 201 , 001918
758 202 , 002945 .
760 071 , 0017241 -
760 072 L 002445
760 101 001718
760 102 L 002445
740 201 .D01916
_ 740 202 . 002443

762 07 , 001465
7462 (13274 .001781
762 101 ,001485
762 162 , 001943
762 201 -, 0014865

S o742 202 . 001943
764 071 L 001741 :
764 072 001465 : .
764 101 001916
764 102 ,0014565
764 201 L001916
764 202 , 801445
768 0Pl ,00t741 -
768  0PR , 002445
768 101 L001914
768 © 102 002445
768 201 L001918
768 202 ,002445
770 071 , 002445
770  0F2 . 001741
770 101 , 002445
770 102 ,001918

. 770 201 ,002445
770 202 ,001%16
772 0P L001781
772 072 L 001916
772 101 ,001943
772 102 L001916
772 201% , 001943
772 202 .a01914
774 0Pt . 001463
774 0¥2 001741
774 101 ,001465
774 . 102 ,001916
774 201 . 001465
774 202 L 001914
776

0Pt ,001741

CLERK'S LOTATION
Docuuent submltted for recerd
. In a conditlon nat persiteing
; sstisfactory photograsphic tepro~
l duetion,




[
UBER 38 | & FOLIG § 7PERCENT DWNERSHIP LISTING 09/28/01°

UNIT PERCENT DWNERSHIP
NUMBER OF PROJECT
?76 07P2 L D01465
S 776 101 L001916
776 162 001465
776 201 001916
776 202 L001465
778 @M1 ,001918
778 0792 .001781
778 101 001914
778 102 . , 0049243 ° . o
778 201 001916 . o
o o 778 202 001943 - - T
: 782 0P} L001741 ,
- : -7B2 02 002445 Lo e
782 101 ) ,001916 . © -
782 182 002445
782 2401 ,001918
782 202 , 002445
784 071 L001916
784 0P2 .001781
784 101 .601716
784 102 .001943
784 201 : L001916
" 784 202 ,001943
786 071 L D02445
786 072 L001741
786 101 . 002445 )
786 102 L001916
786 201 ,002445
786 202 LOD1916
788 01 . L 0017414
788 (P2 . 002445
788 101 L001716
.. 788 102 L002445
788 201 001916
788 202 . 002445
790 0P1 .001781
796 0°P2 001916
790 101 .001943
790 102 ' .001%16
790 201 ,001943
790 202 001916
792 0Pt 002445
792 072 L0017414
- 792 101 .082445
792 102 . .001916
792 201 , 602445
792 202 001916
794 0Pt , 001943
794 072 001741
794 101 ,001943
794 102 L001915
794 201 001943
794 202 . 001916
796 0P ,801781

CLERK'S BOTATION
_ Document submitred for record
: 4n a condition not pemmitting
sitiefactory photographic repro-
]\ duction,
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PERCENT OUNERSHIP LISTING - g7/28/81

UNIT PERCENT DUNERSHIP
NUMBER OF PROJECT
796  OFR D01465
796 101 , 001943
796 102 . . B01485
796 201 001943
796 202 L 8014565 . .
798 0P La01a6s T
798 072 , 001781 -
798 101 -, 001465
798 102 ,001943"
798 201 801465
798 202 001943
800 0TI .001781
800 @P2 001916
800 101 001943
800 102 - 001916
BO6 201 ,001943
g00 202 001916
gez2 071 , 001520
Bo2 0PR . 002352
802 101 S 00176R
goz 102 002382
Aoz 201 .001762
. Boz =202 , 0023582
804 0T 001467
804 OPR2 001520
B34 101 001447
804 102 L 001762
gna - 201 001467
g04 202 . 001762
B0& 0P1 00152
806 0¥2 : 001467
806 101 . 001752
ane 102 601487
g06 201 001762
gne 202 .. 001447
|08 0Pt 002352
808 T2 . .e01ER0
sog 101 002352
BOR 102 001762
808 201 . 402352 ‘
g08 202 L 0017682 ‘ . '
810 071 . 001467 :
8ig TR . 001520
g10 101 L 001467
810 102 0017462
a10 201 001467
810 2082 001762
g12 0™ L001520
812  0F2 . 801467
812 101 001752
g12 102 601467
g1z =201 ,001762
812 ROZ L 001447

814 0T (001762

) CLERK'S JOTATION
Dasument subnttted for secord
i in & condition not permitting
i metisfactory photographic repro-
" ductien,




8

LIBER 1
?F.RL‘.ENT DMNEg.%IIP‘LF?ggﬁ&;S 09/28/81

UNIT PERCENT QUNERSHIP
NUMBER OF PROJECT

814 0F2 - .on1s2n

814 101 .001762 .

814 102 , 001752 oo

814 201 001762

814 202 L 001762

816 OF1 ,001520°

B16 0F2 . 002352

816 101 .001762 , .

Bi4 103 .o02352 - ST R

814 20% J00T762

816 202 .oo235e -

818 0Pt L 0014867

Bie o2 . 001520

ai8 101 L 001467

818 102 ,A81762 .

818 20t . 001447

818 202 .001752

820 o071 .001520

B20 072 001467

820 101 .001762

820 102 L001467 7 .-

a20 201 L001762

820 =202 ,0014467

g2z (0Tt ,002352

a2 oFR .001520

822 10t .002352

g22 102 L001762

AE2 201 L 0pR352

@22 202 ,001762

824 071 0023352

824  0P2 ,0031520

824 101 002352

B24 102 .001762

BZ4 R0t , 002352

gaq 202’ 061762

.ges 0Tt , 001520

a2s are .0014467

824 101 ,001762

826 102 L001467

ARs 20t , 001762

826 202 . 0014467

828 071 L 001467

g2g o072 , 001520

828 101 .001467

828 102 001762

BE8 201 001447

B28 202 L001762

g36 0¥t L 003872

830 101 L001762

B30 102 . 0023352

B30 201 L 001748

830 20a , 002352

832 071 .003872

-, CLERK'S NOTATION
Document substtted for record
; In 8 ¢ondition not pormitting
i sstislactory photographic reproe
l duction,




RSB | & Foun
BP%QCENT OWNERSHIP LISTING ‘ ue/28/81

- —

UNTIT PERCENT NUNERSHIP
NUMBER OF PROJECT
101 ,002352
102 .601762
301 ’ .602352
202 .. 0B17862 -
0Pt .001520
0PR .001762
101 . .oni7ae2
102 .001762
201 i 001762
202 .001762 L T
071 0015200 . - ’ -
prR , 002352 o
101 Le017262 -7 -
102 .002352 e
836 201 001762 -
836 202 . poz3s2
838 O0P1 001520 .
838 0F2 L, 002382 .
838 101 .001762
B38 102 002352
B38 201 £001762
a38 202 » 802352
840 07P1 001529
940 072 ,002352
g40 101 : 001762
Bag 102 .002332
840 201 001762
ga0 202 . 002352
ga2 071 L 001447
paz o072 1001520
g4z 101 ' 001467
a4z 102 .001762
gaz 201 To.001467
gaz 202 ,001762
gaa 07?1 .001520
ga4 072 001467
844 101 001762
D44 102 .001467
a44 201 L001762
gas 202 001467 -
gas 0TI 001762
g6 072 » 001520
B46 101 - . 001762
g46 102 001762
846 204 001762
Bas 202 001762 -
848 0P L001762
gs48  0T2 .001520
g4g 101 001762
a8 102 001762
848 201 ,001762
gag- 202 1001762
RS0 O -003872

CLERX'S KOIATION
Docuwent subnltted for vecord
i{n & condition not perwitting

| sstisfactory photographie repro-
duction,




SRR T

PERCENT DWNERSHI 19/238/81

UNIT PERCENT OUWNERSHIP
NUMEBER 0OF PROJECT
850 101 .002352
850 102 L 0017462
850 201 , 002382
858 202 001762
852 071 .001520 .
BSR WP2 L 002352 : .
. 852 10t .081762
8I2 182 , 002352 )
gsz 201 .001762
gse 208 . 002352
BS4 0Tt ,001520
854 0P2 c.pu1782
g54 101. , 0017862
854 108 . . 001762
854 201 . .001762
854 202 .001762
856 01 L0D1SE0
Bs6 072 001762
856 101 .001762
856 102 : 001762
856 201 ,001762
gss 202 ,0017862
858 0Tl 001762
gsg. 072 .001520 .
g58 101 .001762
; B8 102 .001762
i gss 201 ,001782
. 858 202 ) . 801762
840" 0Pt ,001762
860 02 L001520
Bal 101 001762
860 102, . 001762
860 201 001762
860 202 .001752
B62 _ OP! .081742
A2 072 L001520
862 101 ,001762
gs2 102 .B01762
862 201 001762
202 L001762 -
o™ 001762
oTa ,00135260
101 L001762
102 - L001762
201 001762
202 .001762
0P ,002352
mr2 ,00352¢0
101 ,002352
107 ,001762
201 002352
202 ,001762
0Tt ,001520

CLERR'S NOTATION
Dogument aubmitted for vscord
; in & condition not peruftting
{ #stlefectory photographic repro~
{ duction,




-r .

PERCEH{}I;R&JQ’L?QHE[QUB&SHZXNG . . 09/-;33}31' .

UNIT PERCENT OWNERSHIP

NUMBER OF PROJECT
B&B 0P 002352
B&8 101 L0R1762
868 102 . 002352
868 201 001762
8e8 202 .002352
870 0Ti 001520
870 O0T2 .081762
870 101 , 001762
870 102 001762
g70 =201 L001762
878 202 001762
872 071 001520
872 072 , 001762
g72 10t L001762
g7z 102 L 001762
g72 20t L001762
872 202 001762
874 0T} < ,001467
874 o2 001520
874 101 .001467
g74 102 001762 - : ) . B
g874. 201 : 0014867 ’ : : ‘
g74 202 001762
876 0Pt , 001520
876 072 ,0014987
876 101 L001762
876 102 L0011867 .
876 201 .001762
876 202 L001467
g0’ 0Tt © 001782
BAO 072 . 001520
880 101 L 001762
gen 102 L001762
gge  2m .001762
age 202 .0017a2
882 0?71 .001762
g8z 0P2 ,a01520
882 101 L 001782
sez 102 . 801762
aaz 201 ,001762
gpa 202 (001762 :
884 0P 001762
8H4 0OP2 001520
884 101 V001762
ag4 102 V001762
g84 201 1801762
884 202 001762
ggs 0Tt .001762
BB6 OPC ,001520
a8s 101 1801762
886 102 , 001762
886 201 (001242
age 202 001762

Total I of units = 538 Total Ownership = 1.0000

CLERK'S JOTATION
Docuvent yubmitted for record
, fa & condition not permicting
satizfactary photographlc reproe
ductlon,
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CORRECTIVE DECLARATION
HISC. 27.%
DIAMOND PARMS CONDOMINIUM ST cL
THIS CORRECTIVE DECLARATION, made and eniered Into this 28th day of
October, 1982, by DIAMOND PARMS ASSOCIATES, INC,, a Delaware corporation (the
"Deelarant"). R
WHEREAS, the Declarant has recorded among the Land Records of Montgomery "c ) i
County, Maryland, a certain Declaration for Diamond Farms Condominlum (the ;‘5-33 =Z
“Declaration), such Declaration being recorded on December 28, 1981, in Liber 5814, IEJ;: ~
Follo 603, gt seq.; and e S
WHEREAS, by virtue of a typographical error, there exists an Inconsistency et O
among the condominium plats set forth In Exhiblt "C" to the Declaration, the 535‘, -
“"Pereentage Interest in Common Elements, Common Profits, Common Expenses and 5""{;’ o
Votes - Phase 1" set forth In Exhibit "D¥ to the Declaration, and the "Percentage E™ -
Interests for Phases I and 11" set’Torth 10 Exhibit G" to the Declaration; and = F

WHEREAS, the Declarant wishes to conform Exhibit “"C" of the Declaration to
Exhibit "D¥ and Exhibit "G" of the Declaration; and

WHEREAS, the plat appearing on the [ifth page of Exhibit "C" to the Declaration
{Liber 5814, Follo 662) incorrectly deplets Unit 850-P1 asa single unit; and

WHEREAS, sald Unit 850-P1 Is actually two (2) units, to wit Unit 850-Pl
conteining approximately 1,363 square feet, and Unit 850-P2 containing approximately

881 square feel; and

WHEREAS, prior to the recordation hereof, the Declarant has flled {or record in
the Office of the Clerk of the Clrcult Court for Montgomery County, Marylend, a
corrective "Plat of Diamond Farms Condominjum®, consisting of one sheet and recorded
in Condominium Plat Book 2 & , at Plat 2970, which plat corrects the Condo-
mintum Plat recorded in Condominium Plat Book 25, at Plat 2628; and

WHEREAS, the Declarant wishes to conform Exhlbit "C" to the Declaration to the
corrective "Plat of Diamond Farms Condominium' filed for record In the Office of the
Clerk of the Circult Court in Montgomery County, Maryland,

NOW, THEREFORE, In consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars {$10.00) and for
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficlency of which the
Declarant does hereby acknowledge, the Declarant does hereby grant and deelare the

following:

1. The "Percentage Interests for Phases ! and II* of Unit No, "830-0P1" on the
seventh page of Exhibit "G" of the Declaration {Liber 5814, FPolio 889) {s modified to

read ".001520." .

L —
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. .2, Unit No, "830-0P2," previously omltted from the Declaration, is Inserted
following Unit No, "830-0P1" on the seventh page of Exhibit "G" of the Declaration
(Liber 5814, Follo 689) and the "Percentage Interests for Phases [ and II' appurtenant
thereto is .002352." ) ) )

3, The “Percehlage Interests In Common Elements, Common Profits, Common

Expenses and Votes - Phase I' of Unit No, "850-0P1" on the third page of Exhibit "D¥ to
the Declaration (Liber 5814, Polio 674) is modified to read "0.005250."

4,  Unit No, "850~0P2," previously omitted from the Declaration, Is inserted
following Unit No. "850-0P1" on the third page of Exhibit "D" of the Declaration (Liber
5814, Follo 673) and the “"Percentage Interests in the Common Elements, Common
Profits, Common Expenses and Common Votes” appurtenant thereto Is ¥0.003393."

5. The "Percentage Interests for Phases | and [I' of Unit No. "850-0P1" on the )

slghth page of Bxhibit "G" of the Declaration (Liber 5814, Pollo 690) Is modified to read
0.002352."

6.  Unit No. "850~0P2," previously omlitted [rom the Declaration, is friserted

préced!ng Unit No. "850-101" on the ninth page of Exhilbit "G" of the Declaration {(Liber
5814, Follo 691) and the "Percentage Interests for Phases 1 and 1" appurtenant thereto
is "0.001520."

7. The Condominium Plat appearing on the fifth page of Exhibit "C" of the
Declaration (Liber 5814, Polio 662) is amended by the Condominium Plat annexed
hereto as Altachment "A" to the Corrective Declaration.

Exeept as set forth hereln, the provislons of the Declaration shall remain In full
foree and effect, unmodified by this Corrective Declaration,

ATTEST: DIAMOND FARMS ASSOCIATES, INC,,
a Nelaware corporation

C::qti-lek Blew, Secretary-Treasurer

CORPORATE SEAL]

[



CUIT GOt

N
i’h. &

“ENS i

IR

LB Y e DT S LS LA 4 oy €5 4at St A e 1 oee 1 £

LRSS SE 2 PGB BN

STATE OF VIRGINIA

- CITY to wit:
:&&'OW OF SUFFOLK * -

" On this 29th day of October , ‘_lb82, beforé me, the ’undersi‘gned o

"6mce_r, personally. appeared Stephen B, Blythe, known to me (or satisfactorily proven) -~
" to be the person whose name is subscribed to the within Instrument and acknowledged

himsell to be President of Diamond Parins Associates, Ine., a Delaware corpordtion, and
that sald Stephen E, Blythe, as such President, being authorized to do so, executed the
foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained, by signing the numo;;o(‘:' the
corperation by himself as President. et

My Commission Expires: 7.2 3
[NOTARIAL SEAL]

STATE OF \\,\\\Q._.\\ awD

to wits
COUNTY OF  WMad\Shpna@q

On this 305 day of NN ALRSSE | 1982, before me, the underslgned
offlcer, personally appeared Patrick Blew, Known to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be
the person whose name Is subseribed to the within instrument and acknowledged himself
‘Treasurer of Diamond Parms Associates, Ine., a Delaware corpox;}?gkon,

do, 50,

to be Secretary-

and that sald Patrick Blew, as such Secretary-Treasurer, being authorized t_g_,.’
executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained, by sighty tjﬁe
name of the corporation by himself as Sceretary-Treasurer, 'E{f Tk

& a6’

My Commission Expires: _1~L ¥ il gt
[NOTARIAL SEAL) *
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PARCEL IDENTIFIER RIDER

. Address of Declarants: X 3 Diamond Farms-Assoclates, inc..
- i . ) 824 Quince Orchard Boulevaxd .
Suite 101 ’

Gaithersburg, Maryland 20878 e

Address of Properties:

1. Entire parcel is known as: piamond Farms Condominiums
Office address:
824 Quince Orchard Boulevard
Suite 101
Gaithersburg, Maryland 20878

2. Unit 830 OPl is known as: 830 Quince Oxchard Boulevard
- Unit pl

Gaithersburg, Maryland 20878

3. Unit 850 OPl is known as: 850 Quince Orchard Boulevard
Unit Pl

Gaithersburg, Maryland 20878

Title Insurer: Not applicable

Parcel Identifiers (tax account numbers):

1. Parcel identifier numbers of
original Declaration which
this document corrects: 9-244-1907325
3-206~2101572
9-206-2101561
9-206-1726471 *

2. Parcel identifier of Unit
830 OPl whose percentage
interest is corrected by - ’
this Declaration: 9-249-2265675

3. Parcel identifier number of
Unit 850 OPl whose percentage
interest is corrected by this
Declaration: 9-249-2166260
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LERCH, EARLY & RUSEMAN

AL WIREONE AVERUL
BETHEADA, MAAYLIND I8
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_ EXHIBIT A
SECTION I

All that tract of land and premises situate in Election
pistrict Number 9, Montgomery County, in the State of Maryland,
being part of Lot 1, Block "A", Plat One, Diamond Farm, as
recorded in Plat Book 84 at Plat 8748 among the land records for
?ontgomery County, Maryland, and being further described as

ollows:

-Beginning for the same_at the intersection of the
gasterly line of said Lot 1, Block "A", and the southerly 'line
of ‘Quince Orchard Boulevard, as shown on said plat, . sald point

~“also being the northeasternmost corner -of -8aid Lot 1, "and the

easterly terminus of curve number 7 as shown on .said plat, and
running then with curve number 31, asg shown on said.plat, being
a curve to the right with a radius .of 2400 .feet a distance of
1046.,45 Feet, chord, South 13° 337 12" West, 1038.18 feet, to a
point of reverse curvature; thence with a portion of curve
number 30, as shown on said plat, being a curve to the left with
a radius of 2400 feet a distance of 2B8.05 feet, chord, Socuth
22° 36! 22" West, 287,87 feet; thence leaving said curve number
30 and crossing said Lot 1, North 77° 58' 13" West, 663.73 feet,
to intersect curve number 16 as shown on said plat at a point on
the southeasterly line of Quince Orchard Boulevard; thence with
said line of Quince Orchard Boulevard and . a portion of said
curve number 16, being a curve to the left with a radius of
470,00 feet a distance ofF 150.09 feet, chord, North 32° 31' 43¢
East, 149.45 Ffeet, to a point of tangency; thence leaving said
curve and said line of Quince Orchard Boulevard with the three
following lines coursing in the interior of said Lot 1, South
77° %8' 13" East, 294.19 feet; thence North 12° 01' 47" EBast,
225.00 feet; thence, North 77° 58' 13" West, 285.00 feet, to
intersect the southeasterly line of Quince Orchard Boulevard;
thence with said line, North 12° 01' 47* Bast, 517.50 feet, to
the point of curvature of curve number 13, as shown on said
plat; thence with said curve, being a curve to the right with a
radius of 350,00 feet a distance of 456,54 feet; chord, Worth
49°¢ 23' 54" Bast, 424,86 Feet, to a point of compound curvature;
thence with curve number 10, as shown on sald plat, being a
curve to right with a radius of 4330,00 feet a distance of
358,13 feet, chord, North B89° 08' 10" Bast, 358.03 feet, to a
point of reverse curvature; thence with curve aumber 7, as shown
on said plat being a curve to the left with a radius of 470.00
feet a distance of 78.66 feet, chord, North B6° 42' 40" East,
78.57 feet, to the point of beginning, containing 17.93 acres,
subject to restrictions and conveyances of record,

© SECTION II

Part of lot numbered One (1) in Block lettered "A" in the sub-
division known as "PLAT ONE, DIAMOND FARM", -as per plat thereof
recorded in Plat Book 84 at Plat Number 8748, one of the Land
Records of Montgomery County, Maryland, and being more ~par-
ticularly described as follows: BEGINNING on the easterly line
of Quince Orchard Boulevard, 70 feet wide, at the north point of
curvature of curve number 19 as shown on "Plat One, Diamond
Farm", as recorded in Plat Book B84 at Plat 8748 among the
aforesaid land records, and running with said line of Quince
Orchard Boulevard North 47 degrees 39 minutes 45 seconds East
254,43 feet; thence on the arc of a curve to the left with a
radius of 470,00 feet a distance of 49.10 feet, chord North 44
degrees 40 minutes 13 seconds East 49.08 feet; thence leaving
said line of Quince Orchard Boulevard and crossing Lot 1, Block
"A", as shown on the aforesaid plat South 77 degrees 58 minutes
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. 13 seconds East 663.73 feet to intersect curve number 30, as |
i shown on aforesald plat; thence with said curve on the arc of a
curve to the left with a radius of 2400,00 feet a distance of
308.00 Feet, chord South 15 degrees 29 minutes 28 seconds West |
307,79 feet; thence again crossing sald Lot 1 North 77 degrees |
58 minutes 13 seconds West 120,00 feet; thence South 12 degrees !
01 minutes 47 seconds West 53,00 feet; thence North 77 degrees
58 minutes 13 seconds West 180.00 feet; thence on the arc of’a . -0
curve to the right with a radius of -130.00- feet a distance-of !
60.00 feet, chord North 64 degrees 44 minutes 54 seconds West .

;- 59.47 feet, thence South 38 degrees 28 minutes 26 seconds West |

. 40,00 feet; thence South 12 degrees 01 minutes 47 séconds West .-
- © 118.00 feet; thence North 77 degrees 58 minutes 13 seconds.West
82.00 feet; thence North 12 degrees 01l minutes 47 seconds East
95,00 feet; thence North 77 degrees 58 minutes 13 seconds West
82,00 Eeet; thence South 12 degrees 0l minutes 47 seconds West
520.00 feet; thence North 77 degrees 58 minutes 13 seconds West
80.00 feet; thence South 12 degrees 01 minutes 47 seconds- West
98.00 feet; thence North 77 degrees 58 minutes 13 seconds West
125.26 feet to intersect curve number 22, as shown on aforesald
plat; thence with said curve on the arc of a curve to the right
with a radius of 3000,00 feet a distance of 122,89 feet, chord :
North 24 degrees 56 minutes 25 seconds West 122.88 feet to a
point of compound curvature; thence on the arc of a curve to the
right with a radius of 580,00 feet a distance of 723.07 feet,
chord North 11 degrees 56 minutes 52 seconds East 677.15 feet to
the beginning, containing 11.6623 acres.

6

Being the same property described in Deed of Trust from panac |
Real Estate Investment Corporation to T. Wm. Blumenauer, Jr.
and - Clarence E, Kefauver, Jr., as Trustees, dated May 27, 1870
and recorded May 27, 1970 in Liber 3964 at follo 445,

SECTION IIT

All that land situvate in the City of Gaithersburg, Mont-
gomery County, Maryland being part of lot 1 in Block "A" DIAMOND !
FARM (PLAT ONE) as recorded {n Plat Book 84 at Plat 8748 among
the land records of said Montgomery County, more particularly
described as follows: '

Beginning for the same at a point on the easterly side of :
Quince Orchard Boulevard at the northerly end of curve number 16
as shown in Plat Book B4 at Plat 8748 and running thence with :
the easterly side of Quince Ocrchard Boulevard N.  12° 01' 47" E,
132,50 feet; thence through lot 1 the Eollowing three courses
and distances; ' :

1. 8, 77° 58*f 13" E, 285.00 feet; : o o

2, S§. 12° 01' 47" W, 225,00 feet; . i

3, N, 77°58' 13" W, 294,19 feet to a point on the afore-
mentioned curve number 16; thence with the easterly side of
Quince Orchard Boulevard on the arc of a curve to the left with |
. . a radius of 470,00 feet a distance of 93.11 feet to the
. beginning,  containing 1.48 acres subject to restrictions of
g . record, Co
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BYLAWS ]
or '
COUNCIL OF UNIT OWNERS
oF . _i
DIAMOND FARMS CONDOMINIURL

ARTICLE !
PLAN OF CONDOMINIUM OWNERSHIP

Scelion 1. The Condominium. The Property deseribod on Exbibit "A" 1o the
Declaration has been estublished as a Condominium pursuant to the Act. These Bylaws
are alinched to and made part of the Declaration as Exhibit "B* and are intended by the
Deelarant to sat forth, Iater alin, a plan by which the ntfairs of Lhe Condominium shall
be administered and governed by the Unit Owners' Associntion pursuant to Whe Act.

) Seetion 2. Definitions, In these Bylaws, ell words shall have the same megnings
as designaled in the Decluration unloss othierwise apparent fromn the conlext, provided
that the Council of Unit Owners shail be sometimes designated in these Bylaws as the
"Assaciation".

Section 3. Applicability of Byluws. The provisions of these Bylaws nre applicable
to the Association and to the Condominium. Al present and [uture Unit owners, lessees
and occupants of Units, and any other persons who may use the Property or the
fucilities of the Condominium in any inanner, are subjeet lo these Bylaws, the De-
elnpation and the rules and regulations {hereinafter called the "Rtules und Regulations™
from time to time promulgated by the bourd of direclors (hereinafter ealled the "Bourd
of Dircctors® and cach member thereof n "member or a "Dircetor”) of the Association.
The uceeplance of a deed of conveyance o o Unit shall constitute an ngreement thnt
these Bylnws, the Rules and Regulations and the provisions of the Declaration, as they

may be nmended from time to time, are accepted, ratified and will be complied with,

ARTICLE I =
COUNCIL OF UNIT OWNERS

Section 1. Purpose and Stalus of Association. - The purpose of the Association
shall be to operate ond maintain the Property for the benefit of the Unit owners and to
cxorcise the powers conferred upon it by the Act and these Bylaws. The Association
shall be an unincorporated entity.

-1-
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Section 2, Name and Muiling Address.  The Association hereby organized nnd
formed for the purposes set forth above shall be known as "Couneil of Unit Owners of
Diamond Farms Condominiim®.  Unless changed from time (o time by the Board of
Dircetars, the office and mailing address of the Associntion and the Board of Direetors
shnll be located at 780 Quinee Orehnrd Boulevard, Gaithersburg, Maryland 20878,

Scetlon 3. Powers of the Associntion. 'The Association shall have all of those
powers enumerated in Section H-109(d) of the Act, as the same may be umended from
time to time, Al powers residing in lhe Association, execpt for sueh as in the Acture
oxpressly reserved to the Association, shall be delegated to and exercised by the Board
of Dircctors of the Association and/or the nanaging agent cinployed by the Boord of
Directors on behalfl of the Association, .

Scction 4. Members, The Associntion shall have as its members every person,
group of persons, corporation, trust or other legal enlity, or any combination thercof,
who or which owns a Unit {hicrein ealled "Unit owner'); provided, however, that any
person, group of persons, corporation, trust or other legal cntily, or any combination
thercof, who or which holds such interest solely as securily for the performance of an
obligation shall not be a member solely on account of such interest.

Scetion 5. Annual Meetings. Within ninety (90) days after the expiration of one
(1} year from the date of recordation of the. Declaration, or “after deeds to Units
representing fifty. percent (50%) of the Percentage Interests-in-the common elements
have been delivered by the Deelurant and title closed thereon, whichever first occurs,
or upon such carlicr date as the Declarant may establish, the Deelarant shall notily the
Unit owners and the Tirst annual meeting of the Association shall be held within thirty
(30). days. Notice of such meeting shall be given in accordance with the provisions of
Scetijon 8 of this Artiele II. Subscquent annual meetings of the Associntion should be
held on the same date of each yenr as the first annual inceling, unless such date shall
oceur on n Saturdiuy or Sunday or holiday, in which event the meeting shail be held on
the next succeeding Monday whieh is not n holiday. '

" Scetion 6. Special Meetings. 1t shall be the duty of the President ol the Asso-
cintion to call a speeinl meeting (a) if so directed by resolution of the Board of Dirce-
tors, or (L) upon a petition signed and presented to the Seeretary of the Associntion by
Unit owners having nol less than twenty-five pereent (25%) of the perceintage interests
in the common clements of the Condominium; provided, however, that except on
resolution of the Bontd of Dircetors, no speeial meetings shall be ealled prior Lo the
first noounl meeting of the Association as hereinabove provided for. No business shall
be transacted at o speeial mecting exeept such as shall have been stated in the notice
therecof.

Saction 7, Pluec of Meetings. Meetings of the Associalion shall be held at the

principal office of the Association or at such other suitable place convenient lo the
Unit owners as may be designated in the notice of meeting by the Board of Directors.
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Seetion 8. Notiee of Meetings. 1t shall be the duty of the Seerctary to mail o
notice of cach nnnual or specitl meeting of the Associntion at lenst fifteen (1) but not
more than forty (40) duys prior to such meeting, stating the purpose thercol us well a5’
the time and pluce where it is to be held, to cach Unit owner of record, nt his nddress
shown on the roster (hereinalter called the fRoster") required io be kept pursuunt lo
Scetion 11-109(¢) of ihe Act. If the purpose of any meeting shall be to act upon a pro=
posed amendment Lo the Declnration or to these Bylaws, the notice of ineeting shall be
mailed nt least thirty (30) days prior to such meeting.  ‘The mailing of a notice of
meeting in the manner provided in {his Seation shull be considered service of notice as
of the date of such mailing. In nddition to the mailing. of notice of eneh annual and
speeial meeting, nolice mny be personnily delivered to cacli Unit owner at his ‘address
a5 shown on the Roster. Service of notice shall be proven by affidavit. 6f the person
serving such nolice. Altendance by & Unit owner at # meeting In person or by proxy

_ shiall constitute waiver of notice of the time, place and purposes of sich meeting.

Section 8. Adjournment of Meeting, If any meocting of the Associution cannot be -
held beeause u quorum of members has not attended, a majority of the Unit ownets in
pereentage interest in the coinmon clements of the Condominium who are present at
such meeting, cither in person or by proxy, may adjourn the meeting to a time nol less
than foriy-cight (48) hours from the time the original meeting was colled. No [urther
notice thereof shall be required.

Scetion 10, Order_of Rusiness e order of business at all meetings of (e
Association shall be us follows: :

(2} Roll call.

(b) Proof of notice of meeting.

{(¢) Rending of minutes of preceding meeting.

(d) Reports of oflicers.

{¢} Recport of Board of Dircetors.

() Reports of commitlecs. ‘

() Appointment of inspector of cleetion {when so requived).

() Nomination of Dircetors from the floor {when so required).

(i)  Election of members of the Board of Directors {when so required).
(%  Unfinished business,

k) Noew business.

-3~
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In the case of u speeinl meeting, items (n) theough (d) shall be applicable, and
therenfter the agendn shall consist of the items speeified in the notice of meetiug.

Scetion 1. Voling. Each Unit owner, or the person designated by such Unit owner
to net as proxy on his behalf {and who need not be a Unit owner), shull be entitled Lo
cast the vote appurtenant te his Unit (his Pereentage Interest in the Associntion) at all
mectings of the Associntion. The designation of any such proxy shall be made In writing
to the Sceretary, shall be revoenble al any time by written notice to the Sceretary by
the Unit owner so designating  the proxy, and shall aitomatically expire one hundred
cighty (180) days following its issuance unless granted to s mortgagee of lessce. In the.
ease of & Unit which is owned by more than one person or entity, any or all of suelr
owners may be present at any mecting of the Association and {(those constituting @
group acting unanimously} may vote or tnke any other action as &t Unit owner, cither in
person or by proxy. A Tiduciory shall be the voling member with respect {o any Unit
owned in a fiduciary capacity. Where title to a Unit is in more than one person or
entity, such mulliple owners shall be entitled to eust, in the aggregate and as a solid
block, the vole allocated to the Unit. If such multiple ovners shell be unable to agree
upon their vote upon any subject al any meeling, they shall lose their right to vote on
such subjeet, but if e}l of them shall not be preset at a meeting, cither in person or by
proxy, the collective vote of the onc or more present shall be the vote of all of the
owners of the Unit. Whenever the vole of the Unil owners at o meeting is required or
permitted by any provisions of the Act, the Declarntion or by these Bylaws to be taken,
the meeting und vote of Unil owners may be dispensed with if all-of the Unil owners
who would have been enlitled to vote thereat upon the netion, if such meeling were
held, consent in writing to such action being taken.

A Unit owner shall not be entitled to vole at any meeting of the Association if the
Association has recorded a stntement of condominium lien with respeet to his Unit in
accordanee wilh Seetion =110 of the Act, and the amount neeessnry to release such lien
has not been peid as of the date of the meeting. .

No Unit owner shall be entitied to vote at o meeting of the Assoeiation unless and
until he shall have furnished the Association with his name and current mailing address.
for listing on the Roster in accordance with Seetion 1-108{(c} of the Act. -

Soction 12. Majority of Unit Owners. As used in these Bylaws, the term "majority
of Unit owners" shall mean those Unit owners having more than [ifty percent (60%) of
the total authorized voles of all Unit owners present, in person or by proxy, und voting
‘at any meeting of the Association. :

Scetion 13. Quorum. Exeepl as otherwise provided in these Bylaws or in the Act,
the presence in person or by proxy of Unit owners having more than lwenty-five percent |
{25%) of the total authorized votes of all Unit ownars constitules a quorum at all meet-
ings of the Association. .
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Section 1. Majority Vole. The vote of a majority of the t-dui uultlp;ri'/.éd votes of
..Uni_t owners present at o meeting which has been duly calied shall be biding upon-all
Unit owners for all-purposes exeepl where in the Declnrintion; under the Act or pursuant

to these Bylaws a higher percentage vole is required. 7

Scction 15. Liquidation Rights. In the event of -any. voluntary or involuntary -
dissolution of {he Associntion, cnch Unit owner shall be entitled & reccive out of "the '
assets of the Associntion available for distribution to the members thercof an amount
cqual to his Pereentage Intercst in the common profits and common expenses of the
Association.

ARTICLE I
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. Number and Qualifiention. ‘The affalrs of the Associntion shall be
governed by a Board of Directors acting on Lehalf of the Associntion. Until the first
anaual meeting of the Associntion as provided for in Article 1, Section 5, of lhese
Bylaws, and therea{ter until their succossors shall have been elected by the Unit
owners, the Board of Direclors shall consist of three (3) meinbers to be designuled by
the Declarant. Therealter, the Board of Dircctors shall be composed of five (8)
members, all of whom shall be clected by the Unit oivners.

Scetion 2. Powers and Duties, The Board of Dircetors shall have and shall
exercise the powers and duties of the Associntion as set forth in Artiele U, Section 3
hereof, and may do ell sueh acls snd things exeept as by law or by the Declaration or by
these Bylaws may nol be delegated to the Board of Dircclors by lhe Unit owners.
Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Board of Dircetors' powers shall
Include the following:

{a) Opecration, care, upkeep and maintenance of the common clements.-

(b}  Determination of the common expenses requived for the affairs of the
Associntion.

() Collection of the common charges and expenses from the Unitl owners.

(8) Employment and dismissat of the personncl nceessary for the main- )
tenanee and operation of the common elements. . -

{e) Opening of bank uecounts on behalf of the Association and designating
the signniorics required therefor

()  Purchasing of Units at foreclosure ar olher judicial snle in the name of
the Board of Dircetors, or Its designee, carporate or otherwise, on behalf of the
Associntion.
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{r)  Obtaining of insurance for the Property.

{h}  Making of repairs, ndditions, replacements and jmprovements lo or
alterations of the common elements in acecordance with the other provisions of these
Bylaws ufter damage or destruetion by fire or other easualty, or as a result of condem-
" nation or eminent domain proceedings. )

()  Enacting uniforin Rules and Regulations [rom time to time for the use
of the Properly, as well as the conduct and the enjoyment of the Unit owners; provided,
however, that no sueh Rules or Regulations so adopted shall be in conflict with the Aet -
or the Declaration or these Bylnws; and provided f{urther that no such Rules or
Regulations shall be so construed so as to impair In any manner the lien of any
mortguge or deed of trust with respect to any Unit and/or-the common clenents i such
Rules or Regulations are promulgated after the recordation of snid mortgage or deed of
trust. Without limiting the generality of the Bourd of Dircetors' right. to promulgate
Rules and Regulations ns nforesuid, and unless the Doard of Dirceldrs clééts to make
the provisions of Scetion 11-111 of the Act applicable lo the adoption of such Rules and
Repulations, until the first annual meeting of the Association as provided for in Article
1, Scction 5, of these Bylaws, the Board of Dircetors may {without hearing or vote of or
by the Unit owners), at any meeting duly called by the Bourd of Dircctors, promulgate
such Rules nnd Regulalions as the Board of Dircclors may decm necessury in
necordance with these Bylaws. The procedures set forth in these Bylaws for the
promulgation of ‘Rules und Regulations are in lieu of those sel farth in Seetion 11-111 of
the Aet. Such Rules and Regulations, when adopled, shall have the same force and
effeet as if they were Incoeporated in these Bylaws by dircet reference nnd may be
enforeed in the saine manner as all other provisions of the Bylaws, except thal only a
mejority vote of the Board of dircctors shall be needed to amend, modify, delete or
repluce any such Rules and Regulations, such ection not requiring the consent of Unit
owners as is Lhe cuse with minendments to these Bylaws,

(j)  Enforcing obligations of Unit owners, allocuting common profits and
common expenses, if any, and doing anything and everything clse nceessary and proper
- for the sound management of the Property. In this connection, the Bonrd of Dircetors
shall have the power to levy fines against Unlt owners for viclations of the Rules and
Regulations. No fine may be levied for more than Five Dollars {$5.00) for any one (1)
violation; but for cach day that s violation continues, efter notice, it shall be
considered a separate violation. Collection of fincs mny be enforced against the Unit
awner or Unit owners involved as if the [ines arc u common charge owed by the
perticular Unit owner or Unit owners. Where a Unit owner persists in violaling the
Rules and Regulations, the Bonrd of Directors may require him to post a bond, satis-
factory to it, to scenre future compliance with the Rules and Regulations.

(k)  Controlling the use of all common clemnents, including, but nol limiled
to, designating parking spnces thereon for use by Unit owners and/or their guests.

-f-
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(1) Establishing reasonuble reserve funds for emergencies and unforescen
contingencies and for the repuir and replacement of comman clements.

(m) Notify eligible morilgage holders of any defuull hereunder by the Unit
owiter subject Lo such morlgoge or deed of trust, in the event such defanlt continues for
u period excecding sixty (60} dnys. . . v

: {n) - Borrow money on behalf of the Cendominium when required in
connection with any one instanee relating to the operation, care, upkeep and
maintenance of the common elements, provided, however, that the consent of at lenst.
two~thirds in number and in Percentage Interest of all Unit -owners, ‘obtuined at- a
meeting duly ealled and held for such purpose in accordance with the provisions of these
Bylaws, shall be required to borrow any sums aggregating more than ‘Ten Thousand
Dollars. If any sum borrowed by the Board of Dircetors on behnlf of the Condominium
pursuant to the authority contained in this paragraph (n) is not repuid by the Unit
Owners Association, a Unit owner who pays to lhe creditor a percentoge of the total
amount due equal to his Pereenlage Interest in (he Condominium shall be entitled 1o
oblain from the creditor o release of any judgment or. other lien which such creditor
shall have filed or shall have the right to file against such Unit owner's Condominium
Unit.

. {0)  Acquire, hold and dispose of Condominium Units and morigage the
snme if such ekpenditures and hypotheeations are ineluded in the budget udopted by the-
Unit Owners Association.

{p)  Furnish the statement reguired by Scetion 11-135(8) of the Aet, within
twenty deys after the receipt of o writlen request therefor from any Uil owner and
receipt of the fee, therefore, if any.

() Teke uny aclion necessary to abate or remove, anywhere within the
common clements {including the Himiled common clements) uny violation of any lederal,
state or local law, ordinance or regulation,

(r) . Do sueh other things snd ncls not inconsistent with the Aet, the
Deelaration or these Bylaws us the Board of Direclors may be authorized lo do by a
resolution of the Unit Owners Associalion.

Section 3. Manaping Agent. ‘The Board of Directors shall employ for the Asso-
ciation a professional managing agent at 8 compenasation established by the Board of
Directors. The Managing Agent shall perform such duties and serviees as the Board of
Direclors shall nuthorize, including, but not limited to, the duties listed in Seetion 2 of -
this Article, except that the Board of Direclors may nol delegate those powers and
duties set forth in paragraphs (e), (), (i), (n) and {0} of Article I, Section. 2. The Board
of Direclors shall not underlake "self-management” or otherwise fail to employ a
professional manuging agent without the prior written approval of owners of Units to
which al least sixty-seven percent (679%) of the votes in the Associntion arc alloeated
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und the approval of ecligible moriguge holders representing fifty-one pereent (51%) of
the votes in the Assoeintion. All manngement sgreements entered into on behalf of the
Associntion shall (a) be for o term not in excess of one (1) year, (b) provide that either
parly may teeminate the agreement, withoul cause, upon ninety (90) duys' weitten
notice {ond without a termination fee), (¢} provide that the Board of Dircctors may, for
cause, terminnte such angreement upon thirty (38) days' written notice (without n
termination fee} and {d) provide for rencwal upon ngreement by the parties for -
suceessive one {I)-year periods. .

) Seetion 4. .Election and Term of Office. The Dircetars of-the Assodiniion who
" shall be designated by the Declarant in nccordance with Articlé I, Seetion 1; above,
‘shall hold office at the plensure of the Declarant,-and.othérwise uatil the first anniial
meeting of the Association ns provided for in Article.l,.Section-5;-of those Bylaws. )

Al the Tirst annual meeting of the Assoclation, five (§) meinbers of the Board of -
Directors shall be eclected by the Unit owners from among the Unit owners, Com-
imeneing with the first annual meeting of the Association, the terin of office of the two
(2) Dircetors receiving the grentest nunber of votes shall be fixed for two (2) years.
The terms of offiee of the remnining Dircctors shall be fixed nt one (1) year. At the
cxpiration of the initial term of offiee of cach respective Dircetor, his suceessor shall
be cleeted Lo serve o term of two (2) years. Each Direetor shall hold office until the
next meeting of the Board of Directors following the election of his stceessors How-
ever, n member of the Board of Dircetors shall be deemed to have resigned whenever
such member, his spouse, or firm, corporation or other cntity he is associnted with, sells
tie Unit whieh qualified such individual o become n member of the Board of Directors.

Mombers of the Bonrd of Directors shall be elected by seeret ballot.

Section 5. Removal of Members of the Board of Directors. Al sny regular or
specinl meeting of the Association after the first annual meeting of the Association,
any one or mare of the members of the Bonrd of Direetors elected by the Unit owners
may be removed, will or without cause, by a majority of the Unit owners. Any member
of the Board of Directors whose removal has been proposed by the Unit owners shall be
given an opportunity to.be heard al the meeting. The term of office of any Dircetor
who bevomes more than forty-five (45) days delinguent in (he poyment of common
charges agninst the Unit of which he is the owner shall automatieally lerminate on the
forty-usixth (46th) dny, and his suceesser shall thereupon be appointed by the Board of
Divectors from among the Unit owners lo fill out the unexpired portion of his term. A
majority of the Board of Dircclors may remove any Direclor who has inissed three (3)
conseeutive meetings. A Unil owner may remove & Board member of the Board of
Directors designated by him, at any time, with or without cause, by written notificntion
to the Board of Direelors specilylng the dale of such removal and the name of the
individunl designated to succeed the member so removed. -

Secetion 6. Vacancies. Vacancies on the Board of Directors shall be filled by véte
of n majority of the remnining Dircetors at a specisl meeting of the Board of Direetors
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held for that purpose promplly after the oceurrence of any such vacaney, even though
the members present at such meeting maoy constitute less than o quorum, und coach
person so clected shall be a member of the Board of Direclors for Uhe remapinder of the
term of the predecessor member, and until a successor shall be clected at the next
annual meeting of the Associntion.

Seetion 7. Organlzation Meeting.  The first regular meéling of lhe Board of
Dircetors following an annunt meeling of the Unil owners shall be held within ten (10) -
days thercaflter, at such time and plnce as shall be fixed by o majority of the members.
of the Board of Dircctors, and no notice shall be nevessary -{o the newly elecled
meinbers of the Board of Dircelors in order legally to constitute sueh meeting, provided
that a majorily of the whole Bonrd of Directors shall be present thereal,

Scetion 8. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of e Board of Dircetors may be
held at sueh time and place as shall be determined from time to time by a majorily of
the members of the Bouard of Directors, butl al least two (2) sueh meetings shall be held
during cach fisenl year. Notice of regular imeelings of the Hoard of Dircelors shall be
given to cach member of the Bourd of Divcetors, personnlly (in writing), by mail or by
telegeaph, at least five (8) days prior to the day named for such meeoting.

Scetion 8. Speeial Meetings. Speeial ineetings of the Board of Dircetors inay be
called by the President of Lhe Association on three (3) business -duys' notice to each
member of the Board of Dircetors, given by mail, personally &n writing) or by
telegraph, which notice shall state the time, place and purpose of the meeting. Special
meetings of the Doard of Dircctors shall be called by the President of the Association in
like manner and on like notice on the written request of at least two (2) members of the
Board of Dircctors.

Section 10, Waiver of Notice. Any member of the oard of Direclors may at any
titne waive notiee of any mecting of the Board of Dircetors, in writing, und sueh walver
shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice. Attendunce by u member of
the Board of Dircelors at any meeting of the Board shall constitute & waiver ol notice
by him of the time, pluce nnd purpose thereof. If ull the wembers of the Board of
Pivectors ave present at any meeting of the Board, 1o notice shall be required and any
business may Le transacted al sueh meeling.

Scction 1. Quorum of Board of Directors. At all mcetings of the Hourd of
Directors, & majority of the members thereof shall constitute & quorum for the truns-
netion of business, and the votes of a majority of the members of the Board of
Dircctors present at a eeting el which a quorum is present shall constitute the
decision of the Bonrd of Dircetors, If al any meeting of the Board of Directors there
shall be less than a quorum present, a majority of those preseat may adjourn the
meeting from timie to time. Al any such adjourncd meeting at which a quorwmn is’
present, any business which might have been transneted at the meeting originally called
may be transected withiout further notice. .

-9-
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Section 12, Fidelity Bonds. 'The Board of Directors shall oblain and maintain
adequute fidelity coverage against dishonest acls on the puart of dircetors, munagers,
trustees, employees or volunteers responsible {or handling funds belonging to or ndmint~
stered by the Couneil of Unit Owners. Where the Association has delegnted some or alf
of Lhe responsibility for the handling of funds to a management ngent, such coverage is
required. for the management agent's officers, employees und agents handling o re-
sponsible for funds of, or administered on behall of, the Association. ~Tlie fidelity bond-
or insurance mustname the Couneil of Unit Owners as the.neméd jnsured and shall be
written-in an amount sufficient to provide proteetion which-is-in.no éventTess thin one
nnd one-Hiall times the insurcd's estimnted annual operaiing expenses and reserves or a

‘whichever is greater, and shall contain waivers of any defense tased upoh the exelusion
of volunteers or other persons who serve without compensation from any definition of
"employece® or similar oxpression. In connection with such coverage, an appropriate
endorsement to the policy to cover any persons who serve without compensation shall
be ndded if the policy would not otherwise cover volunteers.’ Premitns on the fidelity
coverage shall be paid by the Couneil of Unit Owners ns a common cxpense. The
fidelity bond or insucance oy not be canceled or substantially modified without at
least ten (10) duys' prior wrilten notice to any Insurance Trustee and cuch Morigagee.

Scction 13. Compensution. No member of the Board of Dircctors shall reccive any
compensation for aeling as such, but a Director may be reimbursed for nctunl oul-of-
pocket expenses ineurred by him in the proper performance of his dutics,

Seetion 14, Liabilitv of the Board of Direelors, Officers, Unit Owners and Unit
Owners Associntion; Indemnificulion,

@) The members of the Doard of Direclors; Covenants Commitice and
Officers of the Association shall not be linble to the Unit owners or the Association for
any mistake of judgment, negligence, or otherwise, cxcept for their own individual
wiltful misconduct or bad (aith.

{b) The Associntion shall indemnify every Director and officer egainst any
and all expenses, including counsel fees, reasonably incurred by or imposed upon any Di-
rector in conneelion withh any action, sull or other procecding (including the settlement
of any such suit or proceeding if approved by the then Board of Dircetors of the Asso-
eiation) te which he may be made a parly by reason of being or having been 4 Director
of the Associalion, whether or not such person is a Director at the tine such oxpenses
are incurrcd. The Doard of Directors shall obtain adequnte direetors und officers in-
surance. The Dircetors of the Association shall have no personal linbility with respeet -
1o any contract or other commitment made by them, in good faith, on behalfl of the
Assotintion {except in their copacily as Unit owners) and the Associution shall
indemnily and forever hold each such Dircctor free and harmless against any nnd nll
Hability to others on account of any such contraet or-commitment. Any right to
indemnifleation provided for herecin shall not be exclusive of any other rights to which
ahy Director of the Association or former Direelor of the Association may be entitled.

wl -

sum-cqual.do three (3) months' aggregate assessinenis -on all unils plus reserve funds,
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The Associntion shall indemnify und hold harmless ecach of the members of the
Covenants Committee from und against all Hability to others arising out of the due
exercise of, their responsibilities unless their action shall have been in bud fnith or
contrury to the Act, the Declarntion or these Bylnws.

Scetion 15, Action Withoul Moeting, Any action required or permitied o be
teken by the Bonrd of Dircetors at any meeling may be taken without a meeting if all
‘of the members of -the Bonrd of Directors shall individually or.colleetivgly consent in
writing to such action. Such writlen consent or conscnts shall befiled with the minutes

_.of lhe proceedings of the Bourd of Directors. e S T

Section 16. Common _or Interested Direetors. The Directors. shall exereisc their .
powers and duties in good faith and with a view to the intergsts of the Association and
consistent with the purposes set forth in the Declifation. . No_codtraet or other
transaction between the Association and one or more of its Dircetors, or between the
Associntion and any corporation, firm, entily or associnlion in whieh one or more of the
Pircetors are directors or officers or are pecunlarily or otherwise interested, shall be
either void or voidable beeause sueh Director or Dircctars are present at the meeling of
the Bourd of Dircclors or any commitice thereof which authorizes or approves the
conlraet or transnction, or becuuse his or their votes are counted for such purpose, if
such action complics with the provisions of Section 2-41¢ of the Corporations and
Associations Article of the Annotnled Code of Maryland (1981 Cum. Supp.)-or its sue-
cessor siatule, - - ’ - ~

Scetion 17. Bourd as Allornev-in-Facl. ‘The Bonrd of Direclors is hereby ir-
revocably appointed as attorney-in-fnet for the owners of all of the Units, and for ench
of them, to manage, control and denl with the interests of such owners in the common
clements of the Condominium so as 1o pernil the Board of Dircctors to fulfill all of its
powers, functions and duties under the pravisions of the Act, the Deelaration and these
Bylaws, and to exercise nil of its rights thercunder und to deal with the Property upon
its destruction and/or the proceeds of any insurance indemnity ns hereinafter provided
und Lo grant casements in accordanee wilh Artiele X1 hereof. The foregoing shall be
deemed Lo be o power of attorney coupled with an interest, and the aceeptance by any
person or entily of any interest in any Unit shall constitute an appointment of the Board
of Dircctors ns atlorney-in-fact as aforesaid.

ARTICLE 1V
OFFICERS

Section 1. Designation. ‘The principal officers of the Association shall be the
President (who shall niso act us chairman of the Bourd of Dircctors of the Association),
the Vice President, the Secretary, ond the Treasurer, all of whom shall be elected by
the Board of Dircctors. The Bonrd of Dircetors may appoint un assistant treasurer, an
assistont sceretary, and such other officers us In ils judgment may be neeessary or
desirable. The President and Yiee President, but no other officers, must be members of .

-1i~
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the Board of Dircetors. The offices of President und Treasurer may not be held by the
S8IC Person,

Scction 2. Election of Officers. The officers of the Assoelation shall be eleeted
annually by the Board of Directors and shall hold of fice at the pleasure of lhe Board of
Direetors.

Scelion 3. Removal of Officers. Upon the aflirmalive vote of o mijority of the
members of the Bonrd of Dircetors, any officer may. be removed, cithier with or without
eause, ‘and. his successor may be clected at any degulae meeting -of the Board of
Direelors or nt any speeial meeting of the Board of Direcctors ealled for such purpose.

‘Seation 4. President. The President shall be the chief . execulive nnd operoling
‘officer of the Associntion. He shall preside al all meetings of the Associalion. e shall
have ull of the general powers and duties which are incident to the office of president
of u stoek corporalion organized and existing under the laws of the State of Maryland.

Scetion 5, Viee President.  The Vice President shall iake the place of the
President and perform his duties whenever the President shall be absent or unable to
act. I neither the President nor the Viee President is able to sct, the Bonrd of Dirce-
-tars shall appoint somne other member of the Voard of Dircctors to act in the place of
the President on an interim basis. The Vice President shall nlso perform such other
duties as shall from time Lo time be imposed upon him by the Board of -Dircetors or by -
the President, including, without limitatlion, the counting of voles at meetings of the
Assaociation.

Scction 6. Sceretary. The Sceretury shall keep the minutes of all mectings of the
Associntion (incliding copies of all resolutions adopted thereat), and of the Board of
Dircctors; he shall have ehnpge of such books and papers as the Board of Dircetors may
direet; and he shall, in general, perform all the duties incident to the office of
secretary of a stock corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of
Marylend.

Seclion 7. Treasurer. ‘The Treasurer shall have the responsibilily for Associntion
funds and securities tind shall be responsible for keeping full and accurate {inuneinl
records and books of account showing all receipts and disbursements, and for the
preparation of all required finnneinl data. ile shall be responsible for the deposit of all
moneys and other valuable effects in the name of the Associntion’in such depositories
as may from time to lime be designated by the Board of Dircetors, and be shall, in
general, perforin all the duties incident Lo the office of treasurer of a stock corporation
orgranized-and existing under the laws of the State of Maryland.

The Trensurer shall give a bond, the premium therefor to be considered a comimnon
expense, in such sum and with such surely or surclics as shall be satisfactory to the
Board of Direclors for the faithful performance of the dulies of his office and for the
restoration, in case of his death, resignation, retirement or removal from office, of all
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books, pupers, vouchers, money and other property of whatever kind in his possession or

under his control.

Scction 8, Compensalion of Officers. No officer shall receive any compensation

from the Association for acling as such.

- Secetion 1.

(n)

ARFICLEY. . ..
OPERATION OF THE PROPERTY. .

Determination of Cominon Expenses and Tixinge of. Common Cliarges. -

Unless otherwlise expressly provided ligreing-cominon expenses of (lic-

“Association, in general, shall include maintenunee, operalion, repuir, or replucement of
the common clements. They include, but are not limited tos -

v

be considered an appurtenance L
assigned or trans{erred or other

iy  aonagement fees;
(ii)  Insurunee premiums;

{iii) Charges for lnndscuping, spow removal and maintenance of the
walks, drivewnys, parking arcas and vetoining walls;

{iv) Audit, altorncys' fees, and like administrative eosts;

(v} Reserves for replacements ar other expenses of a non-reeurring
nature;

(vi) Scrvice contrnets and employecs’ salaries;

(vil) Payment of utility bills nnd like expenscs {except to the extent
that sueh bills or expenses nre individually mnetered for any Unit,
in which event such bills ar expenses shall be the responsibility
of the Unit owner recciving the benefit of such individually

metered service); and

(viii) Such other cxpenses as shall be nccessary-or desirable in the
judgment of the Board of Dircetors for the administration and
operation of the Property, or which may be deelared to be
common expenses by the Act, the Decluration, these Bylaws or
by resolution of Lthe Unit owners. :

‘fhe proportionate interest of any Unil owner in nny reserve fund shalt
o his Unit and shall not be scparately withdrawn,
wise separated from the Unit to whieh it is appurtenant,

and shall be deemed to be transferred with such Unit.
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Section 2. Prepavulion and Approval of Budgel. Eneh year at least sisty (60) duys
before the end of the current fiseal yonr the Board of Direetors shall mnake reasonable
cfforts to adopl a bLudget for the Condominiumm containing an estimate of the total
amount which it considers necessary to pay the cost of maintenanee, management,
operation, repair and replucement of the common eclements.as o which it is the
responsibility of the Associntion te maintuin, manage, operate, repair, and/or replace,
and- the cosl of wages, materinls, insuranee premitims, services, supplies and other
expenses that may be declared to be cominon sxpenses by - ihie. Aet, the Declaration,
these Hylaws or n rcsolution of the Assoviation. The Bonrd of Dircctors shall send to
_each Unit owner a copy of the budget, in a reasonably itemized formn which sets forth
the ninount of the common expenses payable by encli Unit-owner, on or before-thirty
(30) dauys preceding the beginning of the fiscal yenr to which the budget applies or ns
soon thereaflter as is possible.  The snid budgel shall constitute the basis for
determining each Unit owner's contribution for the common cxpenses of the
Condominium. The failure or delay of the Board of Directors to preparc or adopt the
annual budget for any fiseal year shull not constitule a4 waivér or release in any muanner
of a Unit owner's obligntion lo pny his allocable share of the common expenses, ns
herein provided, whenever the same shall be delernined, and in the absence of any
anntal budget, cach Unil owner shall continue to pay his allocable share of the common
expenses rt the then existing rate established for the previous fiscal period until the
new rale is ostablished. R .

Section 3. Heserves. As part of the annual budget the Board of Direetors shall
build up and maintain an adequate reserve for working capital and contingeneics, and an
adequate reserve for the repair or replacement of the cominon clements required to be
repaired or replaced by the Association.  Extraordinary expenditures nol originnily
included in the annuat budget whieh may. become necessary during the year shall be
charged first against such reserves.  Except where an emergency requires an
expenditure to prevent or minimize loss from further damage to, or deteriorntion of,
the cominon elements, reserves aceumulated for one purpose may not be expentled for
uty olher purposc wsless approved by the Board of Dircetors. If the reserves are
intdequate for any reason, including non-puyment of any Unit owner's nssessment, the
Board of Directors may at uny time levy a further assessment, which shall be assessed
against the Unit owners according to their proportionate share, and which may be
puyable in a lump sum or in instaliments us the Bourd of Dircetors may detertnine. 'The
Board of Dircelors shall serve notice of any such (ucther assessment on-all Unit owners
by o statement in welting glving the amount and reasons thercfor, and such further
nssessment shail, unless olherwise speeified in the notice, become effective with the
next regular payment which is due more than ten (I0) dnys after the delivery or mailing

of such nolice of further assessment,

Section 4. Initis] Assessment. When the first Doard of Dircetors takes office, it
shall determine the budget for the period commencing upon the conveyance of legal
title to the first Unit by the Declnrant and ending on the last day of the fiscal year
established by the Board of Directors in which such conveynnce oceurs. The Bonrrd of
Directors shall establish an initial working capital fund cqual to two (2) months' regular
assessments through a contribution to working capital of cach Unit owner upon purchase
of his Unit {rom the Declarant. )
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- Scetion 5. Pnyment of Common Charges; Lien. Encfr-Unit owner shall be._
- obligated Lo pay, in advance, the common expenses and charges assessed- by-the Doard
of Direclors against his Unit. o : .

The aimount levied and assessed agoinst cach Unit for common expenses shall
constituie a lien agninst snid Unit from the date of assessment until Lhe date of full
payment, provided {hat a "Statement of Lien" is recorded against the Unil as provided
in Seetion 1-110 of the Acl.. At the oplion of the Board of Dircctors, suid amount may
be puyable in annual, quarterly, monthly or other convenicnt installinents; and Lo the
Bonrd of Dircclors or to such person or entily who or which the Board of Directlors shall
designate.

The lien hereinabove set forth shall be inferior only Lo deeds of trust, mortgnges
or other encunbrances recorded prior lo the date of assessiment of said len, or
recorded promptly afler receipt of a written statement frotn the Board of Dircetors
“that puymenis due on snid Unit were current as of the date of such written stalement,
All taxes, assessinents, and charges which muy become liens prior o the first mmorigage
shall relnte only to the individual Unit and not lo the Condominitm as a whote.

Upon thie voluntary sule or conveyance of a Unit there shall be paid or provided
from the sale proceeds an amount sufficient o satisfy any unpuaid portion of the assess-
ments due and payable as of the dute of sale or conveyances Upon in involuntary sale
through foreclosure of a deed of trust, moriguge or encumbrance not a fivst trust, {irst
wortgage or first encumbrance {any such first trust, first morlgage or first
cncumbrance having the priorily rights set forth in the immediotely succeeding
paragraph), having o preference as sel forth in the preceding paragraph, or in the evenl
of any praceeding or other conveyance [n licu of foreelosure, a purchaser thercunder
shull not be liable for any installinents of such lien as become due prior o the recording
of sueh deed of {rust, mortgage or encumbrance,

Nolwithstanding any other provisions hereofl to the cortrary, the len of any
ussessments levied pursuant lo these Bylaws upon any Unit shall be subordinate to and
shall in no way affect the rights of the holder of any indebtedness secured by auy re-
corded first mortgage or deed of trust upon such interest made in good faith und for
value received, provided, however, that such subordinntion shall apply only Lo assess-
ments whieh have beeoine due and payable prior to a sale-or transfer of such Unit pur-
‘suant to a decree of (oreclosure, or nny other proeceding in licu of foreclosure. Such
sule or transfer shall not relieve the purchaser nt sueh sale of the Unit from liability .far
uny nssessments thereafter becoming due, nor from the licn of any such subsequent
assessments, which lian, if any, claimed shall have the same cffect and inay be cnloreed
in the same manner us provided herein.

No amendment to this Scction shall affect the rights of the holder of any such
mortgage {or the indebtedness securcd thereby) recorded prior to recordation of stich
amendment unless the holder thereof {or of the indebtedness sceured thereby) shall join
in the execution of such amendment.

)
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Section 6. Colleclion of Assessments. ‘The Board of Direclors shall tuke prompt

- aetion to colleet any common charges dise from any Unit owner which remain unpaid for
more than thirty (30) dnys from the due date for payment thereof. Upon defoult in the
payment of any onc or more installments of any assessment levied. pursuant to the

~Deelaration and/or these Bylaws, the entire balance of suid assessiments may be
aceelernted at the option of the Board of Direelors and be deelared due and payable, in
full, together with interest thereon at the meximum rate permitted by Inw at the time
the ussessmeni beeame due, . . .

~Seetion 7. - Default in Pavment of Commnion Ghiarges. -The.lien for unpaid dssess-
~ ments for common expenses may be enforced and foreelosed in-such. mannet as .y
.from time to time be provided in the Act. Any assessment, until paid, may at the elee~
tiori of the Board of Directors bear interest at the maximum rale.pérmitted by faw at
_the time the assessment became due.  In nddition, {he Board of Dircetors may impeése
‘late charges and/or the costs of collection (including reasonable atlorneys' fees), if any,
with respect 1o any assessment which has not been fully paid when due. Such late
churges and other costs shall not exceed the permissible amounts provided for in the
Aet, und shall otherwise comnply therewith. Al such interests, Iate charges and other
costs shall constitute a lien upon the Unit until fully paid as provided in Article V, Sce-
tion 5, nbove.

In any action brought by the Board of Directors to forcelose a lien apainst a Unit
beenuse of unpunid cominon charges, the Unit owner shall be required to pay a rea-
sanable rental for the use of his Uanit, and the plaintiff In such foreclosure action shall
be entitied to the nppointment of a receiver to colleet the sume, such rent to aecrue
from the dote that an aclion lo recover possession of the Unit is commeneed.

No suit or other proceeding may be brought by the Association to foreclose the
lien for any ussessments levied pursuant to the Decluration or these Bylaws except
after ten (10) dnys' written notice to the holder of the first maortgage which is a lien on
the Unit that is Lhe subject matter of the proceeding.

Scetion 8. Statement of Common Charges. Any owner, {irst morigagee or any
purchaser in connection with sny sale or conveyance of a Unit, shall be entitled to a
statement furnished by the Board of Directors selting forth in detail the amount of any
unpaid nssessments owed by the Unit owner, and sueh party shull be entitled to rely on
sueh statement and shall have no lability for, nor shall the Unit be enewinbered with, an
amount of unpaid assessments greater than that shown on such statement, “The Hloard of
Directors shall be cntitled to charge u reasonable fee for the preparation of such
statement, .

. Scetion 8. Insurance. ‘The Donrd of Directors shall be required to coimnply with |
the insurance requirements of the Act and, lo the extent ot in viclation of the Act,
shall also comply with the provisions of this Article V. » S
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‘The Board of Directors shall be required to obtain and maintain a multi-peril
type policy covering the entire condomininm projeet providing as & minimuin {ire and
exicnded coverage and all other covernge in the kinds and amounts commonly required
by private institutional morlgage investors for projeets similar in construction, location
and use on a replacement cost bausis in an mmount not less than one hundred percent
{H0D%) of the insurable value (bascd upon replacement cost). If there is a steam boiler
in_operation in conncetion with the Projeet, there must be iiv foree boiler explosion

insurnnce evidenced by the standard form of boiler and machinery. insurance policy and__ -

_providing as a minimum One Hundred Thousund Dollars ($100,000.00)-per nccident per

Iocafion. I the condominium project is located in an ares identified by thie Secretary -

of Housing and Urbrn Developinent ns an area havisg special flood hazards, ¢ Yblanket”
policy of [lood insurance on the condominiun project must be anaintained in the amount
of the aggregate of the outstanding principal balances of the mortgage lonns on the
Condominium Units comprising the condominium projeet or the maximum limit of
covernge availuble under the Nalional Flood Instirunce Act of 1968, as amended,
whichever is less. The insured under cneh required poliey shall be the Association for
use nnd benelit of the individual Unil owners. )

Subjeet to the provisions of Scetion 11-114 of the Act, cach such policy
must contain the standard morigagee cluuse, which must be endorsed to provide that
any proceeds shall be paid to the Associntion for the use and benefit of mortgagees as
their interest may appear. '

‘The Board of Dircctors shall ebtain and maintain a comnprehensive poliey of
public liability insurance covering all of the commen claments, commercial spaces (if
owned by the Association) and publie ways in the condominium project. Such insurunce
policy shall coninin n “severability of interest® endorsement which shall preefude the
insurer from denying the claim of a Unit owner beenuse ol negligent nets of the
Association or other Unit owners. 'The scope of voverage must include all other
coverage In the kinds and amounts required by private institutional morignge investors
for projects similar in construction, location and use. Linbility coverage shall be at
least One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per oceurrence, for personul injury and/or
property damage.

tach hazard insuranec poliey must be writlen by a hazaed insurance earvier
which has n current rating by Bosls Insurance Reports of B/VE or better. Hazard insup-
ance policies are also aceeptable Trom un fnsurance carrier which hasa finaneinl rating’
by Besl's Insurance Reports of Class ¥V, provided it has a general policyholder's vating- of
at least A. Each insurer must be speeifically licensed or authorized by lnw to transact
business within the State of Maryland. The policy contract shall provide that-no
assessment may be made against the mortgagee, and that any assessment made against -
‘athers may not become a lien on the mortgaged Unit superior to the first mortguge.

All policies of hazard Insurence must contain or have altached the standard

mortgagee clause eominonly accepled by private institutional mortigage investors in the
State of Maryland. The morlgagee clnuse must provide that the insurance carrier shall
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 notify the first morigogee (or trustee) nnmed ot least ten (10) days in ndvanee of the
cffective dole of any reduction in or cancellution of the policy. The mortgagee clause
of cach insurunce policy must be properly endorsed, und there must have been given
necessary notices of transfer, and any other a¢tion required to be taken must have been
taken, in order to fully protect, under the terms of ibe policy, and npplicable law, the
interest of the first morigagcee. .

. ANl property insurance policies must provide the following special endorse-
--ments:. (I recognition of any Insurance Trust Agreement; (2) & waiver-of the right-of. | =
" _subrogation against Unit owners individually; {3) the fnsurance i§ nol prejudiced by any
a&t or negrleel of individual Unit owners which is not. in the control of suchieiwnerscol=- .
“Jeetivelyy-and (4) the policy is primary in the event-the Unit ownet has.other insurance.
covering lhe sainc loss. If available, an Agreed “Amount--dnd Infintion- Guord
~Endarsement is required, and if the cominon clements in thé Associntion are subjeet to
4 cofisirietion code provision which would become opernlive- and require changes to =
undamaged portions of the building(s) thereby tinposing significant costs in the event of
partinl destruction of the project by an insured peril, then a Construction Code
Endorsement is required.

Notwithstanding any provision of the Declaration or these Bylaws relating to
property or linbility insurance, there mauy be named as an insured, on behalf of the
Associalion, the Associntion's authorized representative, including any trustee with |
whoin such Associntion may enler into any Insurance ‘l'rust Agrecement or any successor
to sueh trustee {each of whom shall be referred to hercin as the "Insurance Trustee"),
who shall have exclusive authority to negotiate losses under any policy providing such
property or liabhity {nsursnce. :

Except to the extent ineonsistent with the law, each Unit owner is deemed
to appoint the Association, or any lnsurance Trustee or substilute Insuranec Trustee
dosignated by the Association, as nttorney-in-fact for the purpose of purchasing and
maintaining sueh insurance, including: (1) the colleetion nnd approprinte disposition of
the proceeds thereof; (2) the negotiation of losses and exceution of releases of liability;
(3) the execution of all documnents and ihe performance of all other acts necessury to
nccomplish sueh purpose, ‘The Association or Insurunce Trustee shall reeeive, hold or
otherwise properly dispose of any procceds of insurnnce in trust for Unit owners and
their first morigage bolders, as their interests may uppear.

Scction 10. Repair or Reconstruetion Alter Fire or Other Casunlty. Except as
hereinafter provided, i the event of damage to or destruction of the Property as 8
result of fire or other casunlly, the Board of Dircctors shall arrange for the prompl
vepair and restoration thereof (including any damaged Units, and any kilchen or bath~,
room fixlures installed therein on the date of recordation of the Deelarationh, but not
including any wall, ceiling or floor decorations or eoverings or other furniture, furnish-
ings, fixlures or cquipment Installed by Unit owners in the Units), dnd the Board of
Dircetors or the Insurance Trustee, as the case may be, sholl disburse the procecds of
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all insurance policies to the contrnetors engaged in such repeir and restoration, #s
provided below. :

The Insurance Trustee may rely upon n certificate of the Bonrd of Directors
which certifies whethier or not the damaged Property is to be reconstrucied or repaired.
The Bonrd of Dircctors, upon request of the Insurnnee Trustee, shall deliver such
certificate as soon ns practicable. ' - -

] If the dainuge is only 1o those purts of a.Unit for which the responsibitity of -
maintennnee and repair s borne by lhe Unit owner; then the Unit owner shall be
responsible for the reconstruetion and repair uller-casually and shall be entitled to
apply the applieable insurance proceeds thereto. in all other instances, the respons-
ibility of reconstruetion and repair after ensuaity shall be that of the Association.

Immediately after a casually enusing dninnge Lo the Property for which the
Association has the responsibility of maintenance, repair, and/or replacement the Board
of Dircctors shull obtain rclinble und detniled estimates of the cost to place the
damnged portions of the Property in as good n condition ns cxisted before the casualty.
Suich costs may include professional fees and premifums for such bonds as the Board of
Directlors desire.

In the cvent of rceonstruction or repuir {as estiniated by the Bourd of
Directors) which shall execed Twenly~Five Thousand Dollars {§25,000.00), all proceeds
of insurance shell be paid over to a trust company or baok having trusi powers and
authorized to engage in the trust business in the State of Muaryland (hercinafter the
"nsuraice Trustee’), selected by the Board of Dircetors and shall be pnid out from time
to time us the reconstruction or ropaivr progresses in aveordance with the provisions of
un surance Trust Agreement and which contains, inter alia, the following provisions:

{a) the reconstruction or repair shall be in the charge of an architeet or
engineer, who may be an cmployee of the Association, and hercinafter called the
“Acchitect;

() any restoralion or repair of the project shall be performed sub-
stantially in neeordance with the Deeluration and the original pluns and speeifications,
unless other action is approved by ol least fifty-one percent (31%) of the cligible
mortgege holders (based upon one vote for such first mortgage owned), and sixty-seve
percent {67%) of the Unit owners (other than the Developer). - B

{c) cuch request for an advance of the proceeds of insurance shall be
“made to the Insurance Trustee and shall be accompanied by a certificate _from the
Architeet and Bourd of Dircetors to the effeet that (i) all work then completed has been.
pesformed in necordance with the plans and specifications; and {(H) the amount
requested to be ndvanced is required to reimburse the Board of Directors for payments
previously made by the Board of Directors or is due o the vontractor responsible for
the restoration or ropair, or to subcontractors, materialinen, laborers, engineers, archi~
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teets or to other persons responsible for services or -malerinls in conneetion with sueh
restoration or repair, or for {ees or the like neeessarily ieurred in conneetion with the
same; and {iii} when sdded to nmotints previously advaneed by the Insurance Trustee,
the amount requested to be ndvanced does not unreasonably execed the value of the
work done and materials delivercd to the dale of such request;

(d} cuch request for un advance of the proeceds of insurunec shall be
accompenied by satisfanetory waivers of llens covering that portion of the repair or
reeonstruetion for which puyment or reimbursement is being requested, together with
appropriate cvidence from a title insurance company or the like to the effeet that there
has not been filed with respeet to the Property, or any part thereof, any mechanies' or
other licn, or notice of intention to file the snme, which has not been disinissed, bonded,
or satisfied of record; ’

- {e). the {ees and espenses of the Insurnnce-Trustee, as sifreed upon by the

Doard of Dircetors und the Insurnnce Trustee, shall be paid by ihé Association as g™
“common’ expense, and such fees and expenses may bg-ddducted from- any insurance
proeéeds in the hands of the Insurance Trustee, pro ratn, as the reconstruction™or repaiy
progresses. : T .

(f)  such other provisions nol Inconsistent with the provisions hereof ns the
Board of Dircctors ot the hsurance Trustee may reasonably require,

Upon completion of the reconstruction or repair and payment in {ull of all
gmounts duc on aecount thercof, any procceds of insurance then In the hands of the
Insuranee Trustee shall be paid to the Board of Directors, shall be considered as one
fund nnd shall be divided among the owners of all the Units in the same propoertion as
that previously estoblished for ownership of pppurtenant undivided interests in the
common elements, after first paying cut of the share of the owner of any Unil (o the
extent such payment is vequired by any lienor and to the extent the snme is suffieient
for steh purpose), all lichs upon said Unit.

Seetion 1. Abulement and Enjeinment of Violutions by Unit Owuers. The
violation of any of the Rules or Regulations adopted by the Bourd of Direclors, or the
breach of these Bylnws or of any provision of the Declaration, shall give the Bonrd of
Dircetors the right, in addition lo any other rights set forth in these Bylaws: {u) o
enter the Unit in which or as to which such violation or breach cxists and to suminarily
abate und remove, at the expense of the defaunlting Unlt owner, any structure, thing or
condition that may coxist therein contrary to the intent and meaning of the provisions
hercof, and the Bourd of Dircelors shall not thereby be deemed guilty in any manner of
trespass; or {b) Lo enjoin, abate or remedy by appropriate legal proceeding, cither at law
or in cquity, the continuance of any such bresch.

Section 12. Maintenance and Repair.

(a) By the Associntion. The Association shall be responsible for the
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meintenance, repair and replucement of the following, the cost of which shall be
charged to nll Unit owners #s & commaon expense:

(i)  Bxeept as otherwise provided in puragraph {b) of this Section 12,
all of the common elements, whether loeated inside or oulside of the Units; and

{ii) Al exterior walls and exlerior surfaces (including the painting of
the exterior surfoce of the front door of cuch Unit) of he buildings constituting the
Gondominium; the roofs of the buildings constituting the Condominjum; Unit party whils
and all olher portions of the Units which eontribute. to. the support of- the buildings
constituting the Condominium, such as the outside walls of sueh bitidings, and all Tix-
tures on the exterior thereof; -the boundary walls of Unils;__l‘lo'oiflrslnbs;' Joad-bearing

" aolumns; but excluding, however, the interior wells, interior ceilings and intecior floor -

coverings of the Units,and excluding: the sur{nces of all walls, floors and ceilings of the
Units; and : ' ’ S o v

(iii) ‘The sanitary and storm sewer sysleins and appurienances; all

water, eleetrie, gas, heatling, air conditioning, plumbing and telephane lines, facilities
“and systems that are decined common clements, including all conduits, duets, phunbing,
wiring and other {acilities for the furnishing of all utility services into two (2) or more
Units, but excluding therefrom all air-handling units, heating units, air-condilioning
units, and all plumbing and cleclrical appliances, fixtures, sysiems and parts thercof
which are enjoyed by only a single Unit and ure located solely within the boundary of an
individual Unit or in o limited common clement designated-in the Deelaration as being
sppurtenant to an individual Unit; all cateh besins snd television master untenna
systoms located outside the specilic boundaries of nny Unit; and all roof drainuge pipes,
guiters and Yeaders; and

(iv) Except as otherwise provided in parageaph (B)i) of this Scetion
12, a1l baleonies or patios; nnd .

) (v) Al incidental damuge cnused to any Unit by sueh work as may be
done or caused Lo be donce by the Assoeintion in accordance with the provisions of these
Bylaws. ’

(b) - By the Unit owner.

(i)  Except for-ihe portions of his Unit required to be maintained,
repaired and replaced by the Association, each Unit owner shall be responsible for the
meintenance, repair and replacement,.at his own expense; of the lollowing: auny interior
walls, ceilings and floors, kilchen and bathroom fixtures and equipment, alr handling
units, heating units, air conditioning units, lighting fixturcs, plumbing und eleetrienl
applinnces and systems, fixtures and parts thereol which are wholly contuined within his
Unit and/or in a limiled common element designnted in -the Declaration as being
appurtenant to his Unit and serve his Unit and no other. -
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{ii} Buch Unit owner shall be responsible for performing, ot his
expense, the normul maintenance for any baleony or patio which is designated In the
Declaration ns being a limited common clement appurtenant to his Unit, including
keeping it in u clean end sanilory condition and free nnd clear of snow, ice und uny
secumulation of waler, and shall also moke, at his own expense, all repuirs thereto
caused or permitied by his negligence, misuse or negleet.

(iii) . Eneb Unit owner shall, at his expense, perform all maintenance

hind make all repanirs and replacements to the windows, the front door (bt not-the. -
paifnting of the exlerfor surfuce of the front door) und any sliding glass door(s) appur--

“tenant to or part of his Unit.

{(iv) -~ Euch Unit owner shull be responsible for ahd‘pvomptiy after -

~domand shail reimburse the Association for the cost of maintaining, repairing or re-
placing any damage to the common clements or any portion of his Unil required to be
maintained, repaired or replaced by the Association which is eaused by the uegligence,
misuse or negleet of such Unit owner. Such reimbursement shinll be colleeted by the
Association from the Unit owner obligated therefor in the same anner as sel forth in
Article V of these Bylaws for the collcetion of common expenses.

(v} Each Unit owner shall perform his responsibilities under this

Scetion 12 in such o manner as shull not unrcusonably disturb or interfere with the other
Unit owners. Each Unit owner shall promptly report to (he Associntion or the managing
agent any defect or need for repairs for which the Association is responsible. =

{¢}) Manner of Hepnir and Replacement. Al repairs and replacements
shall be substantinlly similar o the original construction and installation und shall be of
first-class quality.

Scetion 13, Restrictions on Use of Units. In order to provide for the congeniul
occupnney of the Property and for tic protection of the values of the Units, the use of
the Property shall be restricled to und shall be in aecordunce with the following
provisions: .

{a} No part of the Property shall be used for other thun housing and the
related common purposes for whieh the Properly wus designed. | Ench Unit shall be used
for residential purposes and for no other purpose, except that o Unit may be used as 2
professional offlce or duy-care center upon the written consent of the Bonrd of
Direetors provided that such use is consistent with all valid lnws, zoning ordinances and
regulations of nll governmental ageneies baving jurisdiction in respeet of the Property,
and, provided further, that as a condition for such consent ench such Unit owner agrees
to pey and pays auy incrense in the rate of insurance for the Property which restits

from such use. An Owner may use a portion of his Unit for an office or studio provided’

Ut the activities thereln shall nol interfere with the quiet enjoyment or cotnfort .of
any other Owner, and provided further that in no event shall any port of the Property be
_used as a school or music studio. : ’ :
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(L)  Nothing shinll be done or kept in any Unil or in the cominon clements
which will increase the rate of insurance for the Property applicable for residential vse
williout the prior written consent of the Bouard of Dircctors. No Owner shall permit
anything Lo be done or kept in his Unit or in the common -clementis which will result in
the cancellation of insurance on the Property, or the conlents thercof, or which would
te in violation of any law. No wuste will be committed in the common clements.

B {(c) . No immornl, improper, offensive, or-unlawful usc shnll be nade of the -
_-Property or any part thercof, and all valid laws, zoning ordingneds gnd regulations of Al
- governinental ageneics hoving jurisdiction thercof shall be obscrved. All lnws, orders, ™
rtles, regulations, or. requirements of any governmental agéncy having jurisdiction
- “therédf, relating to.any portion of the Properly, shull be complied ith, by and at the ~
sole expense of the Unit owner or the Board of Dircelors, whicliever shall-huve- Uie
-obligntion to maintain or repair such portion of the Property.. e

¥

(d) Nothing shall be done in any Unit or in, on, or to the common clements
which will impair the structural integrity of the Property or which would strueturally
ehange any building or improvements thercon except us is olherwise provided in these
Bylaws, provided, further, that interlor partitions contributing to the support of any
Unit shall not be altered or removed.

{o}  Excopt for uses permnitted by the Board of Direetors for professionul
offices or a day-care center and othier uses permitted by the Declaration, no industry;-
business, trude, occupntion or profession of any kind, commercial, religious,
cduentional, or otherwise, designed for profit, altroism, exploration, or otherwise, shall
be concueted, maintnined, or permitted on any part of Wie Properly. No Unit owner
may post any advertisement, poster or sign of any kind on the exterior of his Unit or in
the windows of his Unit, oxcept {i) as permitied by the Donrd of Dircetors; (i) a
temporary sign advertising the sate or vental of u Unit; (iiD) in the event that the Board
of Dircetors gives its consent lo the use of & Unit as professionul offices or day-care
center, n suitnble sign muy be displayed upon the written consent of the Noard of
Dircctors; or {ivy when required by law, The right is rescrved by the Declarant or its
agents to use any vnsold Unit or Units for display purposes and to display "For Sale" or
"For Remt™ signs for unsold Units, )

{f) No antennas that arc visible from the exterior of any Unil may be
erected or maintained exeept upon the written consent of the Bonrd of Directors.

()  No portion of a Unit {other than the entire Unit) mnqy be rented, and no
transient tenunts may be accommadated therein, nor shall any Unit be utilized for hotel
purpases, nor shall the term of uny such lease be for a term of less than six (6) months..
Any lense agrecinent shall provide that the terms of the lease shall be subject in all,
respeeis to the provisions of the Deelaration and Bylaws and that any failure of the
lessee to comply with the terms of such docwments shall be a delault vinder the lease,
-All leases must be in writing, The limitations of this Section shall not apply to uny
institutional first morigngee of any Unit who comes into possession of the Unit by

%
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veason of any remedies provided by law or in the morigugee, or as o reason of fore-
closure snle or other judieinl sule, or ns a result of any proceeding, arrangement, ussign-
ment, or deed in lieu of foreclosire, :

()  ‘Phe limited common clements and all yards must be kept in.un orderly
condition so as not Lo detraet froin the neal appearance of the cominunity. In this .
regiird, no motoreyeles, bicylees; ete., maoy be parked on the patios, baleonies, front
entranceways or the yards, The Board of Diveclors, in~its sole discretion, may
determine whethier or not limited common elements are orderly. If-an Qwner shall Tail
to keep his limited common elements orderly, the Board of Direetors may have any’
“objectionable items removed from the limited comnion” elements so as to roslore its
ordorly appearance, without liability therefor, and churge the Unit owner for.any costs
ineurred in the process. : T T :

(i) No mwotorized vehicle muy be used or muaintnined on the yards or
sidewalks of any Unit and no unlicensed vehicles arc allowed on the Property.

(3} rrash shull be stored in nccordance with county health regulations
within the Unit or in the common aren, il any, set aside by the Board of Dircetors for
such storage.  Trush shall not be sel out for collection prior to the night before such
date of colleetion and the emply containers shall be returned to the proper place of
storage immedintely after collection. . o

(k) ‘The uinlenance, keeping, breeding, bonrding and/or raising of
animals, livestock, or poullry of any kind, regardless of number, shall be nnd is hereby
prohibited within any Unit ov upon any common cluments, except that this shall not
prohibit the keeping of one (1) small, orderly domestic house pet {e.g., dog, eat, bird),
provided it is registered with the Associntion and that it is nol kept or maintained for
commercinl purposes or for breeding. Pets shall not be permitted upon the common
clements exeept in nrens designated by the Bourd of Dircetors.  All pels shall be
anccompanied by an adult and arc to be carried or leashed. Any member who Reeps or
maintains any pel upon uny portion of the Property shall be deemed to have indemnilied
and agreed to hold the Assoviation, and ench ol its imembors {ree and harmless from any
loss, claim or liability of any kind or charaeter whutever arising by reason of keeping or
muintaining such pet within the Property. The Board of Dircetors shall have the right
to order any person whose pel is @ nuisnnce to remove such pet from the Property.

n No junk vehicle or other vehicle on which current registration plates
are not displayed, shall be kept upon any of the common clements, nor shall the repalr
or extraordinary maintenunce of nutomebiles or other vehicles be earried out on uny of
the common clements or within any other portion of the Property.

{(m) No trucks, trailers, campers, camp trucks, house trailers, boat trailers,
boats, or the like shall be kept upon any of the common elements or within nny Parking
Unit; provided, however, that the Ronrd of Dircetors reserves the right to permit such
vehicles on the common clements in aceordance with rules and regulations as may, from
time to time, be promulgated by the Bourd of Directors.
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() No structure of n lemporary charaeter, trailer, tent, shack, barn or
other outbuilding shall be maintuined upon any common clements at any time. Outdoor
clothes dryers or clothestines shull not be maintnined upon any comumoll cleinents ot any
time. No elothing, lnundry or the like shall be hung [rom uny part of any Unit or upon
nny of the common clements or from or upon any buleony or patio. .

(o) Nothing shall be stored or pluced upon uny baleony or putio or upon
any other portion of the coninon elements of the Property, exeept with the consent of
the Board of Dircetors,

M Nolwithstunding any provision contained in (his Article ¥, Section
13, to the contrary, the use and olher restrictions set forth in this Section 13 shall not
apply to the use of the common clements andfor Units owned by the Declarant for
display, murketing, promotion, sales, teasing or construction purposes or the use of
Units as "Models™.

Section 1. Additions, Alterations or Lnprovements by the Board of Dircetors.
Whenever in the judgment of the Bonrd of the Dircetors the cominon clements shall
require addilions, alterations, or improvements costing in oxcess of Twenly-Five
Thousund Dollars ($25,000.00), and the innking of such additions, alterations or
improvements shall have been approved by the Unit owner representing mora than Tifty
pereent (50%) of the Percentage Interests in the Condominium, at a meeting duly held
in aecordnnee wilh these Bylnws, the Board of Dirgelors shall proceed with such
additions, alterations or improvenenis and may asscss all Unit owners for the cost
thereof us ni common expense. Any ndditions, alicrations or finproveinents costing..

CPwenty-Five Thousand Dollars (§25,600.00) or less niny be mode by the Board of

Directors without approval of the Unit ownets, and the cosl thereof shall constituié a
_comimon expense. B

Seetion 1.  Covenants Commitiee,

{n) Purpose.  The Bourd of Dircetors shall cstablish a Covenunts
Commitlee, consisting of five members appointed by the Bonrd of Direcctors, eaeh to
serve for a term of two yeurs, in order to assure that the Condominium shall always be
muintuined in o mannet:

(1) providing for visual harmony nnd soundness of repair;

(2)  avoiding uetivities deleterious to (he acsthelic or property
values of the Condominium;

{3) protecting and furthering the comfort of the Unit ewners, their
guests and tenants, through administering matlers nrising {rom
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violations, uffeetling myy plysicul condition or appenrance of
any Unit{s) or Common Element{s) of the Condominium Act,
the Condominitin lnstruments, the Rules and Hegulntious, or
resolutions of the BBoard of Directors; and

{4) promoting the general welfare and safety of the Condo-
miniwin community in a munner consistent with the Condo-
minin Instruments and the policics of the Board of Dirce~
tors:

- .~ 'The members of the Covenanls Committee nppoir{fcd‘byj the Board of Dircetors duriiig
“the period of Declarant control sholl be replaced by new ‘members appointed by the
cleeted Bonrd when the period of Declarant control expires. T

: (L) Powers, ‘The Covenants Commitice shall vegulale the external
design, appearance, Use and maintenance of the common glements and the use of and .
architectural chunges to Units in secordonee with standards and guidelines adopted by
the Board of Dirccetors. The Covenants Commitice shall have the power to issue a
conse and desist request to a Unit owier, his guesls, invitees, or lessees whose actions
are inconsistenl with the provisions of the Cendominium Act, ‘the Condominium
Instruinents, the Rules and legulations or resolutions of the Bourd of Directors {upon
petition of any Unit owner or upon its motion). The Covenants Committee shull from
time Lo time, ns required, provide inlerpretation of the Condominium. Instruments

- {including adjudicotion regarding coimpliance with Article V, Section 8 of these Bylaws),
Rules snd Regulations and resolutions pursuant {o the intents, provisions and qualifica~
tions thercof when requested to do so by a Unil owner or the Board of Directors. Any
action, ruling or deeision of the Covenants Commitice may be sppeaied to the Hoard of
Directors by uny party deemoed by the Dosrd of Dircetors to have standing as an
aggricved party and a vote of a quorum of the Board of Directors may modify or
reverse any such action, ruling or decision.

{e) Authority. The Covenants Committee shall have sueh additional
duties, powers and authorily us the Doard of Dirvelors may [roin time to tme provide
by resolution. ‘The Board of Directors may relicve the Covenunts Commitlee of any of
its dutlics, powers and authority, other than duties, powers and authorily exprossly
conferred by these Bylaws, either gencrally or on u case by case basis by vole of &
quorum thereof, The Covenants Committee shall eapry out its duties and excreise ils
powers and authority in such mamner as may be provided for in the Iules and
Hegulations or Ly resolution of the Board of Directors, or, to the extent not 50
provided, in such manner as the Covenants Committee shall itself deeide.

Scetion 16.  Deelnrant's Exemplion. "Notwithstanding any provision of Scetion
15 of this Article V (0 the conlrary, the provisions of said Section 16 shall not apply to.a
Unit owned by the Declarant or its designee until a deed to such Unit hus deen delivered
by the Declarunt to a purchaser thereof. Further, the aforesaid provisions shall not
apply to the Declaraal's actions with respeet to the common arcas.of the Condominium
until the completion of the Declarant's construction thercof,
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Section 17, Right of Access. A Unit owner hereby grants a right of neeess to his
Unit to the managing agent and/or other person authorized by the Bourd of Directors or
the managing agent for the purpose of making inspections or for lhe purpose of
performing instaliations, alterntions or repaics to the meehunical or electirienl services
or other conunon elements in his Unit or elsewhere on the Property, or {o correct any
condition which violales the provisions of any morlgage covering another Unii, provided
that requests for entry are made in advance and that such entry is al-a time reasonably
conveniont {o the Unit owner. In case of nn emergency such right of entry shiall -be
immedinte, whether the Unit owner is present at the Limé.ornet...

ARTICLE VI -
MORTGAGES

Scetion 1. Notice to Board of Dircelors. A Unit owner who mortgages his Unit
shall in writing notify the Board of Directors of the name and address of his mortgagee,
und shall file 8 conformed copy of the note and morlgage with the Beard of Directors.
The Board of Dircetors shall maintain sueh information in a book entitled "Morigages of
Units".

Scetion 2. Nolice of Unpaid Common Charges or Other Defsult. The Board of
Directors shall report Lo caeli eligible moriguge holder who has requesied sueh notice
c default by, the owner of &

any unpaid counnon expenses diie from, or any. other

mortgaged Unit, which defaull hasnot been cured wilhin sixty (61) doys.

Scction 3. Examination of Books. Each Unit owner and ceeh mortgagee of o Unit
shall be permitted to exumine the books of uceount of the Association at reasonible
tiges on business days. .

Any holder, insurer or guarantor of a first mortguge shall be entitled, upon
weitten request, to an audited financial statement for the iiminediately preecding year,
free of charge lo the party so requesting.

Seclion 4. Notice of Loss lo or Taking of Common Elements. ‘The Board of
Dircctors shall give wrilten notice to cligible mortgage holders who have requested
such notice of any vondemnation or casually loss which affects a mnterial portion of
the project or any Unit on which there is a first morlguge held, insured or guaranteed
by such eligible mortgage holder of any Unit or the commnon clements or related
fueilities of the Condominium,. .

Scetion 5. Definition. As used in these Bylwws, the term "Mortgagec shall menn
any mortgugee or trustee under a deed of trust which is a lien'upon a Unit, or the party.
secured or beneficinry of mny recorded deed of trust, and shall not be limited lo
institutional mortgagees; and the term "morigage" shall include a deed of trust. As
used generally in these Bylaws, the term “iustitutional -holder” or "institutional mort-
gagee® shall inelude banks, trust companics, insurance companics, mutunl savings banks,
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mortgage insurunce companies, morigage compnnies, credil unions, savings and lonn
associntions, pension funds, FNMA, FHLMC, and sny corporation, ineluding a corporn-
tion of, or affilinted with, the United States Government, or any ageney thercol, "Fiest
mortgage® shall mean a mortgage with priority over all olhier morlgages. As used in
these Bylaws, the term “eligible morigage holder” shull menn a holder of a first
mortgage on o Unil who has reguested notice from the Council of Unit Qwners of
minendments to the condominium documents or other significant matters which would
nffect the interests of the mortgugee.

Scetion 6. Rigbls of Mortgmrees. Any institutional mortgagee of any Unit in the
Condominium who desires hotice of the annual and speeinl neetings of the Association
shall notifly the Secretnry to thnt effeet by certified mail, return receipt requested.
Any such notiee shall contain the name and post office sddress of such institutioonl

- -anorigngee -and the nnme of the person to whom notice of “the annupl and speeial
meetings should be addressed. The Sceretary of the Assoeintion shnll ninintain & roster - -

of all institutional -mortgngees from whom such noticos fire reecived-and it shall be the

duty -of the.Secretury 1o mail or offierwise cause the delivery of 4 noliee of cnéh unnual
or special meeling, as aforesnid, to each such institutional morlgugce, in the sume~

manner and subjeet to the sume requirements and limitations s are provided for with
respeet to notice of such mectings to the Unit owners.  Any suel institutionul
mortgagee shall be entitled to designate a representative Lo allend any such annual or
speeinl inceting.  Such representative shall have no voting righls at any sueh meeting.
Sueh representative shall be entitled to a copy of the minutes of all mcetmgs of the
‘Assoviation upon request made in weiling to the Seeretnry. . N

ARTICLE VII
SALES AND MORTGAGES OF UNITS

Scction ], Soles. A Unit owner may scll his Unit or any interest therein without
the consent of the Associntlion,

Seetion 2. No Severance of Ownership. Except us may be provided in the Acet, no
Unit owner shall exceule any lease, mortgage or othier instrnent conveying or
mortgaging title to his Unit withoul including therein the appurtenant common cle-
ments, it being the intention hereof to prevent any sceverance of such combined ownepr~
ship. Any wc.h lense, mortguge or other instrument purporting to affect one or mnore of
such interests, without including nll such interests, shalt be deemed and taken to include
the inlerest or interests so omitted, even Uhough the latter shall not be expressly
nontioned or desceribed therein. No part of the appurienant common clemnents of any
Unit may be sold, transfereed or otherwise disposcd of, except as part of & sale,
transfor or othier disposition of the Unit to which such interests are appurtenant, or ns.
parl of o sale, teansfer or other disposition ot’ such part of the appurtenant common *
clements of nll Units,
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ARTICLE Vil
CONDEMNATION

In the event of a taking in condemnnlion {or by purchuse in licu theecof) of ¢ Unit
or uny part thercof or of part or alt of the common clements, the nward made for such
taking or puirchase shall be distributed in nceordunee with Scetion 11-112 of the Aet.

ARTICLEIX -
RECORDS AND AUDITS

‘the Bonrd of Direetors or the managing ageni shall keep books and records in:
- -.nceordunee with good accounting practices on n consistont basisi On-the fequest-of
owners of at Jeust five percent (5%) of the Units, an audit by -un’independont -Certified -
© public’ Aécountant shall be made not more than once in any consecutive twelve (12)-
month period. The cost of such audit shall be a cominon expense. Every record kept by
the Councll of Unit Owners shall be available for exminination and copying by any Unit
owner, his imortgagee, and their respective duly authorized agents.or attorneys, during
normn! business hours nnd after rensonable notice.

ARTICLE X
PARKING SPACES AND STORAGE AREAS . -

Parking spaces within the common clements of the Condominium are hereby
unnssigned and designaled for general use, 1o be used unless otherwise designated by the
Board of Dircetors on a "first come, first served” basis.  The Board of Dircctors
reserves the right (o impose reasonable use fees for nssigned parking spuces.  No
vehicte belonging lo any Unil owner, or to any guest or employee of any Unit owner,
shall be parked in a munner which unrensonably interferes with or impedes ready
vehicular aceess to any ndjoining parking space.

Each Unit owner shall comply in ull respeets with such supplementary Rules and
Reguintions which arc not inconsistent with the provisions of these Bylaws which the
Board of Dircclors may from time to time adopt und promulgale with respeet to
parking and traffic control within the Property, and the Board of Dircetors is hereby,
and elsewhere in these Bylaws, authorized lo adopt such Rules and Regulations. The
location of uny parking space, if any, assigned to any Unit owner may be changed by the
Bonrd of Dircetors, at any Lime and from time to tiine, upon reasonable notice thercof
in writing. .

‘e slornge orcas are cominon clements and may be assigned to Units by
appropriate resolution of the Noard of Directors (unless such arens have been assigned
as Limited Common Elements). The Board of Directors, the Assoclation, any Unit
owner and the Developer shall not be considered o bailee, however, of any personal
property stored in the common elements (including any personal property stored in the

3G




LBERSB | 4 rouBESS -

conunon clemaents (ineluding property loeated in storage arens and vehieles parked on
the Condominium), whether or nol exelusive possession of the purlicular uren is given to
# Unit owner for storage purposes, and shall niol be responsible Tor the sceurity of such
personal property or for any loss or dnmage thereto, whether or not due to negligence.

ARTICLE X1 ’ . )
EASEMENTS FOR UTHATIES AND RELATED PURPOSES

~ I'he Associnlion is nuthorized and empowered to grant (and shall from time to
time ygrant) sueh licenses, casements and/or righis-of-way for sewer-lines, waler lincs,
cleetrien] eables, telephone cubles, gas lines, storm druins, underground condiiits and/or
such other purposes rclated to the provision of public utilities to the Property as may be
considered necessary or appropriate by the Board of Directors for he orderly main-
tenanee, preservalion, and enjoyment of the common clements or for the preservation
of the health, safety, convenience and/or welfare of the owners of the Units or the
Declarant and/or as required by the Declaration.

ARTICLE X1
MISCELLANEQUS

Scetion 1. Notices. All notices bereunder to the Board of Direetors shall be sent’
by first-cluss mail or personnlly delivered to the manuging ngent, or to such person as
the Bonrd of Directors may hereafter designate from thme to time. All notives to my
Unit owner shall be sent by mail or persopally delivered to the address as may have
been designated by him from time to time, in writing, for inclusion on the Rester. All
notices lo morlgagees of Units shall-be sent by first-class mail or personally delivered
1o their respeetive addresses as designaled by thein from thne to time, in writing, to
the Boned of Dircelors. Al notices shall be in vriting and shall be deemed to have been
given when mailed or personally delivered; exeept notiees of change of address which
shull be deemed (o have been given when received.

Seclion 2. Iovalidity. The invalidity of any part of these Byluws shall nol impair
or affect in any manner Lhe validity, enforeeability or effeet of the balanee of these
Bylaws.

Scction 3. Captions. ‘The captions herein are inserted onrly a6s @ maller of
convenicence and for reference, and in no way define, limit or deseribe the scope of
these Bylaws, or the intent of atty provision thereof.

Scetion 4. Gender. The usc of the inaseuline gender in these Bylaws shall be |
deemed 1o include the Teminine gender and the use of the singular shall be deemed to
include the plural, whenever the context so requires, and vice versi.

Scelion 5. Waiver. No restriction, condition, obligation or provision contained in
these Bylaws shall be deemed to have been abrogated or waived by reason of any failure
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to enforce the same, icrespective of the munber of violalions or breaches thereof which
may ocetr. - ‘

Seelion 6. Amendinents to Bvlaws. Exeept s cisewhere herein or in the De-
claration provided otherwise, these Byluws may be modificd or amended in accordance
with Section HI-104{c) of the Ael.

‘ Secetion 7. Conflicts. In ense any part of these Bylaws conflicl with the Act
and/or 1he Declaralion, the provisions of the Act and/or Declaration as the case may
be, shatl control . ST e - e
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Amendment to the Bylaws



vwen o u oo 2 FULIVY I ]
STATE OF MARYLAND

. COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY

AMENDMENT TO THE BYLAWS
OF .
THE COUNCIL OF UNIT OWNERS OF -
DIAMOND FARMS CONDOMINIUM

WHEREAS, on Eécembgr 23, 1981, Diamond FParms Associates,
Inc., a Delawdre corporation, executed a Declaration recorded
among the Land 3ecords of Montgomery County, Maryland, in Liber
5814 at Folio 603 and Bylaws recorded in. Liber 5814 at Folio
622 applicable to Diamond Farms Condominium, as suEsequently,
corrected by the Qorrectin Declaration recorded in Liber 5962
at Folio 678, and as supplemented by the Supplementary Decla-
iation recorded in Liber 6144 at Folio 119, the Supplementary
Declarétion recorded in Liber: 6324 at Folio 503, the Supp-
” j:rlementary Declaration recorded in Liber 6525 at Folio 292,'ané
ot as subsequently amended by Amendments to the .Declaration all

recorded among the Land Records .of Montgomery County, Maryland;
e and

MTOD
ffeviss

. .. ’ . . . DHECK
WHEREAS, under Section 11-109 of the Maryland Condo
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.%.Act, Annotated Code.of Mhryiandr Real Property Article, Title
11 (1974, 1981 Repl. Vol.

(1985.Cum. Supp.)) (hereinafter

o o . - HGHPE 0850 ROZ TL
referred to as the "Act"), the affairs of the Condominiu

m are Hov 2
. . HISC. :
governed by the Council of Unit Owners, which is comprised of
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all unit owners at Diamond Farms Condominium (see Attachment

"AY for list of parcel identifiers); and
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WHEREAS, under Article XII, Section 6, of the Bylaws (and
in accordance with Section 11-104({e) of the Act), the Bylaws
may be amended by the affirﬁative vote of unit owners
representing at least sixty-six and two-thirds percent (66
2/3%) of the votes in the Council of Unit Owners; and

WHEREAS, owners of units rgprésentihg at léast éixty—six
and two~thirds percent (66 2/3%) of the voﬁéé’ih thé Council of
Unit Ownérs have voted affirmatively, as-evidenced by the
ce:tificate attached hereto, for this Amendment to. the Bylaws
of Diamond Farms Condominium; and

WHEREAé, these amendments do not add or amend any material
provisions of "the current'Bylaws so as to necessitate the
approval of them by lending or underwriting institutions or
persons; and .

NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to Section 11-104 of the Act and

- in accordance with the Bylaws of Diamond Farms Condominium, the

Bylaws of Diamond Farms Condominium are  hereby amended as
follows:

1. ARTICLE II, SECTION 5, is hereby amended by déleting
the last sentence of the section -and substituting- therefore a
new 1as£ sentence to the section so that it reads a5 follows:

Section 5. Annual Meetings. Within ninety
(90) days after the expiration.-of one (1) year
from the date of recordation of the
Declaration, or after deeds to units
representing fifty percent (50%) of the
Percentage  Interests in the common elements
have been delivered by the Declarant and title
closed thereon, whichever first occurs, or
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upon such earlier date as the Declarant may
establish, the Declarant shall notify the Unit
owners and the first annual meeting of the -
AsSociation shall be held within thirty (30)
-days. Notice of such meeting shall be given

. 1n accordance with the provisions of Section 8
of this Article II. Subsequent annual
meetings of the Association should be held in
the month_of April annually, on a day to.be
designated by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE III, SECTION 1, is nereby amended to change

the number of directors from five (5) to seven (7) so that the

section reads as follows:

3.

Section 1. Number and Qualification. The
affairs of the Association shall be governed
by a Board of Directors acting on behalf of
the Association. Until the f£irst annual
meeting of the Association as provided for in
Article II, Section 5, of these Bylaws, and
thereafter until their successors shall have
been elected by the unit owners, the Board of
Directors shall consist of three (3) members
to be designated by the Declarant.
Thereafter, the Board of Directors shall be
composed of seven (7) members, all of whom
shall be elected by the unit owners.

ARTICLE IXI, SECTION 4, is hereby amended by changing

tne numper of directors from five (5) to seven (7), by changing

the term of office from two (2) years to threg'(B) vears for

the directors receiving the greatest number of votes and by

deleting the last sentence of the section and .substituting a

new last sentence so that the section reads as follows:

Section 4. Election and Term of Office. The
Directors of the Association who shall be
designated by the Declarant in accordance with
Article III, Section 1, above, shall hold
office at the pleasure of the Declarant, and
otherwise until the first annual meeting of
the Association as provided for in Article II,
Section 5, of these Bylaws.
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At the first annual meeting of the Association
seven (7) members of the Board of Directors
shall be elected by the unit owners from among
the unit owners. Commencing with the first
annual meeting of the Association, the term.of
office of the three (3) Directors receiving

the greatest number of votes shall be fixed at

two (2) years. The terms of office of the
remaining Directors shall be fixed-at one

(1) year. At the expiration of the initial
term of office of each respective director,
his successor shall be electea to serve a term
of two (2) years. Each Director shall hold
office until the next meeting of the Boara of
Directors following the election of his
successor. However, a member of the Board of
Directors shall be deemed to have resigned
whehever sucn member, his spouse, or firm,
corporation or other entity he is associated
with, sells the unit which gqualified such
individual to .become a member of the Board of
Directors.

Members of the Board of Directors will be
elected by written bdllot.

ARTICLE*III, SECTION 5, is hereby amenaed oy deleting

=

Section 5. Removal of Members of the Boara of

Directors. At anv regular or special meeuing

of the Association after the £irst annuail
meeting of tne Association, any one or more Of
the members -of the Board of Directors electec
py the unit owners may be removed, with or.
without cause, by a majority of the unit
owners. Any member of the Board of Directors
whose removal has been proposed by the unit
owners shall be given the opportunity to be
heard at the meeting. The term of office of
any Director who becomes more than forty-five
(45) days delinguent in the payment of common
charges against the unit of which he is the
owner shall automatically terminate on the
forty-sixth (46th) day, and his successor
shall thereupon be appointed by the Board of
Directors from among the unit owners to fill

the -section reads as
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out the unexpired portion of his term. A
majority of the Board.of Directors may remove

~any director who _has missed three (3)
consecutive meetings.

5. ARTICLE V, SECTION 6, is hereby amended by deleting
"thirty: (30) days” and'substituting "fifteen (15) days"
therefore so that 'the section reads as follows:

Section 6. Collection of Assessments. The
Board of Directors shall take prompt action to
collect any common charges due from any unit
owner which remain unpaid for more than

+ fifteen (15) days from the due date for
‘payment therecof. .Upon-defaulf in the payment
of any one or, more instaliments of any
assessment levied pursuant to the Declaration
and/or these Bylaws, the entire balance of
said assessment may be accelerated at the
option of the Board of Directors and be
declared due and payable, in full, together
witn interest thereon at the maximum rate
permitted by -law at the time the assessment
became due. )

§. ARTICLE V, SECTION 10, PARAGRAPH 4, is hereby amendéa
by deleting the ‘paragraph in its entirety and substituting

therefore the following:

Immediately after a casualty causing damage to
the Property for which the Association has the
responsipility of maintenance, repair, and/or
replacement, the Board of Directors shall
contact the insurance company and have an
adjuster record the damages. Within fifteen
(15) days, where possible, after the adjuster
records the damagé, the Board of Directors
shall obtain a minimum of.two (2) reliable and
detailed estimates of the cost to replace the
damaged portions of the Property in as good a
condltlon as existed before the casualty.

Whenever pOSSlble, a unit owner will be glven
forty~eight (48) hours notice of the time and
date when the insurance adjuster shall be

present to assess damages to any unit. After
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all-work has been completed the unit owner
will be -notified and required to sign a
"Sign-0ff Sheet"” within three (3) business
days of notification. If no response is -
received from the unit owner in this.period,
it will be deemed that the work has been
completed satisfactorily.

7. ARTICLE V, SECTION 13, is hereby amended by striking
subsections (a), (e), (g) and (j) and substituting the
following subsections (a), (e), (g) and (3j) thereforg so that

these.subsections read as follows:

fa) No part of the Property shall be used for .
other than housing and the related common

purposes for which the Property was designed. .
Each unit shall be used for residential

purposes and for no other purpoese, except for

"such temporary or professional uses as may be

granted upon the application to and written

consent of the Board of Directors and prowvided

that such use is consistent with all valid

laws, zoning ordinances and regulations of all
- governmental agencies having jurisdiction in .

respect of the Property, and, provided

further, that as a condition for such consent .
each such unit owner agrees to pay and pays

any increase in the rate of insurance for the

Property which results from such use. No unit

owner ‘shall interfere with the gquiet enjoyment

or comfort of any other owner, nor shall any

part of the Property be used as a school or

music studio. “

(e) BExcept for uses permitted by the Board of
Directors, no industry, business, trade,
occupation or profession of any kind,
commer01al, religious, educational, or
otherwise, designed for profit, altruism;
exploration, or otherwise, shall be conducted,
maintained, or permitted on any part of the
Property. No unit owner mnay post any
advertisement, poster or sign of any kind on
the exterior of his unit or in the windows of
his unit or within the common elements, '
except, (1) as permitted by the Board of
Directors; or {ii) when required by law; or



b

LBER 6992 Fotip | g 7

(iii) a temporary sign advert151ng the sale or
rent of a unit, subject to such rules and
regulations as adopted by the Board of
Directors. The right is reserved by the
Declarant or its agents to use any unsold unit
or- units for display purposes and to display
"For Sale" or "For Rent” signs for unsold
units. This provision shall be effective on
the date these Bylaws are recorded and any
signs which may exist prior to the date of
recordation shall not be subject to the
provisions of this section.

(g) No portion of a unit (other than the
entire unit) may be rented, and no transient
tenants may be accommodated therein, nor shall

any unit bQ*utlllzed for hotel purposes, nor

shﬁlé?th‘§§§%m 1é%ggwau'gggea5eﬁbe for a term
hs;%%Any lease

s%k,ﬁ ‘%ﬁés:.x% 6)‘“’ Onthsts
agreement sﬁﬁil”pkovid “LRat the terms of the
lease shall be subject in all respects to the
provisions of .the Declaration and Bylaws and
that any failure of the lessee to comply with
tne terms of such documents snall be a default
under the lease. All leases must be in
writing and on file.in the Condominium office
within five (5) working days from the date of
the lease. Incorporated in the lease or
attached thereto; must be the statement that
the lessee agrees to abide by all of the rules
and regulations and the Bylaws of the Diamond
Farms Condominium. All unit owners must use
the standard lease form as reguired by the
Board of Direcrors. No subleasing is
permitted. The limitations of this section
shall not apply to any institutional first
mortgagee of any unit wno comes into
possession of the unit by reason of any
remedies provided by law or in the mortgage,
or-as a reason for foreclosure sale or other
judicial sale, or as a result of any
proceeding, arrangement, assignment, or deed
in lieu of foreclosure.

{j) ‘Trash shall be stored in accordance with
county health regulations within the common
dumpsters in sealed plastic bags, or compactor
bags.
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8. ARTICLE V, SECTION 14, is hereby amended by deleting

.reference to "Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00)" and

substituting therefore "five percent (5%)" so that the section

reads as follows:

8.

Section 14, Additions, Alterations or
Improvements by the Board of Directors.

Whenever in the judgment of the Board of
Directors the common elements shall require
additions, alterations, or improvements
costing in excess of five percent ({53%) of the
operating budget and the making of such
additions, alterations or improvements shall
have been approved by the unit owners
representing more than fifty percent (50%) of
the percentage interests in the Condominium,
at & meeting duly held in accordance with’
these Bylaws, the Board of Directors shall

proceed with such additions, alterations or

improvements and may assess all unit owners
for ithe cost thereof as a common expense. ANy
additions, alterations or improvements costing
five percent (5%) or less may be made by the
board of Directors witnout approval oi tne
unit owners, and the cost thereof shall
constitute a commoOn expense.

ARTICLE V, SECTION 15(b), is hereby amended by

correctinc reierencs to Articls V, Section 13, so that the |

SeCtlon

r

aas as follows:

(3

{(b) Powers, The Covenants Committee shall
regulate the external design, appearance, use
and maintenance of the common elements and the
use of and architectural changes to units in
accordance with standards and guidelines
adopted by the Board of Directors. The
Covenants Committee shall have the power to
issue a cease and desist request to a unit
owner, his guests, invitees, or K lessees whose
actions are inconsistent with the provisions
of the Condominium ZAct, the Condominium
Instruments, the rules and regulations or
resolutions of the Board of Directors (upon
petition of any unit owner or upon its
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motion). The Covenants Committee shall from

time to time, as required, provide
interpretation of the Condominium Instruments
(including adjudication regarding compliance
with Article V, Section 13, of these Bylaws),
rules and requlations and resolutions pursuant
to the intents, provisions and gualifications
thereof when reguested to do so by a unit
owner or the Board of Directors. Any action,
ruling or decision of the Covenants Committee
may be appealed to the Board of Directors by
any party deemed by the Board of Directors to
have standing as an aggrieved party and a vote
of a quorum of the Board of Directors may
modify or reverse any such action, ruling or
decision.
10. ARTICLE VII, SECTION 1, is hereby amended by adding a
new clause to the section so that it reads as follows:
Section 1. Sales. A unit owner may sell his
unit or any interest therein without the

consent of the Association, put must conform
to all Maryland Condominium Act reguirements.

I WITNESS WHEREOP, tne unaersigneu officers of tae
Diamond Farms Condominium hereby consent to and approve the
above Amendments to the Bylaws of the Diamond Farms Condominium

and hereby cértify that the. Amendments were duly acopted by the

Council and its membesrs pursuant to the terms of thne Bylaws anc

the Maryland Condominium Act.

Tnis 93 day of Gcréaer‘ , 1985. ,.
DIAMOND FARMS CONDOMINIUM

- [0 v
By: _‘I/Q/Md?{ K //W

s President

~ ok
\ S

~ A
Attest: %uéu .- josftatiiu -
{/ <. ', Secretary

)
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CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY OF THE COUNCIL
OF UNIT OWNERS OF DIAMOND FARMS CONDOMINIUM '

In accordance with Section 11-104 of the Maryland
Condominium Act (Annotated Code of Maryland, Real Property,
Title 11) and in accordance with Article IV, Section 6, of the
Bylaws of the Council of Unit Owners of Diamond Farms
Condominium, the Secretary, as the ‘person authorized to count
votes of the owners, hereby certifies that the Amendments to
which this Certificate is attached were approved by unit owners
having at least sixty-six and two-thirds percent (66 2/3%) of
the votes of the Council., This Certificate is recorded for the
purpose of conforming to Section 11-104 of the aforementioned
Act-and hereby accompanies-the amendments to the Bylaws for the
Counc11 of Unit Owners of Dlamond Parms Condominium.

0 /} ; _
SNgutc é§i4LLLLu

Secretary of the Council of
Unit Owners of Diamond
Farms Condominium

r 7
WA
Attest: ]QLAAﬁb& r
President
TO WIT:
On this day of : r 18, before me

, the undersigned, personally

appeared the Secretary of the Coun01l of Unit Owners of Diamond
Farms Condominium, . - , known to me {or
satisfactorily proven}) to be the person whose name is subscribed
to the within instrument and- acknowledged that she. executed the
same for the purposes therein contained.
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L IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and e

official seal. , ¥
' . . AU
T8t .
Sote -“-'J_._'.:
,‘.‘n.-fn”;;-‘ N
N L v o lﬁ“x.‘
S Bo..y
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Notary Public i
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POTOMAC OAKS CONDOMINIUM
RULES AND REGULATIONS
EFFECTIVE JANUARY 24, 2017



Welcome

On behalf of the Council of Unit Owners and the Management Staff, welcome to Potomac Oaks,
a condominium community, and the Potomac Qaks Condominium Association. We are
providing these Rules and Regulations for your convenience and enjoyable living. Should you
have any questions or concerns please do not hesitate to contact Management directly, or leave a
message for the Board of Directors at (301) 987-9797 or by email at
potomacoakscondos@gmail.com.

Potomac Qaks has a swimming pool for your summertime recreation. Our Clubhouse hosts the
Council of Unit Owners and Association Committee meetings, and it is available for private
rental. We are close to schools, shopping malls, public transportation, Diamond Farms Park and
Seneca Creek State Park. We have quick and casy access to Interstate Route 270.

HOW A CONDOMINIUM DIFFERS FROM A RENTAL COMMUNITY

Tn a rental community, a corporation owns and operates the community, makes the rules, takes
care of buildings and grounds, and is represented by a Manager. In a condominium community,
the owners jointly own and operate the community through a Council of Unit Owners.
Consequently, owners are responsible for the care and maintenance of the grounds, building
exteriors, and other commion elements, even if they do not physically perform the work
themselves. The Council, as represented by an elected Board of Directors, hires and supervises a
Management and Engineering staff that acts on behalf of, and at the direction of the Council.
The Management Staff handles the day-to-day administration of the community and the
Engineering Staff handles the routine maintenance of the property’s mechanical systems and
other infrastructure areas. Landscaping, building common area cleaning, ongoing improvement
programs and heavy construction are performed by contractors. Questions regarding confractors
should be directed to the Manager and/or the Board of Directors. Community owners and
residents are responsible for reporting maintenance issues and unsafe situations to the Manager.

The Potomac Qaks Condominium Office is located at 780 Quince Orchard Boulevard,
Gaithersbure, Maryland 20878, adjacent to the Clubhouse.

Management Office Hours®

Monday and Wednesday 7:30 AM. - 4:00 P.M.
Tuesday and Thursday 7:30 AM. - 6:00 P.M.
Friday 7: 30 AM. - Noon

*(Office hours may be changed at the discretion of the Board



WHY RULES AND REGULATIONS?

All successful communities have rules to maintain the beauty, integrity, value, and living
standards of the neighborhood. Qur Rules and Regulations are established and approved by the
Couneil of Unit Owners and the Board of Directors and reflect the expectations and
responsibilities of each member of our community. They are revised and updated occasionally

to meet the community’s evolving needs.

Owners are encouraged to participate in the revision of these rules by:

1. Attending Board of Directors monthly meetings.

2. Participating in the Council’s annual meeting and elections.

3. Joining the Covenants Committee.

4. Providing written suggestions to the Management Staff, Board of Directors or the
Covenants Committee.

These Rules and Regulations are those referred to in the Bylaws of the Potomac Oaks
Condominium Association and are legal obligations between each person who owns or resides in
the Potomac Oaks cornmunity. These Rules and Regulations are enforced. Violations are
subject to warnings, monetary assessments and fees, and other penalties as noted in the Bylaws
and this document. Infractions that are also vialations of government laws and ordinances may
be referred to the City of Gaithersburg, Montgomery County and the State of Maryland

authorities for enforcement.

Owners and residents are responsible for being gware of, and complying with these Rules and
Regulations. Owners and residents are responsiple for ensuring their short and long-term
visitors/guests comply with the Rules and Regulations. :

GLOSSARY

ANNUAL MEETING - Yearly business meeting of the Council of Unit Owners held for election
of the Board of Directors, financial status reporting, voting on Bylaws changes and to discuss

community issues.

ASSOCIATION - The Council of Unit Owners, the Board of Directors of the Council of Unit
Ownets, Management and Agents when acting on behalf of the Council of Unit Owners.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS - The Board of Directors of the Council of Unit Owners is a
representative body of Owners elected by the Council of Unit Owners with primary duties

prescribed in the Association’s Bylaws.

COMMON ELEMENTS - All parts of the Potomac Oaks Condominium community other than
privately owned units. Some cormon elements are the pool, clubhouse, driveways, parking lots
(excluding reserved parking spots), building hallways and entrances, and all lawns and grounds.
CONDOMINIUM DOCUMENTS - CONDO DOCS - Includes the Declaration, Bylaws, and the
Rules and Regulations.



COUNCIL OF UNIT OWNERS - The collective body of Owners known as the “Association.”
Membership is automatic only for Owners who are current and in good financial standing.

CURRENT - Owners who are in good financial standing and do not have outstanding payments,
fees, monetary assessments, or penalties.

GUEST - Non-resident visitor(s) who comes onto the property at the direct request of an Owner
or resident and does not stay fonger than 3 months.

LIMITED COMMON ELEMENTS - Particular common elements that are set aside for use by
fewer than all Owners such as storage rooms, mechanical rooms, balconies, patios, and terraces.

MAINTENANCE ARFAS - Areas that house mechanical systems or maintenance tools and
materials. Maintenance areas include the boiler rooms, and maintenance shed. Owners,
residents, and guests do not have access fo maintenance arcas.

MANAGEMENT - The team of management professionals employed by the Association 1o
manage the day-to-day operations of the property. This on-site staff waorks in the Potomac Oaks

Condominium Office and the Maintenance Areas.

OFFICE - The Potomac Oaks Condominium Office is where Owners and residents can register,
report issues and obtain keys to storage and laundry rooms during office hours.

OWNER - Person(s) who holds a mortgage on, or OWns outright, a condominium unit in
Potomac Qals.

PROPERTY - All buildings, grounds, parking areas, recreational facilities, and other real
property and facilities that make up the Potomac Oaks community.

RECREATION AREAS - All Association facilities and areas designated for recreational use by
Owners and residents such as the pool, surrounding pool area, and clubhouse.

RESIDENT - Person (Owner or renter and their family members, or visitors) who reside ina
condominium unit.

UNIT - A single condominium residence, and as applicable, limited common elements assigned
to the unit such as a storage area, a patio, a terrace and/or a balcony.

VISITOR - Employee, agent, guest, invitee, licensee or other person on the property at the
specific request or invitation of an Owner or resident.
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L. GENERAL RULES

A.

The Assaciation acting through its Board of Directors, has adopted the following Rules
and Regulations to be effective January 24, 2016, pursuant to Article XII of the Potomac
Oaks Bylaws and Section 11-111 of the Maryland Condominium Act. These Rules shall
supersede and replace all previously adopted rules for the Condominium.

The Association Rules and Regulations are supplementary to, and not in lieu of, the
Condo Docs. To the extent of any inconsistency, the following will prevail in order
noted: The laws and statutes of the State of Maryland, the Declaration, the Bylaws, and

these Rules and Regulations.

Owners, residents, and visitors shall, at all times, abide by all laws, ordinances, zoning,
and other governmental regulations, and the provisions of the Condo Docs.

An Owner is primarily, and ultimately, responsible for his/her own conduct, the conduct
of all residents and visitors to their unit, the general common elements and limited
common elements. Owners are responsible for informing tenants, residents, and visitors

of these Rules and Regulations.

Nothing in these Rules and Regulations is intended to restrict the right of Management or
Owners/residents to notify the Police or other County/State/F ederal authorities of
disturbances of the peace, illegal activities, health or fire-safety issues, concerns for the
safety of children or pets, concems about persons who may pose a risk to themselves or

to others, and other appropriate concems.

Owners shall provide a copy of a current access key to their unit to Management. Ifa
deadbolt lock is installed, the Owner must provide the access key to Management. Rules

regarding access keys are:

1. The access kejfs in the custody of Management shall be coded in such a way as to
prevent identification by unauthorized persons. They shall be secured by the

Association and Management in a locked box.

2. Access keys may be used to admit an Owner or resident who is inadvertently locked
out of his unit. Persons locked out may contact Management who will provide
access only during regular Condominium Office business hours. If an access key is
needed after business hours a locksmith must be contacted at the Owner's or

resident's expense.

3 The Association and its Board, Management or Agents, only in the exercise and
discharge of their respective powers and responsibilities, shall bave the right to enter

4 unit. Reasons for such eniry may include:

4 The fact or threat of fire, flood, emergency or other condition that may adversely
affect the common areas or other units, or the fact or threat of illness or danger to

the Owrer(s) or resident(s).



b. Inspection of a unit shall be upon due cause shown for the presence of vermin,
insects, or other pests, ot the presence of other health hazards, and for the purpose
of taking such measures as may be necessary to control or exterminate such
vermin, insects, or pests or remove such hazards. Eniry may be at a reasonable
hour of the day after written notification, except in case of an emergency, in
which case entry may be immediate and without notice.

If an access key has not been furnished as required, and if access to a unit is
warranted as described in section 3 above, the following shall apply:

1. The Association and its Board, Agents, or Management shall have the
right to remove and destroy the unit door and/or unit door lock(s), by any means

necessary.

ii. The Owner shall be responsible for the repair or replacement of such door
and/or lock(s) and all associated costs.

iii. The Association, and its Board, Agents or Management shall not be
responsible for the damage to and/or removal of the unit door and /or doar lock(s)
or for any property within the unit which may be lost, stolen, or destroyed as a
result of the damage to and/or removal of the unit door and/or lock(s).

Soliciting for any matter unrelated to Association governance on the property by Owners,
residents, visitors, Association employees and nonresidents is prohibited. Owners,
residents, Association employees or visitors who are contacted by solicitors on the
property shall immediately report the incident to the Management Office.

Monthly Condominium fees are due and payable to the Association on or before the first
day of every month. Payments include late fees levied in the previous month,
Condominium fee payment may be made as an electronic direct debit, personal check,
money order, bank cashier check or certified check. Coupons must be included with
non-electronic payments. Electronic direct debit is the preferred method of payment, and
forms to sign up for the service are available in the Management Office. Payments shall
not be made at the Management Office, with the exception. of those from Owners who
are delinquent and have been granted special payment arrangements as authorized in

writing by the Board of Directors.

1. A late fee shall be levied against delinquent unit Owners if payment of the monthly
condominium fee, or other assessments, including prior late fees, is not received by

the 15% of the month.

2. Checks returned for insufficient funds (NSF) will be subject to a $25.00 handling
fee.



3. For repeated delinguencies, or checks returned for insufficient funds, Management is ~
authorized to request payment by cashier’s check, money order, or certified check.

4. The Association’s Collections Attorney shall send by U.S. Mail or hand delivery, a
Late Fee Notice to Owners delinquent more than 45 days. This notice may, to the
extent practicable, suggest the type and amount of collection costs and charges that

might be incurred by.the Owner(s).

5. The Association’s Attorney will inform the delinquent Owner of the Association’s
intent to file a lien and set forth the delinquent fees, late fees, collection costs and
attorney fees, as well as other charges, to be pursued if the delinquent amount is not
paid within 15 days. This notice shall state that if the account is not paid in full
within 15 days from the date of the notice, the account will be accelerated and the
fiscal year’s assessments for that unit shall be declared immediately due and
payable. The Attomey shall initiate court action by the 60™ day of the delinquency.
Payments received will be applied to the oldest outstanding debt first. Foreclosures,
sheriff’s sales or other legal actions will occur on a case-by-case basis as authorized

in writing by the Board of Directors.

6. In addition to all other rights that the Board of Directors has for non-payment of
regular fees or special assessments that are more than forty five (45) days past due,
the Board of Directors and/or Management shall have the right until the delinquency ~
has been paid, to suspend an Owner’s parking privileges, and the right to use the '
facilities, such as recreational facilities, or services, provided directly through the

Association.

L Owners/residents shall not direct, supervise, or in any manner attempt to assert control
over, or request favors of Association employees. Employees and agents of the
Association are not authorized to accept packages, keys, money or articles from or for the
benefit of an Owner/resident/visitor unless authorized in writing by the

Owner/resident/visitor.

II. UNIT RULES

A UNIT INTERIOR

1. Units shall be occupied for private residential purposes only. The total number of
persons, over the age of 24 months, residing in a unit, at any time, shall be no more
than two times the number of bedrooms in the unit. The number of bedrooms in a unit
is determined by the Condo Docs. The term bedroom does not include dens. One (1)
bedroom = Two (2) residents, Two (2) bedrooms = Four (4) residents and Three (3)

bedrooms = Six {6) residents.



10.

11.

Units shall not be used substantially for commercial or business purposes (e.g.
daycare). Home-based business use is allowed if approved and licensed by the City
of Gaithersburg. A copy of the City of Gaithersburg issued Home Based Business

License shall be provided to Management.

Units shall not be used for illegal purposes, and illegal acts shall not be committed or
permitted in or upon a unit.

Noxious or offensive activity shall not be conducted in a unit that would interfere
with the rights, comfort, or convenience of another unit or units. Nothing shall be
done In a unit that may be or become an annoyance or nuisance to others.

Waterbeds are prohibited in all units.

Doors opening into units from commeon hallways, and building entry doors must be
kept closed at all times, except when in use.

Nothing shall be done or kept in a unit that may result in the cancellation of insurance
on the building or contents thereof, or would be in violation of any public law,
ordinance or regulation. Gasoline, propane, or other highly flammable or explosive
material, other than common household products in limited quantities, shall not be

kept inside a unit.

Nothing shall be done in a unit that impairs the structural mtegrlty of the building or
structurally changes the building.

All structaral repairs and replacements shall be of first class quality and as similar to
the character of the construction or installation that existed prior to the occasion that
necessitated the repairs or replacements. Repairs and replacements shall be done with
contemporary building materials and equipment after all necessary permits and

approvals have been obtained.

All radio, television, sound system, or other electrical equipment of any kind or
nature installed or used in a unit shall fully comply with all rules, regulations, the City
of Gaithersburg, Montgomery County and State of Maryland ordinances and
applicable code. The Owner alone shall be liable for damage or injury caused by
radio, television, sound system or other electrical equipment in a unit.

Window treatments must be maintained in good condition and show an exterior (the
side facing outward) color that is white to ensure a uniform attractive external
appearance of the buildings. Sheets, plastic, cardboard, plywood and other such
materials shall not be used with the exception of limited temporary use following a

casualty to the unit.



12. At minimum, ninety (90%) percent of the floor area in each unit, with the exception
of kitchens and bathrooms, shall be covered with carpeting and a 9/16 inch minimum
commercial padding to adequately limit sound transmission to other units.

13. Washers and dryers are prohibited in units.
14. Window air conditioners and/or window fans are prohibited in units.

15. Decals or signs on the inside of windows, with the exception of fire and security
decals, are prohibited.

16. Owners and residents are responsible for:

a. Proper use, repair and upkeep of all electrical, mechanical, plumbing systems, and
smoke detectors within units.

b. Proper maintenance, upkeep and repair of all unit interior elemenits such as tile
work, grouting, caulking, shut-off valves, etc. Shut-off valve repairs shall be
performed during the water shut-offs regularly scheduled by the Association.
Owners who request water shut-off after the regular scheduled date shall pay a fee of
$100 unless other arrangements have been made with Management.

¢. Maintenance and upkeep of all equipment (air handler for heating and air
conditioning) in the unit's mechanical room, including oiling motors, cleaning or
replacing filters, keeping condensate drains open and walls and floors of
mechanical closets clean and in good condition.

d. Proper use and maintenance of all personal possessions (appliances, equipment,
aguariums, etc.)

e. Repair of damage to Owners unit, other units or common and limited common
areas as a result of accidents or abuse, misuse or neglect of the above mentioned

systems.

f. Promptly reporting to Management defects that may potentially damage other
units and/or common areas.

B. UNIT EXTERIOR

1. Planting of trees and shrubbery on the terrace levels is encouraged but requires
written authorization by Management. A written request must be provided prior to
planting. The written request must include your contact information, the name of the
plant, where you plan to plant it and its estimated size at full growth. The mature
height of trees and shrubbery shall not exceed the allowable height of privacy fences.

2. Bird feeders anywhere on the property are prohibited.
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3. Storm windows shall not be installed. Storm windows installed prior to the
establishment of this rule may not be replaced with newer storm windows.

4. Window and window screen repair, painting and replacement are the Owner’s
responsibility. Broken windows are to be replaced, and repairs are to be made

immediately after detection.

5. Signs, with the exception of an appropriate mailbox nameplate, are prohibited. Name
plaques in the lobby or other common areas are prohibited, with the exception of the
dental office. Realtors who wish to post signs announcing the availability of a unit
may display a “For Sale” sign in a unit window from Saturday morning through
Sunday evening only. Property signs, directional arrows, etc. shall not be posted.

[II. LIMITED COMMON AREA RULES
A. BALCONIES, PATIOS AND TERRACES

1. Balconies, Patios and Terraces are limited common areas. With approval of the
Board, the terrace areas are outside of T-1 and T-2 and may be enclosed with
approved fencing. With approval of the Board, the area below the railing level of
balconies may be protected with a % inch Plexiglas that is instalied on the inside of
the balcony railing, no higher than the height of the railing and 2" off the floor. Non-

corrosive screws are required.

2. Satellite dish installation is limited to a wooden fence, railing, or on the balcony/patio
and shall not extend beyond the unit’s property. Satellite dishes must be less than one
(1) meter and/or 39" in diameter and placed either on a freestanding base or clamped
(no holes drilled in concrete or brick walls) to the railing with no portion of the dish
extending beyond the vertical plane of the railing. Patio level dishes may be placed
on either a freestanding base or mounted on a fence post. Satellite dishes, television
or radio antennae, or any other antennae connection shall not be permanently
installed or placed on the common grounds or elements such as the roof or exterior

brick walls.

3. Balconies and patios shall not be enclosed or covered. There shall be no awnings,
canopies, blinds, shades, screens or similar fixtures attached to, hung in, or used on

balconies or patios.

4. Nothing shall be affixed to the exterior building facing, floor or ceiling of a balcony
or patio area with the exception of motion sensor security lights for the terrace level
units.

5. Balconies, patios, mechanical rooms and terraces shall not be used as storage areas.
Boxes, storage bins, large containers, or sheds are prohibited. Storage bins or
benches designed for outdoor use that are no taller than 2 feet and not longer than 4
feet are allowed. These bins or benches shall not obstruct the mechanical room door.

11



10.

I1.

12,

13.

14.

15,

Storage of tools, car repair equipment, contracting equipment, cleaning equipment, or
supplies that do not fit in approved storage bins/benches are prohibited. Exercise
equipment, recreational vehicles or equipment including mopeds, scooters, skis, etc.
and large toys are prohibited.

Grills, with the exception of propane grills that are prohibited, may be stored on
patios and balconies:

Cooking: Montgomery County fire ordinances state that the use of charcoal or other
fuel, or electric cooking equipment outside of any multi-family dwelling shall be
prohibited unless such cooking equipment is at least 20 feet away from every part of
the building, including terrace level fencing. Charcoal cookers, electric grills,
braziers, hibachis, grills or any gasoline, propane or other flammable liquid or
liquefied petroleum gas fired stoves, or similar devices shall not be ignited or used on
balconies, patios or inside units under order of the Montgomery County Fire
Marshall. Violations can result in a Civil Citation for $500.00 by the Fire

Department.

Open fires (barbeques), fire pits, camp rings, trash cans, and/or other devices for
setting fire are prohibited.

(asoline, propane, or other highly flammable or explosive material shall not be stored
on patios, balconies or in storage areas.

The Montgomery County fire code prohibits the storage of motorcycles and other
motorized vehicles on balconies, patios and terraces.

Ttems such as signs, posters, decorations (with the exception of temporary appropriate
seasonal decorations), laundry, clothes, carpet, towels, blankets, comforters, rags, etc.

shall not be hung from the balcony railing.

Floor coverings on patio or balcony floors are prohibited to prevent water
accumulation and concrete damage.

Wind chimes are allowed provided they are not of a type or size that disturb other
residents.

Customary lawn or outdoor furniture in good condition and well-tended potted plants
are allowed. Allitems should be placed and secured to protect against being blown or

pushed off.

It is prohibited to throw or sweep any items such as cigarette butts, water and dirt off
of balconies and patios. It is prohibited to allow water or liquid to run off balconies

from hosing off the balcony, over-watering of plants, etc.

12



16. Plants are encouraged to decorate balconies, patios or terraces. Planters are not

permitted on top of fences. Table and/or hanging plants are limited to the inside of
the balcony railing and/or patio fences.

B. VEHICLES AND PARKING

1.

10.

Automobile repairs are prohibited except for minor emergency repairs, such as
changing a flat tire or charging a baftery.

Leaving 2 running vehicle unattended on the property is prohibited.

Disabled and/or abandoned vehicles will be tagged with warning notices and, if not
registered or repaired shall be towed at the Owner’s expense.

THonking a horn to summon an individual from a residence, building or any other area
is prohibited.

Vehicles are prohibited from parking in fire lanes and are subject to towing at the
Owner’s expense. '

Vehicles are prohibited from being driven or parked on common grassy areas and are
subject to towing at the Owner's expense.

Vehicles are prohibited from parking spaces marked SNOW during snowy and other
wintery weather and are subject to towing at the Owner's expense.

There is one reserved parking space per unit. Only unit residents who have registered
their vehicles can park in the reserved space.

Owners and residents shall register their vehicle(s) with Management and obtain a
permanent parking permit decal(s) from Management. The decal shall be placed on
the passenger side rear window in the upper corner. One (1) bedroom units are
allowed a maximum of two (2) permits. Two (2) and three (3) bedroom units are
allowed a maximum of three (3) permits. One additional resident permits will be

available for an annual fee of $100 each.

Each unit is provided two (2) Visitor Parking Permit hangtags that are not to be used
for resident parking. Visitors whose vehicles are parked on the property overnight
shall obtain a Visitor Parking Permit hangtag from the resident and display it inside
the front windshield or hang it from the rear view mirror. A resident who has more
than two (2) overnight visitor vehicles must contact Management to obtain additional
permits or the vehicles will be towed. Residents who have visitors whose vehicles
will be on the property for more than 48 hours shall register the visitor’s vehicle with
Management and obtain a long-term parking permit from Management. Long-term

permits cannot exceed 3 months.
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1.

12.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Visitors must park in unnumbered spaces. Parking in a reserved space may result in
ticketing, booting and/or towing of the vehicle at the vehicle Owner’s risk and

expense.

The visitor Handicap parking area is directly in front of the Clubhouse. Parking
spaces posted as Handicap shall be used only by disabled persons who have obtained
and display a state-issued handicap permit (temporary or permanent), ot a vehicle that
bears handicap license plates (tags).

. Commercial vehicles that are registered with the management office are permitted to

be parked on the property in designated arcas on a first-come first-served basis.
There is a $100 annual commercial vehicle registration fee. Decals shall be placed in
the upper right corner of the passenger window. Unregistered commercial vehicles
parked on the property shall be towed at the Owner’s expense.

Buses, trucks (greater than one ton), trailets, boats, recreational vehicles, unregistered
commercial vehicles, dump trucks, snow plows, fractors, or monster trucks with
oversized tires shall not be parked on the property. All will be towed at the vehicle

Owner’s expense.

All vehicles parked on the property shall display current license plates (tags) and
decals, as required by State and Montgomery County law. Vehicles must be in safe

and good operating condition.

All residents and visitors shall observe and abide by the parking and traffic
regulations posted by the Association or government authorities. Violations shall be
reported to Management by providing parking decal number, license plate number,
make, model and color of the violator's vehicle.

Blocking access to and from any parking space is prohibited. Vehicles shall not block
building exits, sidewalks, driveways, zebra-zones, or encroach upon lawns,

landscaping or fire lanes.

Vehicles must be legally parked. "Legal" parking is defined as parked between the
lines so that no part of the vehicle protrudes into the space beyond the line, on the

line, into fraffic lanes or over the sidewalks.

Covered vehicles shall be parked only in assigned spaces. Vehicle covers must be
contoured or tailored to reasonably fit the vehicle, and must be maintained in good

condition. Vehicles shall be in good operating condition, properly registered,
licensed and display parking permit decals.

Owners shall be responsible for damages such as oil spills, hitting guard rails, fences
or light posts, etc. caused by themselves, their residents or their visitors. Damages
and need for cleanup or repairs shall be promptly reported to Management.
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20. Owners who become delinquent shall not be permitted to park on the property.

Vehicles belonging to delinquent Owners shall be towed at the Owners' expense.

21. Any vehicles parked, stopped or standing in violation of these rules are subject to

towing.

C. STORAGE

Personal property placed in the storage areas or on other common or limited common areas
shall be at the sole risk of the property Owner. The Association will not be liable for the loss,

destruction, theft or damage to personal property.

L.

Articles that could create fire hazards, be in violation of public laws and ordinances,
o incur insurance rate increases for the Association shall not be stored in individual

units or in the storage areas.

Enirance to the 700 Side storage areas shall be controlled by Management. Only
Ownmers or renters, with government issued identification, can access these storage
areas. Owners or renters shall sign for a key, and pay a key deposit of $20.00 fora

storage room key.

1IV. COMMON AREA RULES

A. CONDUCT AND ATTIRE

1.

Obnoxious or offensive activity that interferes with the rights, comforts, or
conveniences of other Owners or residents shall not be conducted in the common
areas, and nothing shall be done in the common areas that is, or may become a

nuisance to others.

Except for the Clubhouse, drinking alcoholic beverages in the indoor comimon areas
is prohibited. Alcoholic beverages are allowed in the Clubhouse, Except for the
swimming pool area, smoking is allowed in common areas at least 20 feet from all
buildings. When smoking in common ateas, butts must not be deposited on the

property. Use of illegal substances on the property is prohibited. Owners, residents
and visitors are responsible for safeguarding our community and are expected to call

the Gaithersburg Police regarding suspected illegal activity.

Playing or loitering in the indoor common areas, driving lanes, parking areas,
breezeways, and stairwells is prohibited. Owners, residents and visitors are expected

to call the Gaithersburg Police regarding suspicious activity.

All persons shall be fully clothed (including shirts and shoes) and properly attired
when appearing in the common areas with the exception of the swimming pool and

pool areas.
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9.

Other riding equipment, including, but not limited to, tricycles, bicycles, skateboards,
skates, roller-blades, scooters (manual or motorized), and/or similar wheeled/toy
items with the exception of handicap transportation devices, shall not be operated,
driven or ridden in units or indoor conumnon areas, such as hallways, building foyers,

" and laundry rooms. Such indoor common areas may be used only to carry or

transport such equipment to or from the building and the units.

Upon exiting a building, all “other riding equipment™ may be operated or ridden only
in transit to or from the property where such equipment may be legally operated.
Parking lots and driveway entrances are for the operation of DMV recognized and
licensed vehicles only. Under no circumstances shall “other riding equipment”
interfere with pedestrian or motor vehicle traffic.

Children may play on the grassy arcas. Playing in the streets or parking lots is
prohibited. The Association shall not be liable for injuries or damages that may occur

while playing on the property.

Nothing shall be done in a common or limited common area that impairs the
structural integrity of the building or structurally changes the building. Nothing may
be removed from or changed in the common areas without the prior written consent

of the Board of Directors.

Attic access is restricted to the engineering staff and utility contractors.

10. Residents shall not allow doors (unit and laundry) to slam.

B. DECORATIONS AND ADVERTISEMENTS

L.

Interior common areas (hallways, foyers and laundry rooms) shall not be decorated or
furnished. Appropriate seasonal unit door decorations that conform to the local fire
code are permitted. The unit number shall remain visible at all times.

Obstructions, with the exception of doormats, shall not be placed outside a unit
doorway in the common hallway. Except as permitted by law, signs shall not be
displayed in unit windows, balconies, patios, and terraces or on unit or building
entrance doors, with the exception of emergency notifications placed by Management
or standard pet and/or fire department information.

Posting of advertisements or posters of any kind in or on the property shall not be
allowed without written approval of the Board of Directors.

C. LAUNDRY ROOM

1.

For your safety and protection, the laundry room door and windows shall be shut and
locked at all times.

2. The hours for using the laundry room are daily from 8:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m,
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3. Fach building has a laundry room. Only, residents residing in each building’s units
are permitted to use the laundry room.

4. Laundry room replacement keys are issued for a fes of $5.00 after proof of residency
has been established, and government issued ID shownn. To maintain cleanliness,
trash receptacles are provided for empty detergent bottles, lint, dryer sheets, etc. All
clothing must be removed from the machines upon completion of the wash/dry cycle
and from the laundry room in a timely manner. All abandoned articles will be thrown

away.

5. The washing machines are not to be used to dye clothing or other material. The
dryers are not to be used to dry unwashed clothing, or non-clothing items.

6. Do not wash or dry any materials with rubberized backing, oversized items, 1.e.
comforters or curtains. Specialty items must be taken to the dry cleaners or a

laundromat.

7 The user shall remove lint from the dryer after each load and put it in the laundry
room trash receptacle.

8. Maintenance of the washing machines and dryers is the responsibility of the
contractor. The contractor’s name and contact information are posted in each laundry

room. Do not attempt to repair the machines.

9. Damaged Coinmach cards can be replaced by contacting Coinmach.

D. RECREATIONAL FACILITIES

The Association maintains a swimming pool and Clubhouse for the use and enjoyment of
Owners, residents, Association employees and their visitors. To ensure safety and
convenience, minimize the Association’s liability, and maintain minimum maintenance
costs, the Association has established general and specific rules for use of these facilities.
Violations may result in the suspension of rights to use the facilities, monetary
assessments, penalties, and/or criminal prosecution.

All persons using the recreational facilities do so at their own risk and sole responsibility.
The Association does not assume responsibility for any occurrence, accident, or injury in
connection with such use. Owners, residents and visitors are responsible for complying
with recommended health and use restrictions on facilities and equipment.

1. SWIMMING POOL

The swimming pool opens Memorial Day weekend and closes Labor Day weekend. The
hours are posted at the entrance to the pool, on the bulletin board outside the
Management Office and on the Potomac Oaks website. Use of the pool after hours,
except as part of a scheduled community activity, or when a lifeguard is not on duty, 18

bited. Pool furniture and other items are provided by the Association for your use

prohi
or removal of such property.

and enjoyment. Fees will be incurred for misuse, abuse,
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d.

b.

Admittance to the Pool:

1.

Only Owners, residents, Association employees and visitors may use the pool
facilities. Management shall issue picture identification passes for swimming

pool admittance.

There is no entry fee for Owners, residents and Association employees with
current pool passes. Each unit and Association employee is provided two guest
passes. Additional guests are permitted entry to the pool if, in the opinion of the
lifeguard on duty, there is sufficient room in the pool at the time of the request.
Additional guests will be charged a fee of $5.00 per guest aged 13 years and over
and $3.00 per guest aged 6-12 years. Guests under five (5) years of age are free.

Owmner, resident, Association employee and visitor pool passes shall be presented
to the lifeguard on duty when entering the pool recreational area. No one will be
admitted without a pass. Pool passes shall be revoked for misuse or for reasons
of misconduct, as determined by Management and/or the Board of Directors.

Unit Owners shall maintain pool passes, and/or provide them to their renters or
vistfors. The lost pool pass replacement fee 1s $10.00 each.

Conduct in the Pool Areas:

Everyone using the pool facilities must comply with the Rules and Regulations.
Owners are responsible for their actions and the actions of their renters and guests
using the swimming pools or pool areas. Association employees are responsible for
their actions and their guests” actions using the swimming pools or pool areas.
Serious ot repeated serious offenses may result in suspension of pool privileges.

1.

The Lifeguard is authorized and required by the Association to enforce the Rules
and Regulations and Montgomery County swimming pool ordinances.

The lifeguard is the final authority for all activities in the pool areas.

A person who does not obey the lifeguard, risks being expelled from the pooi
area. If a person refuses to leave the pool area, the Gaithersburg City or
Montgomery County police shall be summoned for removal and applicable civil
charges will be filed against the violator. The Association may also take
additional measures against the person such as rule violation fees, restricting

pool usage, etc.

Lifeguards shall report problem cases to Management. Verbal reports may be
provided, but shall be followed by a written report within twenty- four (24) hours
of the incident. Reports shall contain a description of the incident with the date
and time of its occurrence, names, unit numbers, and telephone numbers of
involved parties and/or witnesses. Other parties and witnesses of the incident are

also expected to submit reports.
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5. Lifeguards are authorized to refuse admittance to, or expel Owners, residents,
Association employees ot visitors {rom the pool who have apparent medical
conditions such as infection, cold, open sore, bandaged wound, illness, etc. that

pose health and/or safety hazards.
6. Diving is prohibited.
7. Glassware in the pool area is prohibited.

8. Food is permitted only in designated pool areas.
9. Pets are prohibited in the pool areas. Service animals are permitted.

10. Robes, shirts, shoes, and other suitable garments must be worn 1o and from the
pool area. Dressing areas are provided in the bathhouse for change of clothing.

11. Appropriate swimsuits must be worn in the pool. Street clothes and
undergarments are not considered appropriate swim attire. Thongs are

prohibited.
12. Smoking is not permitted in the pool areas.

13. Portable audio or video devices shall be used with headphones.

14. When inclement weather continues to restrict pool use in excess of thirty
(30) minutes the lifeguard shall close the pool.

15. During all hours of pool operatibn, at least one lengthwise lane shall be
designated and roped off for lap swimming only.

2. CLUBHOUSE

The Clubhouse is adjacent to the pool and the Management Office. It is used for most
community meetings and special activities. The community room (includes kitchen and
bathrooms) is available for rental by Owners, residents, and Association employees for
private parties. The Clubhouse community room is available for rental use Monday
through Thursday from 10:00 a.m. to midnight, and Friday and Saturday from 10:00 a.m.
to 1:00 am. The Owner, resident or Association employee who rents the Clubhouse
community room is fully responsible and liable, regardless of who pays for and/or attends
the function, for visitors’ behavior and damages to the building, room, fumiture, and

- equipment.
2 A non-refundable user fee and a security deposit are required in advance
to be paid at the time a reservation is made. The rental user fee shall be

forfeited if the reservation is canceled less than ten (10) days prior to the
reservation date. The security deposit will be returned within five (5)
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business days after the function, provided no damages or other additional
costs were curred. Damage cost(s) are deducted from the security
deposit. Costs in excess of the deposit are levied against the Owner’s
account m accordance with Article V of the Bylaws. Violations of the
community room rules shall result in the loss of the security deposit.

. A security guard attends all functions at the cost of the Owner/resident
who is responsible for the function. Guard fee information is available
fromn Management.

Only adult Owners, residents and Association employees may reserve the
Clubhouse community room. The Association reserves the right to refuse
use of the community room for an event. The requestor will be provided
with additional information governing the use of the community room
and other optional rental items. A Clubhouse Agreement form must be
completed and signed prior to using the community room.

. The Clubhouse community room is for the use and convenience of the
Owners, residents and Association employees and their invited visitors.
Owners, residents and Association employees reserving the community
room shall agree that he or she personally will use, and be present in, the
room during the authorized and reserved hours.

All activities shall be confined to the Clubhouse community room.
Entering the pool area or wandering the property is prohibited.

The Clubhouse community room shall not be used for illegal purposes.
The Owners, residents and Association employees using the room shail
not make, or permit to be made, any disturbing noises/music, or any act
to be done, either in the community room or common areas, that will
interfere with the rights, comforts, or convenience of any other Owner,
resident, Association employee or visitor.

The use of alcoholic beverages in the Clubhouse community room shall
be in accordance with the State and Montgomery County alcohol
beverage control laws. Sale of liquor shall not be permitted. Excessive
consumption of alcohol will lead to the termination of the function by the

guard.

. Pets are not permitted in the Clubhouse community room. Service dogs
are permitted.

The community room shall be inspected after cach reserved function to
assure that the function has ended, all visitors have departed, and the
community room and adjacent common arcas are in order.
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i, The Owner, resident or Association emnployee who reserves the
commtnunity room is responsible for removing all personal property and
trash after the function has ended and for leaving the premises in a clean
and neat condition. All fumniture must be placed back in the same
position as when the reserved period began. Furniture or appliances shall

not be removed from the room.

k. The Association is not responsible for the loss of personal affects, dishes,
equipment, or food. Anything left after the use of the Clubhouse
community room will be considered abandoned and disposed of

accordingly.

E. VANDALISM /OBSTRUCTION

L.

Defacing or deliberate damage to buildings, recreational facilities, or common areas is
prohibited. Vandalism is prosecuted to the full extent of the law. Damages shall be
promptly repaired at the expense of the responsible unit Owner, and may require the
Association to secure a lien against the Owner’s property. Surveillance cameras may

be in use throughout the property.

Nothing shall be done on, or kept in, the common areas that would result in the
cancellation of insurance on the buildings or contents thereof or would be in violation
of any public law, ordinance or regulation.

Baby carriages, bicycles, playpens, wagons, toys, benches, chairs, or other articles of
personal property shall not be unattended or obstruct common areas.

Nothing shall be stored in the common areas. Entrances, halls, stairways and other
similar common areas of the buildings must not be obstructed or used for any purpose

other than entering or leaving buildings.

V. DISTURBANCES

A. Owners and residents shall exercise extreme care not to disturb other residents with
excessive noise or voices, or the unreasonable use of radios, televisions, musical

instruments, telephones, amplifiers, or other similar devices.

B. Noisy repair or installation work shall only be done between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and
9:00 p.m. week days and 9:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m. on weekends.

C. The City of Gaithersburg noise ordinance requires that voice, indoor activity, music, and
television volume be reduced between 9:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. every day.

VI PETS

A. STATE AND LOCAL LAWS



1. Residents are required to comply with State of Maryland, Montgomery Cbuniy and

City of Gaithersburg ordinances regarding the registration and licensing of cats and
dogs.

These ordinances prohibit keeping vicious, wild, or exotic animals as pets. They also
require that pets be leashed at all times when outside the unit, prohibit animals from
running loose on common property, and prohibit animals from trespassing or
damaging another’s property or creating a nuisance.

Ordinances and these Rules and Regulations authorize the City of Gaithersburg or the
Montgomery County Animal Control to enter the property to investigate complaints,
and enforce ordinances. Owners, residents or visitors shall report violations to the
Anima) Control Office by calling 301-258-6343.

B. REGISTRATION

Only one (1) small domestic house pet shall be permitted within any Unit. Each pet shall
be registered with Management within one week of taking up residence. Registration
shall include a current picture of the pet, as well as proof of required licenses and rabies
shots as required by the State, Montgomery County, and the City of Gaithersburg
ordinances. This procedure is for the protection of both Owners and pets. Pet Owners
shall pay a $15.00 fee to the Association every two years.

C. PET TYPES AND BREEDS

L.

Animals, other than one (1) common household small pet shall not be kept and
maintained in a unit. Exotic pets are prohibited. Other prohibited animals are:

a. All poisonous species.

b. Animals weighing more than 60 pounds at maturity.

c. Monkeys or other anthropoids.

d. Wild animals, farm aniroals or fowl (to include but not limited to chicken, turkey,
pheasants, quail, guineas, geese, and/or similar feathered animals).

e. Pot-bellied pigs.

f. Dogs or cats other than domestic breeds.

g. Aggressive animal: Any animal that has previously caused injury to a person, or
has been deemed “potentially dangerous™ or “dangerous” by any city or county
municipality.

Animals shall not be kept, bred, or maintained for commercial purposes in units.

The following breeds are required to be muzzled and on a leash at all times while on
the property. Failure to abide this rule will result in the immediate removal of the pet.
Restricted dogs include: Pit Bulls, Pit Bull Terrier, American Pit Bull Terrier,



American Bult Dog, Staffordshire Terriers, and other Bull Terriers, Presa Canario
(Canary Island Dog), Bandog American Mastiff (cross between American Pit Bull
and Neapolitan, Can Corso), Dogo Argentino or any mixed breeds or crosses of all of

the above mentioned breeds.

Pets causing injury to an Owner, resident, visitor or another pet, or whose Owner
violates Montgomery County or City of Gaithersburg pet ordinances, shall be
reported to the local animal control authorities and the attacker pet shall be
permanently removed from the property within three (3) calendar days at the pet

Owner’s expense.

Pet Owners are responsible for damage and/or injury expenses. The Association is
not liable for incidents involving Owner’s, resident’s or visitor’s pets.

D. CONDUCT

1.

Pets shall be controlled by their Owners to preclude interference with the enjoyment
by others of their units and the common areas.

Pets that create a disturbance or detract from neighboring residents’ enjoyment of
his/her own unit, or the common areas, will be considered improperly behaved.
Management shall require the immediate removal of an improperly behaved pet from

the premises.

Pets shall be maintained in a clean and odor free manner, ensuring no annoyance for

neighbors.

Pets shall be restricted to the inside of the units. For their own safety, pets are not
permitted on unit balconies, patios and terraces without supervision.

Pets are not permitted in entrance foyers or hallways, except when accompanied by
their Owner/care giver for transit between the individual unit and outdoor grounds.
Pets shall be transported in a carrying case, or on a leash. Pets are not permitted in
the storage areas, the Clubhouse and the pool areas.

All pets shall be leashed while in common areas. Pets in comutmon areas must beona
maximum 6-foot leash.

Excrements must be properly removed and disposed of by the pet Owner/caregiver.
Doggy bags are provided in the pet areas (see map) for this purpose. Collection of
solid pet waste in all areas of the property, including "Pet Areas" is mandatory. The
fine by the City of Gaithersburg for not cleaning up after your pet is $100.00.

Visitors shall comply with these Pet Rules, including conduct and size, except that
such pets need not be registered with Management unless they are here for more than
48 consecutive hours or more than two (2) visits; in which case they shall be

registered on the third day or third visit respectively.

Repeated violations of the Rules and Regulations will result in the immediate and
permanent removal of the pet.



VII. PROBLEMS AND CONCERNS

A, Management shall be contacted directly about any problems or concerns about the
property, and for any service requests.

B. Complaints of problems or concerns regarding the Management Staff, Engineering Staff,
or contractors (financial management, answering service, landscapers, etc.), shall be
made to the Manager who shall report all problems and concerns to the Board of
Directors. Complaints of problems or concerns regarding the Manager shall be made

directly to the Board of Directors.

C. Complaints of problems or concerns about actions of Owners, residents or visitors should
be made to the Management Staff. Telephone or visit the Management Office, and
explain the issue. You will frequently find that Management is aware of the issue, and
action is already being taken. Follow up the phone call with a written complaint using
the complaint form found outside the Management Office or by email. If damage fo your
property is involved, request inspection by Management, contact the responsible party
and your insurance company, if applicable. If the problem persists, contact the
Management Staff and follow-up with another written complaint.

If you are not convinced that reasonable steps are being taken, write a letter (delivered by
ground mail or email) to the Board of Directors, explaining the facts of your complaint,
the recommendations you made, and Management’s response. The Board will take
appropriate action and keep you informed of the situation.

VIII. ENFORCEMENT OF VIOLATIONS AND DUE PROCESS

The Association enforces its rules. We trust that every Owner, resident and visitor who
becomes part of our community and enters our property in good faith, accepts his or her
responsibility to know and follow the rules. When this is not the case, the Association shall
issue appropriate warnings, levy fines, alert local authorities and take other steps necessary to
protect Owners, residents, visitors and property. Management is authorized by the Council
to enforce these Rules and Regulations. Enforcement includes the following:

A. Issuing a Violation Notice - When a violation is reported, the staff sends a Violation
Notice to the unit resident. If the occupant of the unit is a renter or a visitor, a copy of

the notice t¢ also sent to the unit Owner.

B. Issuing a Cease & Desist Notice - If the violation persists for 10 days, the
Management Staff sends a Cease and Desist Notice to the unit Owner and, if the
occupant is a renter or visitor, a copy to the renter or visitor. This notice gives a

maximum of 10 days to cure the violation.

C. Notifying City or County Authorities - If a violation involves a law or local
ordinance, Management may notify the appropriate authority (police, fire marshal,

animal control, etc.).
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D. Issuing a Notice of Hearing - If the Cease and Desist Notice is disregarded, at the
expiration of the 10-day cure period, Management shall issue a Notice of Hearing to
the Owner that states the applicable fines and penalties for the violation, and notifies

the Owner of his or her right to have a hearing.

E. Hearing - The Covenants Committes reviews the violation, hears both parties, and
makes a decision as to whether the allegation of aviolation is valid, and what fines or

penalties are appropriate.

IX. ASSESSMENTS AND FEES FOR RULES VIOLATIONS

A. An Owner shall be assessed all costs incurred by the Association to repair or replace any
property darnage caused by the negligence, misuse or neglect of the Owner or his/her
resident, visitor or their pets. An Owner shall also be responsible for costs and legal fees
incurred by the Association in taking corrective, protective, or preventive action as a
result of his/her conduct, that of his/her renter, visitor, or their pets, in violation of these

Rules and Regulations.

B. An Owner shall be monetarily assessed for violations of these Rules and Regulations, as
provided by the Maryland Condominium Act and in accordance with the nature of the
offense and prior record of the violator. Violators are entitled to request a review hearing

before the Covenants Committee, but in so doing, agree that they shall abide by the
Covenants Committee determination.

C. Assessments are the personal obligation of the Owner(s), and are billed directly to the
Owmer(s). The assessments are considered outstanding lens against the unit's account.
Failure to pay these fines promptly results in an owner being in arrears and not in good

standing.

Except as otherwise provided herein, all fines shall be assessed at the maximum rate
permitted in the Bylaws.

X. SELLING, RENTING AND REFINANCING

A SELLING

The following are requirements of state and local laws and the Bylaws of the condominium:

1. At the time an Owner lists their unit for sale, the Owner shall provide the real estate
agent representing the Owner with the rules for selling that are available from the
Management, and the Association’s online website.

2. The Owner shall obtain a Resale Package. Management provides instructions on how
to obtain this Resale Package.

25



3. As required by the Maryland Condominium Act, the Owner shall inform
Management within ten (10) days of a change in ownership.

4. Upon a change in ownership, the Owner shall return the Parking Permit decal(s) and
Visitor Parking permit hangtags to Management. Returning these permits frees you
of any liability for illegal use of your invalid parking permits.

B. RENTING

I. The Owner shall be licensed by the City of Gaithersburg

2. The Owner shall use the official Potomac Qaks Standard Rental Agreement available
from Management or on the Association’s website. The Standard Rental Agreement
assures that you meet local laws and community rules, and provides the Council of
Unit Owners with a standardized form for record keeping purposes.

3. The Owner shall provide a signed copy of the mandatory Potomac Oaks Standard
Rental Agreement to the Manager within five (5) working days of the date of the

lease.
4. The Owner shall return the Owrer's or the previous renter's Parking Permit Decal(s)

and Visitor Parking Permit hangtags to Management. Returning these permits frees
you of any liability for illegal use of your invalid parking permits.

5. For units rented on the 700 side, Ovwmers shall make their renters aware of the unit's
assigned storage area. The user of the storage space shall provide the office a deposit

to gain access to the storage area.

6. The Owner shall pay the required Move-In Fee within ten (10) days afier the renter
takes up residency.

7. The Owner shall maintain and provide a current copy of these Rules and Regulations
to the renter.

8. The Owner shall maintain and provide mailbox and laundry room keys to the renter.

9. The Owner shall provide Management with a completed and signed by the renter,
Potomac Qaks Condominium Check List and a current unit door key.

10. All leases must comply with the terms of Article V, Section 13(g) of the Bylaws.

NOTE: Rental agreements shall not be accepted if a previous rental agreement was
issued less than six (6) months prior to the date a new agreement is signed. Parking
Permit decal(s) shall not be issued to renters until all of the above requirements have

been met.

C. REFINANCING
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When refinancing your unit, and in compliance with the Bylaws, you shall provide the
Condominium Office with a copy of the refinancing settlement sheet within ten (10) days of the
settlement date. The Bylaws require that this information be on file with Management.

HELPFUL INFORMATION

A. LOST KEY REPLACEMENTS

1. Unit access Door - Duting regular Condominium Office Hours your unit access key 18
available. After hours you must call a locksmith.

2. Mailbox - The lock on your mailbox must be replaced. The engineering staff will
replace the lock for a fee. Contact the Condominium Office for information.

3. Laundry Room - The Condominium Office will replace the key for a fee. Contact the
-Condominium Office.

B. ENERGY CONSERVATION TIPS

The Association pays the entire bill each month for utilities for everyone. It is easy to forget
the amount paid is directly related to the amount of energy and resources used, and your
monthly condominium fees. Significant reductions in costs can be made by:

1. Turning off lights, electrical appliances, and water when not in use.

2. Shutting all exterior doors, storm windows and inside windows when using heating or
air conditioning. '

3. Not overheating or overcooling the unit by maintaining Pepco’s recommended

temperature settings: During the winter months, turn down your thermostat from 72°F
to 68°F for 8 hours a day. During the summer the recommended thermostat setting is

between 75°F and 78°F.

Conserving water by installing water saving faucets, showerheads, and toilets.

5. Using energy saving lighf bulbs.

6. Changing the heating and air conditioning system’s filter at least four times a year.
7. Cleaning air vents on a regular basis.

8. Installing ceiling fans.

9. Not putting grease, pasta, rice, vegetable peels, onionskins, celery, corn husks,

artichokes, bones and fruit pits in your garbage disposal. These items can cause
plumbing back-ups.

10. Always run cold water when running your garbage disposal.
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IMPORTANT TELEPHONE NUMBERS

Police, FATE, RESCUB. ...+ reeeaivreieesssresesstmnsasas e ass s 911
Fire Department —- NOD-€mergency............ PP PP STPE PRI 240-683-6520
Montgomery County Police — NOD-EMIEIZEMCY - .vvrrorrrrrsemurerersemsemsrsnierss 301-279-8000
Gaithersburg Police — NOR-@IMETZENCY ..o vereerrerrrsssiisnrrrsnsrersresrstcsssrrsriesss 301-258-6400
Gaithersburg City Hall — General Information......... T POT TP 301-258-6300
Montgomery County Government TEFOLTIATION . 1+ ot vveeseeseraeermimrrn s st 311
POISOM COMITOL. - e vr e eeeiaaesre e es i re e et a s e s s T 800-492-2414
Animal Control — Gaithersburg........vorervvnirmorenrr e 301-258-6343
Animal COntrol BIEIEENCY . ...o.vuerrriarrrersscrrmsssisssers st 240-773-5900
Board oF BAUCAHON. ... evvvvvneerenssrnrsnss e ssrs s st 301-279-3617
RIAE-OLL BUS v+ e eeeerreeeesaresaineeneisassa s e s s s n s s sa st 301-217-7433
Brown Station Elementary SchoOL . .coveervivinriennr e 301-840-7172
W ASHINELOTL GBS . 1 vvevevcesancesessmceseamre e s r et 703-750-1000
Washington Gas — Gas Leak......oovovrmirrinm s 703-750-1400
HPEPCO . oo eeeeestaeeeetba s aae e e s e r e s 202-833-7500
Miss Utility.......o.o.oeeee NPTRUTOTOUR it 800-257-7777
Potomac Oaks Condominium Office. . ..o vvorionimmmnarisree e -301-987-9797
Main Street Property Managemient. .. .....cooorrrrrmrmrersinsrnrrree e 240-632-0001
CLOTACASL . -+ v ve s e eeseatsan s et e e e e e s s h s s e s s 301-309-5519
StarpOWEr (RCND...vverivvir e eicns s 301-531-2862
VBIIZOTL 1. c.vosese e 800-837-4966.
Coinmach.......... e 877-264-6622
+PEPCO Bldgs. 702-800 Account # 276500040 Bldgs. 802-886 Account # 2767610054
RULES APIPROVAL
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Said Rules and Regulations approved by the Board of Directors, this 24" day of January, 2017.

List all Board Members and their Titles:

Walter Klinger President
Ellen Erdelsky Treasurer
Alvin Yang Secretary
Carole Revelle ' Diector
Suresh Ralapati Director
Susan Berlin Director
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Potomac —_-

RESOLUTION

¥

At the September 28, 1993 Council of Unit Owners of Diamond
Farms Condominium T/& Potomac Oaks Board of Directors meeting,

Gary Edenfield made the following motion:

Collection Peolicy

1. Current property list and delinduency list will be sent monthly
to attorney.

2, The first day of the second month a current and ccrrect delinguency
list will be sent to attorney.

3. Between the 5th and the 10th of the month, attorneys will send
notice of Intent te Lien Property and file suit in court for Judge-
ment. If no response within 10 days, suit will be filed; 30 days,
lien will be filed,

/ﬂ\ 4, Once the account has been turned over to attorney for collecticn, .
there will be no further contact with residents by CMI or the Condo
Office, they will immediately be referred to the attorney,

5. If no response after ten days, attorney will file suit in court,
on approximately the 20th of the month.

6. Once suit is filed, a copy of suit will be sent to the Condominium
0ffice where notification will be made to the mortgage company of the
impending suit. (Necessary format of mortgage company ncotification
letter will be the responsibility of the attorney.)

7. After 30 days, attorneys will file and record lien against resi-
dent's property.

8. Attorney will conduct case through court system,

9. Attorney's cffice will provide a monthly written report to the

Board of Diregtors, CMI and Condominium Office of the status of
cach account.

10, Any payment plan will be reviewed with CMI and/or Condominium
Office for final approval.

Motion was secondad by: Drew Pallo

Motlion passecd: Unanimously

Pulnd) Ll

Richard Felix, Presfgent, Beoard of Directors
Council OFf Unit Owners of Diamond Parms Condominium T/A Potomac 0Oaks
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RESOCLUTI CN

At the January 28, 1992 Council

ol Unit Owners of Diamond Farms Condominium, T/A Potomac QOaks,

Board of Directors Meeting, Richard Felix made

the following motion:

Pursuant to Article V, Sections 6 and 7 of the Bylaws of the
Council of Unit Owners of Diamond Farms Condominium T/2 Potomac
Oaks {attached), the Beoard of Directors unanimously agrees that
the legai office handling collections for the Association upon
default of payment levied shall accelerate the entire balance
of said assessment along with any interest thereon at the

maximum rate permitted by law at the time the assessment came

due.

Motion was seconded by: Clive Wright
fotion was passed: Unanimously
Signed:

R I S A i
= pen -

Wwilliam Murphy, President
Board of Directors
Council of Unit Owners of Diamond Tarms {(ondominium

T/A Potomac Oaks



Potomac . - -Ogaks

RESOLUTZION

At the July 28, 1992

780 Quince Orohard Boulevard

Gaithersburg, Maryiand 20878
(301) 840-9295
Fax (3C1} 840-0240

Council of Unit Owners of

Diamond Farms Condominium T/A Potomac Qaks

Drew Pallo made the following motion:

Board of Directors meeting,

That late charges will be applied at 102 of the total

condominium fee, effective date 10/1/92.

Motion was seconded by:

Motion was Passed:

Susan PDonahue

Unanimously

OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

Signed:

NN,

Richard Felix, President
Board of Directors

Council of Unit Owners of Diamond Farms Condeominium T/A

Potomac Oaks

FPRESIDENT
Richard Felix

VICE PRESIDENT
Clive Wrignt

TREASURER
Jderry Neterer

SECRETARY
Gary Eqenfizld

DIRECTOR
Susan Denatue

OIRECTOR
Pameliia Orose

DISECTOR
Drew Pailo



November 24, 1993
Dear Owner/Resident:

The Board of Directors of Potomac Oaks after surveying
the ownership, having an open hearing with the residents
and much review and discussion with other properties,
legal council and management has decided to go forward
with the implementation of the Assigned Parking Program.
This program puts into place one assigned parking space
per unit within the community.

YOUR ASSIGNED PARKING SPACE 1S .

Enclosed you will find a map of the community indicating
the Auxiliary parking areas. Permits will still be issued
and all parking requlations pertaining to vehicle size,
commercial vehicles, motorcycles, etc. will still be in
effect. Each unit will be issued one teal parking permit.
This permit will be installed on yvour rear bumper, drivers'
side. This vehicle may park in the Assigned Parking Space,
open parking spaces or Auxiliary parking spaces. Additional
vehicles (threec maximum) will be issued a yellow parking
permit.

VEHICLES WITH YELLOW PARKING PERMITS MAY PARK IN ASSIGNED
PARKING SPACE OR AUXILIARY PARKING SPACE ONLY.

You will notice parking areas that are marked "SNOW". -
These areas are open parking spaces for guests, etc.
unless it snows. If there is a threat of snow falling,
these spaces may not be used.

ANYONE PARKING IN THE SNOW SPACES WHEN THE ABOVE CONDITIONS
ARE PRESENT IS SUBJECT TO TOW WITHOUT NOTICE.

The assigning of parking permits will begin in December in
conjunction with your 1994 Resident Fact Sheets. All
Residents must complete and return to the Condominium
Office the 1994 Resident Fact Sheet in order to receive
the new 1994 parking permits.

Oaks

780 Quirce Grenard Boulsvard

Caithersburg, Marylana 20878
(304} 840-923%
Faw (3011 840-0240

© OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

PRESICEN:
Richard Felix

VICE PRESIDEMT
Clive Wrigh:

IREASURER
Sugan Donahue

SECRETARY
Gary Ederficld

DIRECTOR
Jderry Neterer

DIRECTOR
Drew Pallo

DIRECTCR
Parnellia Wilson



Residents who have not returned the Resident Fact Sheet to
the Condominium Office and have not received proper 1994
parking permits may be subject to tow.

Any resident parking in an Assigned Parking Space that is
not his/hers will be subject to tow by the resident to whom
the space was assigned.

Also enclosed are the tow company agreement forms. You may
choose one of these or any other tow company that is licensed
in Montgomery County.

Remember you are subject to ticketing and towing if you are in
viclation of any of the Potomac Oaks vehicle Rules and
Regulations.

Your cooperation is necessary for the successful implementation
of the Assigned Parking Program.

Very truly vours,

ikt 2Ly

Richard Felix, President
N Board of Directors



Potomac == aks

780 Quince Orchard Boulevard
Gaithersburg, Maryland 20878
(301) B40-3295

Fax (301) 840-0240

RESOLUTIOW

At the November 22, 14994 Council of Unit Owners of

Diamond Parms Condominium T/A Potomac Oaks Board of Directors meeting,

Gary Edenfield made the following motion:

Regarding terrace level units where the backyard area has not been
enclosed by a fence. This area is a limited common element and
maintenance may not be impeded by plantings. The following poclicy
is established:

It is the unit owners responsibility to maintain plantings and flower
beds.

Regular, scheduled landscape. maintenance {mowing) may not be impeded
by plantings, flower beds, stone, flagstone or brick patios or walk-

ways.

Management/Landscape Contractor will not be responsible for plantings
which overhang balconies.

Drew Pallo

Motion was seconded by:
) OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

Motion was Passed: Unanimously

PRESIDENT
Richard Feix

VICE PRESIOENT
Clive Wrighl

TREASURFEH
Jarry Nelerer

Signed:
SECRETARY

Gary Edonlield

DIRECTOR
Susan Donahiue

(E§;2%fL4/fé)£4;::} _&7%:L’£f{fk5:} | DIRECTOR

Pamailia Orosz

Richard Telix, Presidert
DIRECTGR

Board of Directors AR
Council of Unit Owners of Diamond Farms Condominium /A f~’i‘
Poromac Oaks



780 Quince Qrehard Boulevard
Galthersturg, Mary'and 20878
{301 B£0-9285

Fax (301} 840-0240

RESOLUTION

At the May 31, 1994 Council of Unit Owners of

Diamond Farms Condominium T/A Potomac Oaks Board of Directors meeting,

Drew Pallo made the following motion:

All replacement units for HVAC equipment for mechanical rooms will
be the Magicaire unit which can be installed by any licensed

contractor.

Motion was seconded by: Pamellia Wilson
] Dnani 1 OFFICERS AND DIREGTORS
Motion was Passed: nanimous.ly
PRESIDENT
Richerd Felix

vICE PRESIDENT
Clive Wright

TRZASLRER
] Jerry Neterar
Signed:

SECARETARY
Gary Foenfislo

f\ DISECTOR

. Susan Donabuc

? DIRECTCR

Pamellia Orosz

Richard Felix, President

Board of Directors DIRECTOR

Council of Unit Owners of Diamond Farms Condominium T/A Drew Pailc
Potomac Oaks
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Potomac— —

RESOLUTION

i
|

At the May 31, 1994 Council of Unit Owners of Diamond Farms Condo—
miniums, T/A Potomac Oaks, Board of Directors meeting, Drew Pallo

made the following motion:

Owners may paint their balcony railings if they follow the recom-
mended procedure and use the designated paint color and type.

1. Clean railing with solution of TSP (trisodium phosphate) or other
heavy duty cleaner.

2. Scrape, wire brush and/or sand to remove all loose paint.

3. Prime all bare areas with universal metal primer. Let dry
thoroughly.

4. Paint entire railing with Duron Exterior Acrylic Semi Gloss

700 Side uses 5405N Sealskin

B00 Side uses 5435N Charcoal

Motion was seconded by Pamellia Wilson and passed unanimously.

Signed:

Richard Felix, President

Board of Directors

Council of Unit Owners of Diamond Farms Condominium
T/A Potomac Oaks
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~ Potomac—_

RESOLUTIOCN

At the May 31, 1994 Council of Unit Owners
of Diamond Farms Condominiums, T/A Potomac Oaks, Board of

Directors meeting, Susan Donahue made the fol-

lowing motion:

Board of Director meetings will not use Robert's Rules

of Order.

Ll

Motion was seconded by: Clive Wright

Motion passed: Unanimously

Signed:

' 7/
Richard Felix, President
Board of Directors

Council of Unit Owners of Diamond Farms Condominium
T/A Potomac Oaks
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Potomac—

RESOLUTION

At the December 1, 1992 Board of Directors meeting the

Board made the following resolution: That the cost of

any necessary electrical work needed to locate and mark
electrical lines for an individual resident who is installing

or having installed a fence and/or deck shall be the responsi-

bility of the resident.

Sue Donahue made the motion.

Clive Wright seconded the motion.
The motion passed (vote) Unanimous -
Signed:

Richard PFelix, President
Board of Directors
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RESOLUTION

At the January 24,.1935 Council of Unit Owners of Diamond Farms
Condominium, T/A Potomac 0Oaks, Board of Directors meeting, Drew
Pallo made the following motion: :

Resolution on Storage Room Key Sign-outs

1. Each Tuesday First Letters will be sent out to anyone who has signed
out a key the previous week. Requested date of return will be no later

than Thursday. Copy attached.

2. Omn the following Friday, Second Letters will be sent out to anyone
who did not respond to First Letter. Requested date of return is no
later than the following Monday. Copy attached.

3. On the following Tuesday anyone who did not respond to First or Second
Letter will be sent an invoice to cover the cost {labor and materials) of
changing the lock. This amount may be increased as necessary to cover the

}’NGOSt of replacement.

If invoiced amount is not received within the specified time (fifteen
days) amount due will be recorded by Management Company against unit
owner and his/her account will reflect that amount delinguent until

paid. Copy attached.

Motion was scconded by: Annabel Liebelt

Motion passed: Unanimously

Signed:

SIIET P

Richard Felix, President

Board of Directors
Council of Init Owners of Diamond Farms Condominium

T/A Potomac Qaks

~




RESOLUTIOHN

Potomac =

At the January 24, 1995

Oaks

780 Quince Orchard Boulevard
Gaithersburg. Mandand 20878

{301) 840-9295
Fax {301} 840-0740

Council of Unit Owhéys of

Diamond Farms Condominium T/A Potomac Oaks Board of Directors meeting,

Drew Pallo ' made the following motion:

Residents signing out Storage Room keys must leave one of the following

as a security deposit:

1. Current, national credit card with expiration date;
Express, Visa, Master Card, or Discover.

2. Current Driver's license.
3. s10.
Motion was seconded by: Annabel Liebelt
Motion was Passed: Unanimously
Signed:

Pk Fclier

Richard Felix, President
Board ol Directors

o~

P N A

[ELI

American

OFFICERS AND DIRFCTTRE

PRES|EN
Richard

VICE PHES

Civg W

TREASL

Jerry M

CiRE




Potomac:=

RESOLUTION

780 Quince Orcharg Boulevard

Gaithersburg, Maryiand 20878
{301) 840-9205
Fax (301) 840-0240

At the May 26, 1992 Council of Unit Owners of

Diamond Farms Condominium T/A Potomac Oaks Board of Directors meeting,

Pamellia Oros=z made the following motion:

That the Board agree to build additiomnal storage bins in the

700 Side Storage Rooms to be dedicated to those ground floor

units on the 800 Side that were not allocated storage facilities.

Motion was seconded by: Susan DPonahue

Motion was Passed: Unanimously

OFFCERS AND DIRECTORS

Signed:

kel 2

Richard Felix, President

Board of Directors

Council of Unit Owners of Diamond Farms Condominium T/A
Potomac Qaks

PRESIDENT
Richard Felix

VICE PRESIDENT
Ciive Wright

TREASURCR
Jerry Netarer

SECRETARY
Gary Edenfeld

DIRECTOR
Susan Donahue

DIRECTCR
Pamellia Orosz

DIRECTCR
Digw Pallc
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Condominium

RESOLUTTION

At the September 26, 1989 Council

of Unit Owners of Diamond Farms Condominium Board of Directors

Meeting, Richard Felix made the following

motion:

" That the Board will file the Association's income tax as either
a homeowner's association or a corporation per recommendation by

Howard Goldklang, the CPA at the time of the audit."

Motion was seconded by: Drew Pallo

Motion was passed: Unanimouslv

Signed:

e e

William Murphy, Presi nt(j/ o
Board of Directors, Council of Unit Owners of Diamond Farms Condominiun

780 Quince Orchard Boulevard e Gaithersburg, Maryland 20878 « (301) 840-9295



RESOLUTTIOHN

At the

May .29, 1990 Council
of Unit Owners of Diamond Farms Condominium, T/A Potomac Oaks,

- s o . N w - s
Board of Directors Meeting, Florence Roy made

the following motien:

Arthur Goldklang has the permission and approval of
the Board of Directors to file tax returns for the Assoeciation

under whichever filing status he feels will be most beneficial

N\

to the Association.

Motien was seconded byf Richard Felix

Motion was passed: Unanimgously

Signed:
o] B /j 7
. /////Z L
/( . // nelf S -
William Murphy, President ééy

Board of Directors

Council of Unit Owners of Diamond Farms Condominium
T/A Potomac QOaks
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RESOLUTTON

At the May 2%, 19990 Council

of Unit Owners of Diamond Farms Condowinium, T/A Potomac ODaks,

Board of Directors Meeting, Clive Wrieht made

the following motion:

The Board of Directors has reiterated the Developer's
policy that no washers and/or dryers may be installed
in any form in individual units.

Motion was seconded by: Richard Felix
Motion was passed: Unanimously
Signed;

'W%M«@W /”")’

U1
William Murphy, President

Ecvcard of Directors
Council of Unit Owners of Diamond

T/A Potomac Qaks

Farms Condominium

DEFENDANT’S




October 5, 1989

Writer's Direct Dial Number

Tracy A. Bacigalupo, Esquire
Weinberg & Green

The Equitable Center

100 8. Charles St., 1l5th Flr.
Baltimore, MD 21201

RE: CERTIFICATE OF AGENCY

Dear Tracy:

Enclosed herewith is an original executed and notarized
certificate of Agency for the Diamond Farms Condominium as per

’q‘ your request.

If you have any questions or comments, please call me.

Sincerely,

WILLIAM P. MURPHY
Vice President A
Development Division

Encl.

cc w/encl.: Ms, Jeanne Smarte
Potomac Oaks Condominium
780 Quince Orchard Boulevard
Gaithersburg, MD 20878

fRADY MANAGEMENT. INC.. THE MONTGOMERY CENTER, SUITE 625, 8630 FENTON STREET, SILVER SPRING, MARYLAND 2091
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CERTIFICATE OF AGENCY

STATE OF MARYLAND, COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY, SS5:

I, William P. Murphy; President of the_Cbuncil of Unit
Owners of Diamond Farms Condominium (the "Council"), hereby
certify that the Council, an unincorpofated condominium
association, is located at 780 Quince Qrchard Boulevard,
Gaithersburg, Maryland 20878, and conducts business in the name,
or under the style, title or designation of:

POTOMAC OAKS

COUNCIL OF UNIT OWNERS OF

DIﬁ?pND F S COND IUM
By.

William P. Murphy, P&és

Sworn to and subscrlbed before me this ¢{EL day of
October, 1889. . ,

—~ 0l O, F oo
Notary Public

My Commission Expires:
7{/4/93

Return to:

Tracy A. Bacigalupo, Esquire
Weinberg and Green

100 South Charles Street
Baltimore, Maryland 21201



CFRICERS AND DIRECTORS

FRESIDENT
RICHARD FELIX

VICE PRESIOUNT
TLORENCE ROQY

TREASUKER
ROGER BUCHANAN

A,

SECRETARY
CLIVE WRICHT

CIRECTOR

CARY EDENFIELD
DIRESTOR
WILLIAM MUARILY

DIRECTOR
DREW FALLO

BDleer &ﬂ:f Lt
Ch 84 'S vA

TAC OAKS

COND OMINIUM

October 2, 1989

Chevy Chase Savings & Loan

Diampond Sgquare

Gaithérsburg, Maryland g .
20878 N °

Re: Account # 184300487

To Whom It May Concern:

Please be advised that on September 11, 1989
Diamond Farms Condominium began trading as

Potomac QOaks Condominium, Therefore, we would
like to add that name. to our next order of checks.
All other information is to remain the same,

Thank you for your prompt‘attention‘to this matter,

Sincerely yours,

éeanne E. Smarte

Property Manager

Bank file
Corr file

cC:

Sobrd anlavnrd 6 Mlalthardhirs. Laruland $ARYE o 79AIN DLA BB
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DIAMOND FARMS 2

RESOLUTION
At the "January 24, 1989 Board of Directors
meeting, S N Rl A Aty made the following motion:
i L lae ; /ZZ&? de the followi i

Three replacement window models are readily available
for purchase by individual homeowners. They. are:

1. The 1189 Season-All model #195 commercial-rated,
double hung, (tilt sash) white aluminium thermalized
replacement windows with 7/8" insulated glass, /2"
fiberglass screens, and internal grid systems be-
tween the insulated glass to match the existing
grid design systems, or

2. The Storm Weather Products, Inc., "HEATSHIELD" model
{DH-C45 commercially rated, aluminium, thermally
improved, tilt-sash, replacement windows with 7/8"

insulated glass, etc., Or

3. The Traco, Model #TR-5000 double-hung, white aluminium
thermalized, tilt-sash, replacement windew with in-
ternal grid systems, 3/4" insulated glass, screen in-

cluded.

Motion was seconded by: ‘wgzﬂi&¢> g;bLéZ?

Motion was passed: Unanimously

Signed:

v y e . 1
5 A&ﬁ/’m//// Z ?f%{/:
Richard C. Felix, President 7

Board of Directors
Diamond Farms Condominium

780 Guince Orchard Boulevard = Gaithersburg. Maryland 20878 « {301) 840-9295



Potomac

Resolution

At the August 27, 2013 Council of Unit Owners of Diamond
Farms Condominium T/A Potomac Oaks Board of Directors
meetingfﬁﬁaaéui214haA&;L___ made the following motion:

To combine the Covenants and Building and Grounds

Committees as one.

Motion was seconded by:( f&_,( (o W

Motion was passed by:_ 45', - e

Signed:

alter Klinger, Priesident

Board of Directors
Council of Unit Owners of Diamond Farms Condominium

T/A Potomac Oaks

Officer and Directions

PRESIDENT
Walter Klinger
VICE PRESIDENT
Drew Pallo
TREASURE

Ellen Erdelsky
SECRETARY
Traci DiMartini

DIRECTOR
Charles Russell

DIRECTOR
Carcle Revelle
DIRECTOR
Cindy Trost

780 Quince Orchard Boulevard « Gaithersburg, Maryland 20878 - (301) 987-9797 -« Fax (301) 387-0093
Visit our website: verizonconcierge.com/potomacoaks
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_“BARISS

c/o Abaris Realty, Inc.
7811 Montrose Rd., Suite 110
Potomac MD 20854

P674 Potomac Oaks Condominium
BALANCE SHEET AS OF
10/31/2018

Page: 1

10002
10040
10590
10610

12040
12100
12110
12150
12240
12360
12780
12781
12790
12800
12820
12880
12960
12980
13020
13100
13910
13911
14020

15500
17020

20020
20150
20320
20520
20540
20580

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

CASH OPERATING-NCB

CASH ACCOUNT - MGMT CHANGE
PETTY CASH

CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSIT

TOTAL CASH

CONDOMINIUM FEES REC.
SPECIAL ASSESS. REC.
RESERVE RECEIVABLE
ACCOUNTS REC.-NSF CHECKS
RENTS RECEIVABLE

UTILITY FEES RECEIVABLE
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
DUE TO RESERVES

ACCT REC-INSURANCE CLAIM
ACCT REC-LAUNDRY

ALLOW FOR DOUBTFUL ACCT
REC.FROM MGMT. AGENT
INTEREST RECEIVABLE
PREPAID EXPENSES
PREPAID INSURANCE
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
DEFERRED TAXES-CABLE
INVENTORY-FUEL

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

EQUIPMENT
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

TOTAL FIXED ASSETS

NET FIXED ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE-TRADE
DUE TO MGMT (BANK FEES)
EMPLOYER FICA PAYABLE
EMPLOYEE'S FICA PAYABLE
FEDERAL WITH. PAYABLE
MD. WITH. PAYABLE

24,356.37
23,742.05

1,000.00
55,525.58

104,624.00

141,589.54
10,408.61
35,473.59

100.00
11,400.00
44,109.31

112,312.50
10,920.00

662,000.00
86,300.00

9,340.86
-147,117.57
288.00
34.41
8,997.10
38,516.99
14,754.00
4,642.00
18,800.08

1,167,493.42

132,115.73
-107,349.19

24,766.54

24,766.54

1,192,259.96

310,095.45
125.00
468.00

2,059.50
1,233.00
970.00
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_ABARISS
c/o Abaris Realty, Inc.
7811 Montrose Rd., Suite 110
Potomac MD 20854

P674 Potomac Oaks Condominium
BALANCE SHEET AS OF
10/31/2018

Page: 2

20600
20700
20701
20790
21040
21050
21100
21280
21360
21410
21420
21560
21800
22000
29920

31600
33020
33110
33610
33952
33972
34020
39000

SIMPLE IRA WITHHELD
ACCRUED WAGES

OTHER PAYROLL ACCRUAL
DEFERRED LAUNDRY REVENUE
PREPAID CONDO FEES
PREPAID RESERVES
PREPAID SPECIAL ASSESS.
PREPAID PARKING FEES
PREPAID UTILITY FEES
DEFERRED CABLE INCOME
DEFFERRED FEE-VERIZON
PREPAID MISC. FEES
PREPAID OTHER

LOANS & EXCHANGES

DUE TO/FROM OPERATIONS

TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY

CONTRIB CAPITAL-BLG STRU
OPER/CONTINGENCY RESERVE
REPLACEMENT RESERVE
RESERVE-BLDG EXTERIOR
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT FUND
RESERVES-UTILITIES
MEMBERS EQUITY-UNAPPR.
NET EARNINGS SUMMARY

NET INCOME

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

1,281.03
8,125.14
6,640.00
63,916.67
94,676.13
4,398.00
2,508.00
266.00
22,330.36
1,123.13
10,050.00
41.00
8,845.66
948.60
662,000.00

1,202,100.67

50.00
6,250.00
1,161,879.42
-5,131.00
21,560.00
-39,504.10
-890,420.85
-306,818.34
42,294.16

1,192,259.96
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P674 Potomac Oaks Condominium

STATEMENT OF INCOME & EXPENSES

Page: 1
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O 10/31/2018
~ABARIS &
—_._:_—-———_.—..__—-.l-—-
c/o Abaris Realty, Inc.
7811 Montrose Rd., Suite 110
Potomac MD 20854
Fiscal Mo Fiscal Yr Ends CURRENT CURRENT CURRENT Y-T-D Y-T-D Y-T-D ANNUAL BUDGET
(MO=1) 2018 ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE BUDGET REMAINING
REVENUE:
MEMBERS ASSESSMENTS:
41040 CONDOMINIUM FEES $ 151,870.00 $ 151,876 $ 6.00 $ 151,870.00 $ 151,876 $ 6.00 $ 1822510 $ 1,670,640.00
41100 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT F 21,728.00 21,560 -168.00 21,728.00 21,560 -168.00 258,720 236,992.00
41110 RESERVE FUND ASSESSM 71,964.00 60,717 -11,247.00 71,964.00 60,717 -11,247.00 728,604 656,640.00
41360 UTILITY FEES 123,308.00 123,333 25.00 123,308.00 123,333 25.00 1,480,000  1,356,692.00
41400 LATE/INTEREST FEES 204.40 1,500 1,295.60 204.40 1,500 1,295.60 18,000 17,795.60
41410 CABLE INCOME 0.00 335 335.00 0.00 335 335.00 4,020 4,020.00
41440 LEGAL FEES -5,837.20 917 6,754.20 -5,837.20 917 6,754.20 11,000 16,837.20
41480 MOVING FEES 450.00 1,250 800.00 450.00 1,250 800.00 15,000 14,550.00
41560 MISCELLANEOUS FEES 510.00 0 -510.00 510.00 0 -510.00 0 -510.00
TOTALMEMBER ASSESSM ~ $ 364,197.20 $ 361,488 § -2709.20 $ 364,197.20 §$ 361,488 $ -2,709.20 §$ 4,337,854 §$ 3,973,656.80
OTHER REVENUE:
43020 INTEREST REVENUE $ 0.00 $ 83 § 83.00 $ 0.00 $ 83 $ 8300 $ 1,000 $ 1,000.00
43040 LAUNDRY COMMISSION R 3,339.25 3,800 460.75 3,339.25 3,800 460.75 45,600 42,260.75
43140 FINES 0.00 83 83.00 0.00 83 83.00 1,000 1,000.00
43510 BAD DEBT RECOVERY 583.95 0 -583.95 583.95 0 -583.95 0 -583.95
43854 COMMUNITY ROOM 500.00 250 -250.00 500.00 250 -250.00 3,000 2,500.00
43900 MISCELLANEOUS REVENU 70.00 292 222,00 70.00 292 222.00 3,500 3,430.00
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE $  4,493.20 $ 4508 $ 1480 $ 4,49320 $ 4,508 $ 1480 $ 54,100 $ 49,606.80
TOTAL REVENUE $ 368,60040 $ 365996 $ -2,694.40 $ 36869040 $ 365996 $ -2,69440 $ 4,391,954 $ 4,023,263.60
EXPENSES:
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES:
50020 MANAGEMENT FEE $ 3,233.34 $ 3750 $ -51666 $ 3,233.34 3750 $ -51666 $ 45,000 $ 41,766.66
50040 LEGAL 451.25 6,250 -5,798.75 451.25 6,250 -5,798.75 75,000 74,548.75
50060 AUDIT/TAX RETURNS 0.00 0 0.00 0.00 0 0.00 8,000 8,000.00
50070 CONSULTANT FEE 1,250.00 1,250 0.00 1,250.00 1,250 0.00 15,000 13,750.00
50100 OFFICE SUPPLIES . 570.53 1,333 -762.47 570.53 1,333 -762.47 16,000 15,429.47
50130 POSTAGE 664.20 417 247.20 664.20 417 247.20 5,000 4,335.80
50140 PRINTING 405.77 583 -177.23 405.77 583 -177.23 7,000 6,594.23
50160 TELEPHONE 1,821.42 2,083 -261.58 1,821.42 2,083 -261.58 25,000 23,178.58
50240 EDP-BILLING 0.00 125 -125.00 0.00 125 -125.00 1,500 1,500.00
50280 DUES,SUBSCRIPTIONS 0.00 167 -167.00 0.00 167 -167.00 2,000 2,000.00
50380 BANK CHARGES 0.00 104 -104.00 0.00 104 -104.00 1,250 1,250.00
50960 BAD DEBT 0.00 2,500 -2,500.00 0.00 2,500 -2,500.00 30,000 30,000.00
50980 MISCELLANEOUS 1,446.77 125 1,321.77 1,446.77 125 1,321.77 1,500 53.23
TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE $ 984328 $ 18,687 $ -884372 $ 984328 $ 18,687 $ -8843.72 $ 232250 § 222,406.72
UTILITIES:
51020 ELECTRICITY $ 4711651 $ 40417 $ 669951 $ 4711651 $ 40,417 $ 669951 $ 485000 $ 437,883.49
51040 GAS 23,632.19 30,417 -6,784.81 23,632.19 30,417 -6,784.81 365,000 341,367.81
51060 FUEL OIL 0.00 2,500 -2,500.00 0.00 2,500 -2,500.00 30,000 30,000.00
51080 WATER/SEWER 17,789.37 50,000 -32,210.63 17,789.37 50,000 -32,210.63 600,000 582,210.63
TOTAL UTILITIES $ 8853807 $ 123334 $ -34,795.93 $ 8853807 $ 123,334 §$ -3479593 $ 1,480,000 $ 1,391,461.93
CONTRACTED SERVICES:
52020 TRASH $ 0.00 $ 6667 $ -6,667.00 $ 000 $ 6667 $ -6667.00 $ 80,000 $ 80,000.00
52040 GROUNDS/LANDSCAPING 0.00 5,417 -5,417.00 0.00 5,417 -5,417.00 65,000 65,000.00
52060 EXTERMINATING 2,600.00 1,833 767.00 2,600.00 1,833 767.00 22,000 19,400.00
52160 WATER TREATMENT 0.00 500 -500.00 0.00 500 -500.00 6,000 6,000.00
52180 POOL 4,500.00 0 4,500.00 4,500.00 0 4,500.00 27,000 22,500.00
52300 CLEANING 0.00 10,000 -10,000.00 0.00 10,000 -10,000.00 120,000 120,000.00
52320 SNOW REMOVAL 12,143.40 0 12,143.40 12,143.40 0 12,143.40 40,000 27,856.60
TOTAL CONTRACTED SER $ 1924340 $ 24417 $ -5173.60 $ 1924340 $ 24417 $ -517360 $ 360,000 $ 340,756.60
MAINTENANCE REPAIRS:
53020 ELECTRICAL $  3,349.50 $ 1250 $ 2,099.50 $ 3,349.50 $ 1,250 $ 209950 $ 15,000 $ 11,650.50
53060 PLUMBING 20,982.33 14,583 6,399.33 20,982.33 14,583 6,399.33 175,000 154,017.67
53100 AIR CONDITIONING -75.07 3,000 -3,075.07 -75.07 3,000 -3,075.07 36,000 36,075.07
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P674 Potomac Oaks Condominium

STATEMENT OF INCOME & EXPENSES

Page: 2
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O 10/31/2018
~BARIS ¢
—‘.-T—‘--—-—-....-..-—-—-I-—

c/o Abaris Realty, Inc.

7811 Montrose Rd., Suite 110

Potomac MD 20854

FiscalMo  Fiscal Yr Ends CURRENT CURRENT CURRENT Y-T-D Y-T-D Y-T-D ANNUAL BUDGET

(MO=1) 2018 ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE BUDGET __ REMAINING

53140 BOILER 6,651.57 4,250 2,401.57 6,651.57 4,250 2,401.57 51,000 44,348.43

53210 ROOF REPAIRS 0.00 425 -425.00 0.00 425 -425.00 5,100 5,100.00

53280 TREE CARE 0.00 2,917 -2,917.00 0.00 2,917 -2,917.00 35,000 35,000.00

53441 BUILDING MAINTENANGE 10,783.07 17,525 -6,741.93 10,783.07 17,525 -6,741.93 210,300 199,516.93

53460 PAINTING 0.00 4,167 -4,167.00 0.00 4,167 -4,167.00 50,000 50,000.00

53560 CONCRETE 0.00 175 -175.00 0.00 175 -175.00 2,100 2,100.00

53632 VEHICLE FUEL/MAINT 439.99 917 -477.01 439.99 917 -477.01 11,000 10,560.01

53870 POOL EQUIPMENT,SUPPL 0.00 0 0.00 0.00 0 0.00 5,000 5,000.00

53880 POOL REPAIRS 895.00 0 895.00 895.00 0 895.00 15,000 14,105.00
TOTAL MAINTENANCE $ 4302639 $ 49,209 -6,182.61 $ 4302639 $ 49209 $ -6,18261 $ 610,500 $ 567,473.61
PERSONNEL SERVICES:

54020 SALARIES,WAGES $ 26572.84 $ 27,250 67716 $ 26,572.84 $ 27,250 $ -677.16 $ 327,000 $ 300,427.16

54440 PAYROLL TAXES 2,032.82 2,092 -59.18 2,032.82 2,092 -59.18 25,100 23,067.18

54500 HEALTH INSURANCE 1,686.00 5,083 -3,397.00 1,686.00 5,083 -3,397.00 61,000 59,314.00

54520 RETIREMENT 169.58 458 -288.42 169.58 458 -288.42 5,500 5,330.42

54540 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURAN 0.00 57 -57.00 0.00 57 -57.00 680 680.00
TOTALPERSONNEL SERV ~ $ 30461.24 § 34,940 447876 $ 3046124 § 34940 $ -447876 $ 419280 $ 388,818.76
INSURANCE, TAXES, LICENSES, OPER. CONTIN

58020 DEPRECIATION 0.00 $ 508 -508.00 $ 0.00 $ 508 $ -50800 $ 6100 $ 6,100.00

59100 INSURANCE-MASTER POL 40,006.76 21,875 18,131.76 40,006.76 21,875 18,131.76 262,500 222,493.24

59190 INSURANCE LOSS/CLAIM 13,000.10 2,083 10,917.10 13,000.10 2,083 10,917.10 25,000 11,999.90

59200 INSUR:WORKMEN'S COMP 0.00 750 -750.00 0.00 750 -750.00 9,000 9,000.00
TOTAL INSURANCE, TAX, $ 5300686 $ 25216 27,790.86 $ 5300686 $ 25216 $ 27,790.86 $ 302,600 $ 249,593.14
TOTAL OPERATING EXPE $ 244,119.24 $ 275803 -31,683.76 $ 244,119.24 $ 275803 $ -31,683.76 $ 3,404,630 $ 3,160,510.76
REPLACEMENT RESERVES

63020 OPER/CONTINGENCY RES $ 625000 $ 6,250 $ 000 $ 625000 $ 6250 $ 000 $ 75000 $ 68,750.00

63110 REPLACEMENT RESERVE 54,467.00 54,467 0.00 54,467.00 54,467 0.00 653,604 599,137.00

63952 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT F 21,560.00 21,560 0.00 21,560.00 21,560 0.00 258,720 237,160.00
TOTAL REPLACEMENT RE $ 8227700 $ 82277 $ 000 $ 8227700 $ 82,277 $ 000 $ 987,324 §$ 905,047.00

TOTAL EXPENSES $ 326,396.24 $ 358,080 -31,683.76 $ 326,396.24 $ 358,080 $ -31,683.76 $ 4,391,954 § 4,065557.76
NET INCOME/LOSS $ 4220416 $ 7,916 -34,378.16 $ 4229446 $ 7916 $ -34,378.16 $ 0 $ -42,294.16
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DATE: September 1, 2018

TO: Potomac Qaks Unit Owners

FROM: The Board of Directors

SUBJECT: Adopted Budget for Fiscal Year 2019

In July you received the proposed Fiscal Year 2019 Budget for the Potomac Qaks
Condominium Association and & notice of an Open Forum to review the budget on
August 21,2018. The Open Forum was held. Various participants made comments
and suggestions concerning the budget and operating activities. The Board
discussed the comments during its August 28, 2018 meeting. No comments were
found to be sufficiently persuasive to have a significant impact on the budget, so it
was adopted as proposed. There is no increase in the overall amount for the regular
condo fee. There is an additional amount for a special assessment to cover the need

for replacement of the 700 and 800 boiler equipment.

A fee schedule for your records is included on the back of this memo.

You will receive a statement within the next two weels showing your unit’s new
monthty fee divided into four categories: 1) general assessment, 2} utilities, 3)
reserves and 4) special assessment. When paying by check, the statement must
accompany your payment to insure accurate and timely processing. Do not mail
any other material or correspondence with your payment. Correspondence
regarding community or unit issues should be directed to the Condominium Office
at the address below.

Condo fees are due on the first day of the month. Payments received after the
(ifteen of the month will be assessed a late fee. The Board of Directors are all unit
owners who are well aware that on occasion any of us may find ourselves in
financial difficultics that delays our ability to pay condo fees in a timely manner. If
you find yourself in this situation, please immediately contact our General
Manager or a member of the Board, in writing, to find a solution.

If you sell your home in Fiscal Year 2019, do not give your statements to the new
owner. New statements will be issued to the new owner.

780 Quinee Orchard Boulevard » Gaithersburg, Maryland 20878 e (301) 987-9797 » Fax {301) 987-0083
Visit olr website: www.potomacoaksmd.pilera.com
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Veteran Owned Business APRA
SPECIALIZING IN RESERVE STUDIES SINCE 1940 Assaciation of Professional Reserve Analysts
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

March 25, 2015

Potomac Oaks Condominium
C/o Ms. Debbie Flanders
(eneral Manager

780 Quince Orchard Boulevard
Gaithersburg, MD 20878

Dear Ms. Flanders:

At the meeting on March 24, 2015 the board approved the draft reserve study dated March 13, 2015.
Accordingly, please consider the attached study the “Final Report.”

| again thank the Board of Directors for selecting PM+ to do this study and hope you will continue to call upon
us for your future reserve study needs.

Sincerely,

A

Mario B. " Ben. Ginnetti, PRA, RS, P.E.
President

Enclosure:
Study - PDF File

4388 Poplar Tree Court « Chantilly, VA 20151-2523
(703) 803-8436 - FAX (703)-378-0433
pmplusreserves@cox.net www.pmplusreserves.com
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SPECIALIZING IN RESERVE STUDIES SINCE 1980 Association of Professional Reserve Analysts
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

POTOMAC OAKS CONDOMINIUM, Gaithersburg, MD

Level Il Update Reserve Study, March 25, 2015

Prepared for: Board of Directors

Engineer Mario B. "®Ben" Ginnetti, PRA, RS, P.E.

Copyright © 2002 ~ 2015 by Mario B. Ginnetti
This document eontains copyright and proprietary data.
ﬁ It may only be reproduced for the exrlusive usa of Potomae Oaks Condominium.
All other rights reserved by the author.
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

KEY TO UNDERSTANDING STUDY RESULTS — purpose of a reserve study is to establish a financial plan for
keeping the property’s common and limited common elements in good repair. The plan is developed by identify-
ing the component, assessing its condition and estimating both the time when work will be needed and cost of
work. In a PM+ study these entries can be found beginning on page A1, columns (1), (4) and (5). Those entries
combined with reserve savings, current reserve contribution, interest and inflation rates and how much of a con-
tingency should be preserved to fund unforeseen events are the factors that determine the reserve contribution.

RELEVANT DATA
1st Study Year FY15 $0 AOH Start of Fiscal Year ¢
FY Begins 01-Oct-14 $725,000 Your Contribution in FY15 ¢
Inspection Date(s) 2/2/2015 2.28% Inflation «
# Units 539 3.33% Interest ¢+

+ AOH (cashfinvestments start of fiscal year) and Current Year Contribution were provided to PM+ and
were best estimates avaitable when provided, they are not audited amounts.

+¢INTEREST AND INFLATION factors' best project the future needs of the property. [nflation is based on
the last ten year average for the Consumer Price Index (CPI); interest on savings is based on the ten year

average of the Constant Maturity Yield for the 10-Year U.S. Treasury note.
NOTE - If changes to amounts/factors are desired PM+ will provide a revised study, if requested.

THE FOLLOWING TABLE SUMMARIZES study findings — see detail information in "Funding Plans - 30 Year
Projection” chart, columns (13) - (21)):

CONTRIBUTION SUMMARY
Associationz Cash Flow Component
Plan Plan Plan
Reserve Contribution FY15  $725,000 $995,990 $925,480
Avg Owner Contribution FY15 1,345 1,848 1,717
Avg Owner Contribution/Month 112.09 153.99 143.09

30-Year income 31,682,400 28,517,180 28,517,180

Income From Interest 945,280 1,291,900 1,040,380
Income From Assessments 30,737,120 27,225,280 27,476,800
30-Year Min Bafance  (2,370,960) 104,010 167,130
30-Year Max Balance 5,735,580 2,720,730 2,570,360
50-Year Min Balance 6,585,660 149,370 2,563,150
50-Year Max Balance 21,294,460 4,035,880 7,157,980

ANALYSIS:

+ Asindicated in the above table the associations projected FY15 will need to be increased to meet the im-
mediate reserve needs of the property. However, our analysis and projection indicates after near term
work is completed and reserves are properly funded the contribution can be reduced to $647,500 in
FY2025 - see "Funding Plans - 30 Year Projection” chart, columns (17). The recommended owner contri-
bution assumes interest eamed on savings will be applied to the reserves and not used to offset operating
account expenses or used for other purposes. If interest is not applied to the reserves then the annual

contribution will need to be increased by the interest amount.
1. Although factors used may not prove to be precise they should be reascnable predictors of cost increases and contributions needed fo

support the reserve requirement over the life of the study.
2. If the study is being done for other than the current fiscal year, infiation is applied to prior year contribution.

Potornac Oaks Condominium 1 © 2002-2015 by MBG



Reserve Study
March 25, 2015

Cash flow methed is the preferred method for funding reserves. It provides consistency in the annual con-
fribution from one year to the next year. Future contribution increases are mostly attributable to inflation.
Component method contributions can be expected to fiuctuate considerably from year to year, making it
less practical as a funding plan.

Funding plan dollar amounts shown in columns (15), (18) and {21) of the Funding Plans - 30 Year Projec-
tion chart are the approximate year end balances, both minimum and maximum, that can be expected if
the plans are funded as shown. Properly funded plans will meet the following objectives: 1) funds are al-
ways available for needed work, 2) there is always a minimum amount of savings available to provide for
unforeseen contingencies, and 3) when studies are updated, there is not a substantial increase needed to
meet the reserve requirement. To avoid substantial increases PM+ studies take into consideration the first
thirty years of the study and an additional twenty years, making the "look at" period a total of fifty years.
The 50-year projection is to assure the recommended contribution is based on a sound long range analy-
sis of the property's reserve needs.

RECOMMENDATION:

Fund the reserves using the Cash Flow method.

Potomac Oaks Condominium 2 © 2002-2015 by MEG



STUDY INFORMATION

THIS STUDY is a Level Il Update, as requested, with on-site visit and is the second (Last PM+ study - September
16, 2010) engagement for the property by PM+. PM+ has neither collaborated with nor provided consulting advice to
others on issues pertaining to the property. Interested parties should refer to earlier studies for previous assumptions
and comments.

STUDY WAS DONE in its entirety by Mario B. “Ben” Ginnetti, a registered professional engineer (P.E.) licensed to
practice engineering in the states of Virginia, Maryland and the District of Columbia. Mr. Ginnetti is also a CAl Certi-
fied Reserve Specialist {(RS) and a Professional Reserve Analyst (PRA).

RESERVE STUDY criteria is defined by the Community Association Institute (CAI) and the Association of Profes-
sional Reserve Analysts (APRA). In complying with the criteria this study compares the "Associations” current
funding plan to the two recommended methods for preparing reserve studies, "Cash Flow (AKA Pooling)” and
“Component.” This is a reserve study only - no other use is intended.

STUDY WAS COMPILED in accordance with generally accepted standards and represents our professional opin-
ion on the items, timing and dollar amounts that should be budgeted for repair and replacement. In compiling this
study information was obtained from field measurements, visual observations and management (information pro-
vided by management is considered to be reliable). Also taken into consideration are construction features, cur-
rent conditions and component age. Testing was not performed, nor was demolition done or panels removed to
determine conditions that are not obvious. Based on our observations and the information gained during the visit
this study contains, to the best of our ability, all material issues required to determine the funding needed to meet
the property’s reserve requirement.

FOR PROPERTIES LOCATED IN THE STATE OF VIRGINIA, Virginia Statutes, 2003 Condominium and Prop-
erty Owner's Assaciation Act require the association to conduct reserve studies at least every five years, review
the results of the study at least annually and make adjustments as necessary unless the condominium instru-
ments/declaration imposes more stringent requirements. Your attention is called to Sections 55-79.83:1or 55-
514.1 of the Statutes for the complete text.

AGE, UNITS AND STYLE

Construction period — 1968-69; converted to condominium in 1985.
539-units, garden configuration.
Major amenities — clubhouse, swimming pool and tennis courts.

CASH FLOW AND COMPONENT METHOD STUDIES

This study was calculated using both the Cash flow and Component methods. A synopsis of each method is as
follows:
CASH FLOW METHOD - This method develops the funding plan by having the annual contributions offset the

variable annual expenses. All expenses are averaged over the life of the study to calculate the annual contri-
bution needed to support the reserve requirement. Yearly contribution increases are attributed to inflation.

COMPONENT METHOD - This method develops the funding plan by dividing the remaining useful life into the
balance needed to fund the item for only the next cycle of work. Yearly contributions can vary significantly
from year to year depending on where the components are in their life cycle. Contribution needed to pay ex-
penses will equal the cash flow method over the life of the study.

FUNDING GOAL

This study complies with the “Threshold Funding Plan” established by the Community Association Institute (CAl)
for reserve studies. Funding goal objective is to keep the reserve balance above a specified dollar or Percent
Funded amount.

IN DEVELOPING the reserves we consider items that have a predictable life cycle as well as those that will most

Potomac Oaks Condominium 3 © 2002-2015 by MBG



Reserve Study
March 25, 2015

likely need annual maintenance and repairs to keep them in serviceable condition. They are as follows:
PREDICTABLE LIFE CYCLE {Non # sign items).

These components have a predictable life cycle (an average useful life). At the end of its useful life total re-
placement will be needed.

Annual Allowances (ltems preceded by the # sign).

We reserve an average annual amount for these items. These items are typically “life of the property” or long
lasting components that do not have a predictable life cycle. We assume the association will keep these com-
ponents in satisfactory condition with timely spot repairs.

FOLLOWING CONSIDERATIONS should be taken into account to propery manage the reserves: 1) propery
funded reserves avoids "special assessments”, 2) each owner should pay their fair share for the time they use the
component, 3} when reserve funds are available the Association is more inclined not to defer work deferral results
in additional deterioration and “catch-up” costs to restore the item to a good condition, 4) govemment mortgage
guarantees agencies, i.e. FHA, require a current reserve study to be available before backing a loan, and 5) some
state laws require them. In addition to these considerations, a new factor has recently become apparent. Years
ago owners were poorly informed on the importance of the reserves and paid very little attention to whether or not
a property had an adequate plan for funding the reserves. With the inclusion of reserve tables in resale packages
and other publicity, many potential buyers are now verifying the reserve status before they buy.

ALTHQUGH we use generally accepted techniques and the best information available, it is possible actual costs
and useful lives can vary significantly from our estimates. We recognize that possibility and attempt with our
methodology to arrive at the overall funding recommendation that will avoid, or minimize the amount of funding if
special assessment is needed to do reserve work.

FOR THE RESERVES to be an effective budget management tool it will need periodic updates. Because reserves
on hand, current costs, quality of maintenance, acts of God, vandalism, and useful life can vary from year to year,
a periodic review will assure it remains an effective management tool. We recommend studies be updated every

3-years.

UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED this study does not take into consideration any work the association may need to
correct hazardous or defective conditions, such as issues with asbestos, radon, lead, mold, FRT, etc., nor will it
fund major projects to repairfreplace facades, building tension cables, utilities and other essential systems. Pro-
jects of this nature require the services of engineers or other consultants to determine scope, timing and projects
costs. If requested, once costs and project timing are known, we will provide a revised study at no additional cost.

FOR ANY RESERVE PROJECTS in progress on the date(s) of our visit our observation of the work should not be
considered a project audit or quality control inspection. We leave that to others to determine.

WHERE WE DESCRIBE PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE recommendations in this study they are intended to be
general in nature and the most commeon tasks needed to extend item useful life. They are not all inclusive; we do
not imply that is all that is necessary for good maintenance. Manufactures brochures, service specialty compa-
nies and other qualified sources should be consulted to establish the full array of actions needed for proper pre-
ventive maintenance.

FUNDING FROM RESERVE VERSUS OPERATING ACCOUNT - There could be components in this study the
association is funding from the operating account. When there are we recommend they be funded from the re-
serves. When components are worked on it usually extends their useful life - a proper reserve expense. Reserve
funds are intended to keep property components in good repair and to replace those that need replacing; operating
funds are intended for maintenance and reoccurring operating expenses.

Potomac Qaks Condominium 4 ' © 2002-2015 by MBG



READING AND UNDERSTANDING TABLES & CHARTS

RELEVENT DATA

Study fiscal year, inspection date(s), units, associations’ financial data, and interest/inflation rates.
CONTRIBUTION SUMMARY

Financial summary of study results.

TABLE OF REPAIR & REPLACEMENT RESERVES

The Repair and Replacement Table shows the common or limited common element, average and remaining useful life
and estimated cost for work. This information, for the most part, is self-explanatory; however, when we believe more
information is needed, we provide comments or use photographs.

Column

(1)  The various property components and major items of equipment we believe the community should include
in the reserves. Where a 15%, 30%, etc., is shown means that total replacement of that item is not antici-
pated. These items generally have an indefinite life span and only need partial repairs. Items preceded
by the pound (#) sign are budgeted for a year at a time. Typically, these items need annual repairs.
These items should be adjusted at each update based on historical frends and the amount of work antici-
pated the following year. If we have omitted or added any items that are not common or limited common
area responsibility, please inform us so we can provide a revised table. It also applies if the association
accomplishes the work from their annual operating expense and a reserve set-aside is not needed.

(2) Approximate quantity and unit of measure. The following abbreviations are used; however, they may not
all appear in this study:

~ AC - Acres HP — Horsepower
' AOH - Amount-On-Hand RC - Replacement Cost
AnAvg - Annual Average SF - Square Feet
BLD - Building SY - Square Yards
EA - Each TN - Tons
CY - Cubic Yards UN - Units
LF - Linear Feet > - Greater Than
LS - Lump Sum < -Less Than

(3) The components average useful life (Avg). Leading publications on useful life data, our own experiences
and historical trends are used to determine the average useful life.

(4)  Our best estimate of the remaining useful life (RUL). Some items in the table may not fail precisely as
shown. We use the remaining useful life in conjunction with the estimated cost to calculate the annual
contribution needed to fund the component. Actual remaining useful life can be significantly different.

(5) Estimated costs are in current dollars; actual cost can be significantly different. Estimates are based on
similar work in the greater Washington area, association experience, industry publications, such as R.S.
Means and HomeTech, contractors and other reliable sources. it assumes the association will competi-
tively seek bids and obtain a fair price in today's market. Some work, such as, balconies, roofing, gar-
ages, fagade, boiler and chiller replacements, etc. may need the services of an engineer or architect fo
determine scope and oversee repairs. Those estimates take precedence over those shown in the table.
Conditions that are not obvious from observations, such as excessive deterioration in materials and sys-
tems could also affect costs.

(6) Distribution of the funds the association had (is projected to have) at the start of their fiscal year or the
~ amount we were requested to use. The program distributes a prorated amount to each item.

(7}  The amount needed to fund the balance of the requirement.
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(8) The contribution needed to fund the 1¢t year applying the cash flow method. This value is the product of
the reserve components and the Funding Plans - 30 Year Projection chart. The annual contribution is
calculated so that the reserve balance never falls below the “X” axis and there is always a minimum bal-
ance for unforeseen contingencies.

(9) The contribution needed to fund the 15t year applying the component method,
Fiscal Years 1 - 10 Expense Projection — Projected cash out-lays over the first ten years of the study.
Fiscal Years 11 - 30 Expense Projection - Projected cash out-lays over the next twenty years of the study.

Average Contribution Per Owner - The average contribution needed per owner to fund the 1st year reserve contri-
bution. This amount is not indicative of each owner’s individual contribution.

FUNDING PLANS - 30 YEAR PROJECTION
Column
{10) - Fiscal Year.

{11) - Projected annual expenses.

{(12) - Cumulative expenses over 30-years.

(13), (16) and (19) - Interest earned per funding plan based on previous year end balance.
(14), (17) and (20) - Contribution per funding plan, inflation applied.

(15), (18) and {21) - Projected year-end balance per funding pian.

Graphs

Graphs depict the projected contributions and year end balances for each plan. The contribution objective should
be to have a consistent contribution, year after year, that can be maintained with inflation adjustments. Avoid fluc-
tuating contributions as they can impose financial hardships on owners. The plot objective for the reserve balance
is to have the year end balances always above the “X” axis. If it falls below, it indicates a special assessment or
loan will be needed to support the reserves.

Summary

30-Year Income - projected from interest and owners.

30-Year Average Annual Contribution - average association contribution over 30-years.
30-Year Average Contribution/Owner - average contribution to be paid by each owner.

30 & 50-Year Minimum/Maximum Balances - includes contingency for unforeseen events.

PROPERTY COMPARISON (NOT SHOWN IN SOME STUDIES)

The “Property Comparison” chart compares the properly's current funding fo the 100 properties we have re-
cently studied. The comparison shows the maximums, minimums, property averages and medians compared
to your property. Three comparisons are made:

» % Funded - Ratio of the cument to the ideal Reserve Balance for each component in the Reserve Table. The
ratio is a product of the “used-up” life, useful life and component cost.

o Reserve Depletion Factor - Number of years amount-on-hand will fund (It's the same as the “go broke” date if
no more money is added to the reserves).

o Cost Per Owner - Average contribution per owner needed to meet the reserve requirement. Dollar amounts
will vary from property to property based on construction features, common/limited common elements, past
contributions to the reserves and other factors that may not result in a true comparison.
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COMMENTS

Each component has been reviewed for cost and remaining useful ife and where appropriate changes have been made to reflect current conditions. Additional
information is provided on the following components and/or recommendations are offered for consideration. Interested parties should refer to earfier studies for related

information.

! 1
wONDOMINIUM BUILDING(S)
BLD'G ENTRANCE DOORS (800 BLD'S)

PLUMBING REPAIRS/PIPE RE-LINING

All doars replaced since the last study was done.

After years of use domestic water pipes leak - we reserve for common area pipe repairs. Because cost can he significantly different
than the average cost we budget, we recommend the association hire a firm that can evaluate pipe condition to more precisely predict
cost and when repairs/replacement may be needed. There are two ways to make domestic piping repairs; 1) pipe replacement, 2)
relining with epoxy. Relining is in the range of 50% cheaper than raplacement and has the advantage of being less inconvenient to
owners because walls do not need to be removed and water outages are minimal.

PAVEMENTS
ASPHALT

BASE/CONCRETE RPRS @ 15%

Some spot repairs made since the last reserve study was done. There are two considerations that apply to asphatt pavements:

1} Implement a preventive maintenance program - preventive maintenance consist of sealing open cracks (equal to or greater than
118"}, repair wearing surface/base/sub-base areas that have faited (distinguished by “alligator” or “chicken wire" cracking), applying a
seal coat to the entire surface and repaint all traffic markings. An additionat benefit of sealcoating and traffic markings is the
pavement will look uniform and that enhances property appearance. Funding for this work is identified as “Preventive Maintenance”
and "Immediate Repairs for Life Extension.” Although we allow for preventive maintenance to be done every four years, if cracks
open or asphalt failures ocour sooner they should be repaired as neaded. Contingency built into the funding plan should be more than
adequate to fund additional needed work, 2) Be prapared to repave all asphalt around the time period shown in the table. When
repaving there are two possible courses of action, &) mill only near gutter pans fo preserve proper drainage and place back 1-1/2" {or
more} of compacted asphait throughout, and b) total milling of all asphalt and repave to thickness removed. Notes: a} Asphaltis an ol
based product - price varies with tha cost of a barrel of off, and b) When pavements are shared with adjacent properties quantity

shown is one-half the shared amount,
Although we allow for 100% cof the asphalt to ba repaved our experience supports a smaller percentags of the basefsub-base will

TENNISMULTI-PURPOSE COURT(S)

Na reserve allocation. Plans being considered to converting location to other type of recraational activity.

CURBS/GUTTERS/SIDEWALKS/STEPS

FURNISHINGS/OFFICE EQUIPMENT
POGL DECK/COPING & TILE
POOL FURNITURE

MECHANICAL/PLUMBING/ELECTRICAL AND

UNDERGROUND HOT & CHILLED LOQP

APING

Potomac Oaks Condaminium-FY 15 Final

COMMUNITY CENTER Kitchen, bar and meeting room were recently upgraded. Reserve provides for the next time this work may he needed.
SWIMMING POOL
HOOL(S) Bath the adult and wading pools are scheduled to be whitecoated in 2015; pool covers were recently replaced.

MAINTENANCE FACILITIES

8'METAL FENCE New enfry. Solid metal fence constructed at maintenance building.

HEAT EXCHANGER Tube bundles replaced in heat exchangers.

VEHICLES Both a front end loader and tractor have been purchased since the last study was done.

OTHER PROPERTY FEATURES

ENTRANCE FEATURE Provides for masonry repairs/repointing, cleaning and name restoration,

TREES/LANDSCAPING Tree and landscaping replacement can become costly. Reserve budgets a reasonable amount for this wark. Does not include
normal landscaping upkeep which is funded from the operating account nor large scale landscape improvement projects.

ANNUAL ALLOWANCES This category provides for non-cyclical items that typically experignce some kind of fallure each year or every few years. Reserve
pravides a reasonable amount each year o keep components in good repair. Funding from other sources may be needead if major
repairs are needed.

REPLACE ROOFING (5 BLD'G/YR Praovides for five building roofs to ba replaced every year,

GUTTERS/DOWNSPOUTS(5 BLD'G/YR) As needed spot repairs,

FACADE/CAULKMWATERPROQFING Spot repairs to lintels, bricks, siding, shutters, sealing windows, doors, walls, expansion joints and ather openings to keep buildings
weather tight.

COMMON AREA DOORS Provides for replacing the utility room doors and other association owned doors that are not identified elsewhare, on an as needed

basis.

Curbs, gutters, sidewalks and steps will deteriorate, heava, setfle, be damaged by vehicles or sustain other types of damage.
Defective areas should be comected as needed.

Upkeep of furniture, area rugs, drapes, curtains, computers, desks, calculators, telephones, file cabinets, etc.

Spot repairs as needed to keep components in good condition to meet safety and health department requirements,

Some pool cheirs, tables and other fumishings will need servicing or replacement each year to keep them in good repair. Also allows
for the upkeep of lifeguard stands and diving boards, if installed.

A annual expenditura 1o keep in good repair common area mechanical, plumbing and electric systems to include association owned
transformers, underground distribution system from baifer plants and other components that are not reserved for elsewhare. Alr
handiers, fan coil units, heat exchangers, coils, unit heaters, motors, pumps, gauges, valves, controls, fire, security, plumbing pipes,
electric faulis and other kinds of system deferioration will need repair as problems oceur. Funding from other sources may be needed
if major failures ocour.

A8 312612015



COMMENTS

SITE LIGHTING Fixture, pole and distribution electric wiring failures should be expected. We reserve for 5% of pole lights to be rapaired each year.
Building mounted lights are provided for in the Mechanical/Plumbing/Electrical Allowances entry.
STAIRWAYS Provides for repairs fo stairs and steps. These items ara "lif of the property” components that can be kept in good repair with proper
A maintenance and timely repairs.
rAND RAILING If corrosion is controlled with paint every four years the metal will last the life of the property. Keep post packets sealed to pravent

standing water. Standing water will corrode the metal and damage rmasonry and concrete, Timely spot repairs will extend the useful
life of these components indefinitely.
WOOD FENCING Repairs to wood fencing to include the first eight feet of patio fencing, both sides. All other patio fencing is owner responsibility,
SITE ITEMS Repairs to entrance features, signs, sign posts, flag poles, drainage, minor landscaping, masanry columns and walls, picnic
tables/benches and other miscellaneous ltems not identified elsewhere.

EXCLUSIONS
PRESSURE WASHING/PAINTING/STAINING Mol included in the reserves. Maintenancs work, property funded from the operating account.
CATASTROPHIES Are not predictable events - no reserve allowance. If one cccurs funding from other sources may be neaded if the contingency built
into the reserves s insufficient to cover expenses,
ADA ACCESSIBLE SWIMMING POOL We make no allowance for making pools ADA accessible unless we are requested to include modification cost in the reserve study.

© 2002 - 2015 by MBG

N
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POTOMAC OAKS CONDOMINIUM
MANUAL OF ARCHITECTURAL AND DESIGN
REVIEW STANDARDS AND GUIDELINES

AUTHORITY - Article V of the Bylaws states that all modifications. The Board of Directors
has delegated this authority to the Building & Grounds Committee, consisting of members
appointed by the Board. Authority for the Board and the Building & Grounds Committee to
establish guidelines, and adopt rules and regulations, and to enforce guidelines and rules
regarding Architectural controls is provided by Article V, Section 15 of the Bylaws as recorded
in the Land Records of Montgomery County, Maryland.

IL.

111

The Building & Grounds Committee is empowered to respond to unit owner requests
for exterior changes if they meet the enclosed guideline.

OBJECTIVES - This document contains the standards and guidelines that the Board of
Directors and the Building & Grounds Committee for construction, alteration, repair,
and maintenance of the Common, and Limited Common Elements, as well as the
alterations and improvements of the individual units, in order to establish and preserve a
harmonious and aesthetic design, soundness of repair, as well as safety of design, for the
community and to protect property value of the overall Condominium.

GENERAL PRINCIPLES -

(A) The Manual - This manual is designed to supplement and clarify the Maryland
Condominium Act with provisions for visual harmony, architectural uniformity, and
structural integrity. This document is intended to act as both a guide for the members of
the Building & Grounds Committee, Board of Directors, and the homeowners. Itis
hoped that this booklet will increase the homeowner's awareness of the importance of
architectural harmony within Potomac Oaks. These guidelines address improvements.
for which homeowners most commonly submit applications to the Building & Grounds
Committee, and as such, are not intended to be all inclusive. The Board and the
Building & Grounds Committee may adopt additional guidelines as needed to maintain
the harmony of the Condominium.

(B) Controlling Factors - The Building & Grounds Committee and the Board of
Directors shall apply the standards and guidelines of the manual in a manner to insure
that the Condominium shall always be maintained in a way that provides for visual
harmony, architectural uniformity, and structural integrity. The Building and Grounds
Committee shall apply these guidelines to prohibit any activity, improvement,
construction, repair, alteration, or addition that adversely affects property values,
security, liability for damage or injury, appearance, ambiance, or aesthetics.

-1-
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(C) Right of Unit Owner - The Building and Grounds Committee and
the Board will allow Homeowners to add to, modify, alter, or improve their units,
provided that such additions, modifications, alterations, or improvements are submitted
for approval and are consistent with the manual, and the Condominium documents,
rules, and regulations and do not result in increased operating, maintenance, or
insurance expense to the Council of Unit Owners.

All modifications or construction that does not pass state, town, county, or
Condominium regulations shall be removed by the owner at his/her expense. Failure of
the unit owner to remove the modification or construction after notice of the violation,
will result in removal by the Association at the Unit Owner's expense.

(D) Limited Common Elements - No permanent or structural alteration may be made to
any Limited Common Element without review by the Building & Grounds Committee
and concurrence in the decision of the Building & Grounds Committee by the Board of
Directors. The enclosure of a Limited Common Element Area patio with a wooden type
fence as described in the Design Guidelines is to be considered permanent.

REVIEW PROCEDURE

(A) Applications - An application shall be submitted by the Homeowner for any
proposed modification. This application shall be on the attached Application Form
which is available from the Management Office. This application shall be filled out as
completely as possible and shall contain as a minimum:

®  Name, address, and telephone number(s) of requestor as well as the date of the
application.

® A brief description of the proposed work.

® A plan drawing showing the arrangement of the proposed work indicating the
materials to be used.

®  Proof that the unit owner has applied for a building permit.

e  Agreement form(s) or checklist signed by unit owner accepting responsibility for
the work and ACKNOWLEDGING an understanding of the agreement and a
willingness to abide by these GUIDELINES.

2-
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(B) Response - The Building & Grounds Committee and the Board shall furnish the
Unit Owner(s) with a written response either of approval or denial of the application
within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of the application and all accompanying
documentation, provided that all the documents are submitted on completed application
form(s).

(C) Approval - In the event that the application is approved, prior to the commencement
of work, the Unit Owner shall furnish a refundable deposit no less than twenty percent
(20%) of the estimated cost of modification and/or a certificate of insurance from the
contractor doing the work assigned to Potomac Oaks. Pursuant to the provisions of the
manual, the applicant and the Building and Grounds Committee shall sign an
Agreement (attached as Appendix A).

(D) Denial - The application may be denied for the following reasons:

1) Nonconformance with the Declaration, Bylaws, rules and regulations, resolutions,
or guidelines set forth in this manual. ’

2)  Ifthere are architectural, design, legal, or other problems with the proposed
application, the Building & Grounds Commiittee, in its discretion, may deny the
application or may request the Unit Owner to provide further information, detail,
or modification(s) to the application.

Therefore, the Unit Owner(s) may resubmit the application or request a meeting with
the Building & Grounds Commiftee.

(E) Appeal - As provided in Article V, Section 15(B) of the Bylaws, a decision of the
Building and Grounds committee shall be appealable to the Board of Directors.

DESIGN GUIDELINES

GENERAL - Since the common elements (and limited common elements) such as fencing,
decks, and even the dumpsters, are part of the public and private environment, the following set
of factors must be considered when planning a modification to the common elements at the
condominium:

® Uses
® Impact on neighbors
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- Unit location and pre-approved area allotted
Topography
Architecture
Planting(s)
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FENCES

Principles - Fencing must never compete with or dominate the unit and its surroundings.
All fencing on the property must have a style consistent with the Fence Architectural
Style outline below. Fencing must respect open-space frontage (to the rear of the unit).
Plantings should be considered as an integral part of the Fencing plan.

Fence Architectural Style - The following Specifications must be adhered to;

Style: All fences must be BOARD ON BOARD construction and be consistent with the.
existing style of fence currently on the property. The fences are to be six (6) feet high
along each side and four (4) feet high across the rear of the property and shall be
constructed in sections not to exceed eight (8) feet in length. A typical side fence detail
and rear fence detail are shown in Figures 1-1 and 1-2 respectively.

Fences may be constructed ONLY at the locations and to the DIMENSIONS allotted to
the particular unit style, as recorded and shown in plats as part of the POS. No
additional Common Area may be appropriated. A typical plan view detail for both the
700 series and 800 series unit styles is shown in Figure 1-3. A special plan view detail
for units 740-748, 750-756, 802-808, and 862-866 is shown if Figure 1-4.

Fences may not restrict access by the Association staff or designated contractors to
water spigots, mechanical equipment rooms, etc.

Materials: All lumber to be .40 CCA pressure treated wood. Posts to be 4" X 4" X 10'.
Southern Pine typical and trimmed as necessary. The posts are to be set a minimum of
36" in the earth, and shall receive a DRY PACKING mixture consisting of one part
cement, one part sand, and two parts gravel. The cement, sand, and gravel mixture shall
be installed and hand tamped every four inches. All posts shall receive an aluminum
cap to shed water. A typical post detail is shown in Figure 1-5. The horizontal runners
shall be 2" X 4" X 8' (eight (8) feet long as necessary) Southern Pine. The vertical face
boards shall be 1" X 6" X &' (four (4) feet long across the rear) Western Red Cedar or
Spruce, and will alternate on either side of the runner, so as to give the same appearance
on both sides of the fence. A 1" X 6" horizontal cap board shall be installed across the -
top of each section, and shall be of the same material as the face boards.

A latching type of gate shall be provided in the rear four (4) feet section (preferably in
the center) of the fence. Exception to the location of the gate will be reviewed on a

-5.
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case-by-case basis. A typical gate detail showing both the front and rear views is shown
in Figure 1-6. Gates shall be constructed of the same lumber type as used for face and
cap boards. All gates shall be equipped with continental style hinges and thumb latches
as manufactured by Ameristar Fence Products of Tulsa, Oklahoma or an approved
equivalent.

All nails to be galvanized to protect against rusting:

The owner is responsible for obtaining all necessary permits and for contacting Miss
Utility, to stake out all underground utilities, for the necessary locations.

Unit Owner Responsibility: Upon installation of a fence, the Unit Owner assumes all
responsibility, liability, and maintenance for the fence and the enclosed Limited
Common Element Area. It is understood by the unit owner that if it ever becomes
necessary to dismantle or remove a portion of the fence to install, remove, repair, or
replace any type of underground utility, it is the unit owner's sole responsibility to repair
or replace the fence. The Potomac Oaks Condominium Association cannot be held
responsible for any damage to a fence as a result of any form of necessary underground
utility maintenance. A unit owner MUST agree to these conditions if any approval isto
be given.
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-——1-800-321-8724

CONTINENTAL ESaEmstar | totessesses
FAX: 1-918-592-5482
Dealer . Box Box
Hem Number Price Slze Finish Package Quantity | Welght
Continental Thumb Latch 220 5.85 |5° Lever| Black |P/B wiscrews | 20 Ea. 29
221 6.54 |5 Lever| Black |Cd. w/screws | 10 Ea. 17
222 6.78 | 6" Lever| Black |P/B wiscrews | 20 Ea. 30
223 7.38 |6~ Lever| Black |Cd. wiscrews | 10 Ea. 18
Decorative, reversible, self latching. For single gates opening inward.
116 5.95 8 L Black |Bulk w/o scr. | 20 Pr. 54
116-S 7.56 8- Black |P/B wiscrews | 20 Pr. 60
118 8.04 8- Black |Cd. w/screws | 10 Pr. 31

Popular for walk gates and double drive gates up to 10° o

mer look of narrower strap is desired.
*Deduct .41 for package with zinc screws.

penings where slim-

126 5.82 8- Black |Bulk w/o scr. | 20 Pr. 40
126-S 6.71 8- | Black |P/B wiscrews | 20 Pr. 46
128 7.28 8~ Black |Cd. w/screws | 10 Pr. 26
For small gates and doors where mounting space prohibits the length of the
full strap or the height of the tee hinge. 11%* overall length.
*Deduct .34 for package with zinc screws. ~
101 492 8- Black |Bulk w/o scr. | 20 Pr. 41
101-S 6.33: 8" Black |P/B wiscrews | 20 Pr. 49
103 7.02 8" Black |Cd. w/screws | 10 Pr. 27
104 17.01 12° Black |Bulk w/o scr. 5 Pr.' 27
104-S 19.03 12" Black |P/B w/screws 5 Pr. 31
105 19.72 12 Black |Cd. w/screws 5 Pr. 32
106 25.30 12 Black |Cd. wibolts 5 Pr. 35
Available in two sizes: 8° (7% x 97 x 11 ga.) and 127 (10" x 1474 X e
*Deduct .34 (87) and .41 (12) for package with Zinc screws.
107 9.15 8” Black |Job Cd. 10 Pr. 23
108 10.15 8" Black |Cd. wiscrews | 10 Pr. 28

Same as #101 Tee Hinge with adjustable interior spring, for applications where
self-closing gates are required.

*Deduct .34 for package with zinc screws.

140 5.22 | 4"x8~ Black |Bulk wfo scr. | 20 Pr. 40
140-S 6.06 | 4"x8~° Black |P/B wiscrews | 20 Pr. 44
141 6.54 | 4°x8" Black |Cd. wiscrews | 10 Pr. 24
145" x 47 x 27 screw hook with 87 strap.
*Deduct .20 for package with zinc screws.
144 8.10 | 7"x8~ Black |Bulk w/o scr. 20 Pr. 52
144-S 8.79 | 7"x8" Black |P/B wiscrews | 20 Pr. 56
145 8.91 7"x8" Black |Cd. w/screws 10 Pr. 29
146 16.89 | 7"x12° Black |Bulk w/o scr. 10 Pr. 50
146-S 1755 | #x12° Black |P/B wiscrews | 10 Pr. 54
147 18.21 | 7"x127 Black |Cd. w/screws | 10 Pr. 55

Available in two sizes: 12" ¢ x 27X 7 w/B" strap & 54" ¢ x 27 x 87 w/12” strap.

*Deduct .20 for package with zinc screws.

-13-
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DECKS

Guidelines:

¢  Design drawings of deck are required.

¢  All decks must be enclosed by an approved fence.

®  Decks must be constructed of pressure treated (rot and insect resistant) wood.
(Refer to fencing material list).

®  The Unit Owner is responsible for the proper drainage of water and must consider
drainage a part of the design of the deck. Support joists or beams must not
impede the drainage of water away from the building.

¢  Plantings, trees, and shrubs located on or within the deck and fence area must not

exceed the height of fence sides and are to be maintained by the Unit Owner
(except for existing trees, which are the responsibility of the Association).

The unit owner assumes all responsibility, liability, and maintenance for the Deck and
the enclosed Limited Common Element Area. A unit owner MUST agree to these
conditions if any approval is to be given.

LIGHTING - (Deck, Garden, Patio)

Guidelines:

The prepared “Lighting Package" is the only lighting permitted for use in the
fenced-in areas, decks, patios, and gardens.

Approved lighting may consist of:

® | outdoor light fixture (max 40W)

® 1 outdoor receptacle (weather resistant)

e 1 inside mounted light switch

° 1 set low voltage garden lights (6 maximum mushroom style).

Outdoor light fixture to be installed over storage/mechanical room door only.
All installation to be done by licensed electricians.

Only lighting fixture provided, at cost, by the Association will be allowed.
Any unit owner may request a lighting application using the standard request
forms available from the condominium office.

STORM AND SCREEN WINDOWS - No longer approved for use.

-14-



-~ N

V.

VL

POTOMAC OAKS CONDOMINIUM |
MANUAL OF ARCHITECTURAL AND DESIGN
REVIEW STANDARDS AND GUIDELINES

REPLACEMENT WINDOWS - Two replacement window models are readily available

for purchase by individual homeowners. They are:

L.

The 1189 Season-All model #195 commercial-rated, double-hung, (tilt sash)
white aluminum thermalized replacement windows with 7/8" insulated glass, 1/2"
fiberglass screens, and internal grid systems between the insulated glass fo match
the existing grid design systems, or:

The Traco Model #TR-5000 double-hung, white aluminum thermalized, tilt-sash,
replacement window internal grid systems, 3/4" insulated glass, screen included.

Application must be completed and submitted for approval. Homeowner must use a
licensed contractor for window installation.

SLIDING GLASS DOOR - TRACO 8100 SERIES
1.  1"insulated glass frames with 3/16" tempered glass.
. Keyed entry locks and a Charley/Bar

3.  Completely thermally broken frame and panel systems for the prevention of heat
transfer in the summer time and cold air transfer in the winter affording year-
round comfort,

4.  Bronze anodized finished frame for the custom look.

5.  Includes heavy duty sliding screen door.

6. The manufacturer offers a 10-year non-pro-rated warranty with this door.
* PTi
7. For those owners who are concerned about security, a deadbolt lock is available at

a small additional cost.

-15-
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VII. LOCATING AND MARKING ELECTRICAL LINES PRIOR TO FENCE/DECK
INSTALLATION

Any Resident prior to the installation of a deck and/or fence is financially responsible for cost of
having necessary electrical work done to locate and mark electrical lines that may be affected by
forthcoming installation/s.

©-17-
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VIII. PAINTING OF BALCONY RAILINGS

Owners may paint the balcony railings provided they follow the recommended procedure and use
the designated paint color and type:

1. Clean railing with solution of TSP (trisodium phosphate) or other heavy duty cleaner.
2. Scrape, wire brush and/or sand to remove all loose paint.
3. Prime all bare areas with universal metal primer.

4. Paint entire railing with ved pai rs. This | ation is gvailable at

Condomipium Office,

=-18-
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IX. HVACEQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT

Any Owner who wishes to replace his HVAC equipment must use the Magicaire unit which can
be installed by any licensed contractor.

..19_
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X. UNENCLOSED REAR YARD

Regarding terrace level units where the backyard area has not been enclosed by a fence: This area
s a limited common element and maintenance may not be impeded by plantings. The following
policy is established:

Tt is the unit owner’s responsibility to maintain plantings and flower beds.

Regular, scheduled landscape maintenance (mowing) may not be impeded by plantings, flower
beds, stone, flagstone or brick patios or walkways.

Management/Landscape Contractor will not be responsible for plantings which overhang
balconies.

- -20-
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XI.  HANGING PLANTS, POTS, WINDOW BOXES. ETC.

Any hanging plants, pots, window boxes, etc. which are affixed to a balcony railing or
hung from a balcony ceiling may not be affixed to or hang over the gutside of the railing. This is
to prevent any personal injury or damage to property should any of the above fall,
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Xil. EXTERIOR WINDOW PAINTING

Per the Bylaws of Diamond Farms Condominium T/A Potomac Oaks, Section 12
Maintenance and Repair, (b), (iv)
Each Unit owner shall, at his expense, perform all maintenance and make all repair and
replacements to the windows, the front door (but not the painting of the exterior surface of the

front door) and any sliding glass door(s) appurtenant to or part of his Unit.

Contact Condominium Office for correct paint color.
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MANUAL OF ARCHITECTURAL AND DESIGN
REVIEW STANDARDS AND GUIDELINES

X1l UNIT DOOR REPLACEMENT

All unit door replacements must meet the following qualifications:

L.

2.

Must be of metal construction.

Must be flat, plain front.

Must have minimum of ONE HOUR FIRE RATING.

Must be equipped with self-closers and self-latching hinges.

Must have combination viewer/door knocker/name plate installed on door front to
conform with other unit doors.

Contact Condominium Office for correct paint color.
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XIV. BALCONY IN

For safety purposes balcony railings may be screened in accordance with the following:
1. Only 1/4" clear plexiglass may be used.
2. Installation must be on the inside of the railing.
3. Plexiglass may not extend beyond the height of the railing.
4.. Plexiglass may not extend to within 2" of the balcony floor.

5. Plexiglass must be installed with non-corrosive screws.
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APPENDIX A

AGREEMENT FOR ADDITION, ALTERATION OR IMPROVEMENT TO
INDIVIDUAL UNIT(S) & LIMITED COMMON ELEMENTS

* To be prepared in duplicate - Please type or print legibly

Name

Address

Home telephone

Work telephone

This agreement between Unit , Owner(s) __
, in accordance with all applicable provisions of the

Bylaws and with all applicable provisions of the Marmal of Architectural and Design standards and

Guidelines, and the Board of Directors and Building & Grounds Committee for the following
addition, alteration, or improvement 10 Unit , Building - e

Attached are the application/checklists in accordance with which the above described work will be
performed. These specification and drawings, as they may be revised by the Board of Directors or
the Building & Grounds Committee as part of their action on this Application, are incorporated as
part of this Application.

After the Application has been approved by the Building & Grounds Committee but prior to
commencing work, the names and addresses of all contractors, subcontractors and vendors who will
perform the work, and copies of all necessary and appropriate Montgomery County and Washington
Suburban Sanitary Commission permits, and Addendum I (Deposit) shall be submitted, attached to,
and made part of this application. :

THE APPLICATION IS APPROVED SUBJECT TO COMPLIANCE BY THE APPLICANT
WITH THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS, WITH WHICH THE APPLICANT AGREES TO
COMPLY. '

1. The Applicant is the owner of record of the subject unit.

2. All work shatl be performed strictly in accordance with the description, specifications, and
drawings which are part of this Application, or which are modified as part of the approval of the
Application.

3. The work shall not compromise the structural integrity of the Potomac Oaks Condominium.
4, The work shall be completed within . days from the approval date appearing at

the bottom of this form. This approval is valid only for the stated time period, and if the proposed
work has not been completed by that time period, a new Application or extension must be submitted.
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AGREEMENT FOR ADDITION, ALTERATION OR IMPROVEMENT TO
INDIVIDUAL UNIT(S) & LIMITED COMMON ELEMENTS

The Applicant shall give the Condominium Manager or the Management Agent shall be given at
least five (5) business days written notice at the beginning of the work and at least three (3) days
written notice whenever any gas or water is to be turned off in connection with any work.

The Applicant shall obtain and comply with all applicable permits required by law for the proposed
work and shall comply with all applicable laws, regulations, local codes and ordinances. Any
violation of such laws or permits shall be promptly corrected at the expense of the Applicant or, if
the Applicant should fail to do so, b the Board of Directors or the Building & Grounds Committee
with the expense charged to the Applicant as a lien against the unit or as otherwise provided by the
Article ITI, Section 2(J) of the Bylaws.

5. Any work performed not in accordance with the description, specifications and drawings that
are part of the Application shall be promptly removed or corrected to comply if so directed by the
Board of Directors or the Building & Grounds Committee, at the expense of the Applicant or, if the
Applicant should fail or refuse to do so, the Board of Directors or the Building & Grounds
Committee will have the expense charged to the Applicant as a lien against the Unit as otherwise
provided by Article ITI, Section 2(J) of the Bylaws. :

6. The Management, Building & Grounds Committee and/or the Board of Directors will inspect
the work in progress on the following schedule:
1. Rough In
2. 50% Completed
3. Final inspection after the work is completed. Resident will notify the office for
inspection as work progresses. The proposed work shall be performed in such a manner as
to not be a nuisance to residents of other units in the Condominium. Work may be
performed ONLY between the hours of 8:00 am - 6:00 pm Monday thru Friday and 9:00 am
- 7:00 pm on weekends, '

7. The Applicant shall provide the Building & Grounds Committee, or other designee written
notice of completion of the work and provide an opportunity during work and upon completion for
the Building & Grounds Committee (or designee) to inspect work for compliance with the terms of
this Application. The Applicant shall be responsible, at his own expense, to remove all debris, and
repair any and all damage which may occur in any way to the Common Elements, Limited Common
Elements, or any other unit and if the Applicant should fail or refuse to do so, such removal or repair
may be undertaken by the Board of Directors and the expense charged to the Applicant as a lien
against the Unit provided by the Article V, Section IT and Article III, Section 2(J) of the Bylaws to
assure compliance with the above, the Applicant shall furnish a de posit in accordance with the
Agreement Form 1.

8. The Applicant shall carry such insurance in connection with t his proposed work as may be

required by the Board of Directors and/or the Building & Grounds Committee which requirements
are attached to agreement form and incorporated as a part thereof.
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AGREEMENT FOR ADDITION, ALTERATION OR IMPROVEMENT TO
INDIVIDUAL UNIT(S) & LIMITED COMMON ELEMENTS

9. If it is determined that the proposed work may increase the fire, casualty or other insurance
carried by the Council of Unit Owners will, the application will be denied.

10.  The Applicant does hereby further agree on behalf of himself/herself, his/her successor and
assigns, to indemnify and keep indemnified the Council of Unit Owners, the Board of Directors and
the Building & Grounds Committee of the Condominium and hold them harmless from and against
any and all claims, actions, suits (at law or equity), judgements, damages, expenses, COSts,
arbitrations, liens, mechanics liens or other claims of any kind or description from whatever cause
or source, with or without judgement, arising from or in any manner connected with this Application
or from the use and enjoyment of the new or changed structure:

(b) to maintain, repair, or replace the new or changed structure to the same full extent as required
with respect to the Building & Grounds Committee, which further conditions and architectural

review and incorporated as part of this Application.

11.  When the Applicant sells the Unit, the terms of this application and agreement and all
responsibilities, obligations, and architectural review of the Applicant herein contained by
acceptance of the deed. '

Nothing in the Application relieves or lessens the Unit Owner’s responsibilities established or
provided in the Condominium documents, as amended from time to time. In the event of any
inconsistency or conflict between this Application and the Condominium documents, the more
stringent provisions with respect to the Unit Owner shall prevail.

Nothing in the Application shall relieve the Applicant or any subsequent purchaser of the unit from
any responsibilities or obligations under the condominium documents.

This writing, together with APPLICATION CHECKLIST attached hereto, contains the entire
agreement of the parties and no variance or modification shall be valid and enforceable except by
another agreement, in writing, approved in the same manner as this Agreement. No oral

representation shall bind the Board of Directors or the Council of Unit Owners.
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AGREEMENT FOR ADDITION, ALTERATION OR IMPROVEMENT TO
INDIVIDUAL UNIT(S) & LIMITED COMMON ELEMENTS

Executed in duplicate and agreed to this day of L 19 by the
undersigned in consideration of the mutual promises and architectural review herein contained. The
provisions in this Application and Agreement shall be binding upon the heirs, successors and assigns
of the parties hereto.

BY:
Applicant/Unit Owner Witness
Applicant/Unit Owner Witness
Date Submitted
For the Board of Directors
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TO

FROM

SUBIECT

DATE

Application

We are pleased to inform you that your application has been approved as submitted.

We are pleased to inform you that your application has been approved as submitted
With the following provisions:

Certificate of Insurance (Contractor) must be on file in the
Condominium Management Office before work can begin.

Permit(s) from the City of Gaithersburg and/or Montgomery County
must be on file in the Condominium Management Office prior to start
of job. ’

Your application has been denied for the following reasons:

Inspection by the Condominium on work progress wiil be as follows:
1. RoughIn
2. 50% Completion
3. Final Completion

Please contact the Condominium Office at 301-840-9295, to set up an appointment.

You, as owner, will be responsible for any damage to the common elements caused by you, your
family, friends and/or your contractor '

Building & Grounds Title

cc: Resident file
B & Gfile - . -30-



Omeail - T found gomething

Dekbis Flanders <potcmac:oakscondos@gmaii.com:-

 iden Lpdade il

Fri, Sep 28, 2018 at 12:21 PM

Tucker, Jeremy M. < mtuoker@]erchearly.ccm‘é
To: Debbie Flandars <pot0macoakscondos@gmail.com>

Articie V, Secticn 12(b)(ii)) of the Bylaws Council of Unit Owners of Diamend Farms Condominium states
that “Each Unit owner shall, at his expense, perform all maintenance and make all repairs and
replacements to the windows, the front door {but nat the painting of the exterior surface of the front doar)
and any sliding glass deor(s) appurtenant to or pait of his Unit." Section (o) of the same Arficle follows that
"All repairs and replacements shall be substantially similar to the oricinal construction and installation and
shall be of first-class quality.” Further, Article V, Saction 15(b} of the Bylaws provides in relevant part

‘“The Covenanis Committee shall regulate the external design, appearance.”. of
the common elements and the use and architectural changes to the units in
accordance with the standards and guidelines adopted by the Board of Directors.”

In turn, Section [1(C) of the Architectural and Design Review Standards and Guidelines siates that
Hormeowners are allowed “to add to, modify, alter, or improve thair units, provided that such additions,
madifications, alierations, or improvemsnts are submitted for approval and are consistent with the manual,
and the Condominium documents, rules, and reguiations and do nof resultin increased operating,
maintenance, or insurance expense to the Ceuncll of Unit Qwners.”

Specifically, Section V of the design guidelines states that two raplacement window madels are readily
_available for purchase by individua! homeawners. Specifically they are:

1. The 1189 Season-All mode! #1985 commercial-rated, double-hung, (tilt sash) white aluminum
thermalized replacement windows with 7/8" insulated glass, 1/2" fiberglass screens, and internal
grid systems between the insuiated glass to match the existing grid design systems, or.

2 The Traco Mode #TR-5000 Adoub\e—hung, white aluminum thermalized, tiit-sash, replacement
window internal grid systemns, 3/4" insulated glass, sorean included.

o e A e 20 & vicweni&search=all&permmsgid=msg-...  10/1/2018



URGENT NOTICE
Posted 9/14/2018

ALL WINDOW REPLACEMENTS
MUST BE APPROVED BY THE

COVENENTS/ARCHITECURAL
COMMITTELE.

CALL MANAGEMENT WITH
QUESTIONS

780 Quince Orchard Boulevard = Gaithersburg, Maryland 20878 » (301) 287-5787 = Fax (301) 9587-0023
Viait our website: www.potomacoaksmd.pilera.com
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
11/30/2018

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the
terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER
Millenium Insurance Agency, Inc.
10432 Balls Ford Road

CONTACT
NAME: __Marsha DePalo

(A1 o, Ext): 571-504-5904

FAX
(AIC, No): 800-517-4893

E-MAIL o
ADDRESS: - ce.com

Suite 300 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Manassas VA 20109 INSURER A : James River Insurance Company 12203
HSURED Council of Unit Owners of Diamond Farms INSURER B : AMGUARD Insurance Company 42390
t/a Potomac Oaks INSURER ¢ : XL Insurance America 24554
780 Quince Orchard Bivd. INSURER D : Federal Insurance Company 10692
Gaithersburg MD 20878 INSURER E : NorGUARD Insurance Company 31470
INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

'll:‘TSFE{ TYPE OF INSURANCE ‘l\;\?sDé' %‘,’\?S POLICY NUMBER u&'ﬂh%%%) (nﬁnon}é%%) LIMITS
| GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED
X COTIMERCIAL GENEIABILITY I—— ]—-— PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $ 100,000
CLAIMS-MADE -x OCCUR ! MED EXP (Any one person) $
A L 000804-10-0 12/01/2018 | 12/01/2019 | PERSONAL & ADVINJURY | § 1,000,000
L GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
ET‘L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $ 2.000.000
X | poLicy TRO: LoC 8
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY ] ! C(E 2“25%5?03 INGLE LIMIT $ 1,000,000
| ] Anv AuTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | §
|| ALL OWNED SCHEDULED -
AT SCHED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
B — | NON-OwnED COAU933632 12/01/2018 | 12/01/2019 PROPERTY DANAGE s
| | HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident)
$
| X | UMBRELLA LIAB L OCCUR ] ] EACH OCCURRENCE $ 25,000,000
C | X | EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE | AURO0500428 12/01/2018 | 12/01/2019 | AGGREGATE $ 25,000,000
oep | | ReTenTioNs EXCG\SNSC“S&TTTYMU“?T'H $ 25,000,000
WORKERS COMPENSATION - -
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN TORY LIMITS ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT
E | OrrOoMEMBER exor DErs N/A l COWC933750 12/01/2018 | 12/01/2019 $ }.838.888
Mandatory in NH E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $ 1,000,
I(f yir;, gezgig; unc)ier
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | $ 1,000,000
D Director & Officer's Coverage l‘— I- 12/01/2018 | 12/01/2019 $2,000,000 Occurrence .
g $2,000,000 Aggregate Deductible $2,500

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)

Premises: 780 Quince Orchard, Gaithersburg, MD 20878. Condo 538 Residential Units and 1 Commercial Unit, Primary Property $10,000,000, Excess Property
Coverage $70,918,658, Deductible $250,000, Equipment Breakdown $80,918,658, Water & Sewer Back-up $250,000, Ordinance or Law Coverage A -
$10,000,000 on Primary Property Coverage and $70,918,658 on Excess Property Layer, Ordinance or Law Coverage B&C Combined $1,000,000 on Primary
Property Coverage. Earthquake $2,500,000, Flood Coverage $2,500,000, Crime Coverage $1,000,000 w/ $10,000 Deductible Policy#9983-2624 Federal Ins.,
Walls-in coverage per original specifications and by-laws. Property Management Company additional insured where required by contract.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

Council of Unit Owners of Diamond Farms
780 Quince Orchard Blvd.
MD

Gaithersburg 20878

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Marsha DePalo

ACORD 25 (2010/05)

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




ACORD’
V

CERTIFICATE OF PROPERTY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
11/30/2018

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ON

LY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

If this certificate is being prepared for a party who has an insurable interest in the property, do not use this form. Use ACORD 27 or ACORD 28.

PRODUCER
Millenium Insurance Agency, Inc.

10432 Balls Ford Road

CONTACT
NA Marsha DePalo

{AIS, No): 800-517-4893

PHONE
(AIC, No, Ext): 571-594-5904

E-MAIL o

ADDRESS: marsha@mia-insurance.com

PRODUCER

Suite300 CUSTOMER ID #:
Manassas VA 20109 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
INSURED INSURER A : GEP Insurance
Council of Unit Owners of Diamond Farms INSURER B : Axis Surplus Insurance Company 15610
t/a Potomac Oaks INSURER C : Federal Insurance Company 10692
780 Quince Orchard Blvd. INSURER D : Travelers 40282
Gaithersburg MD 20878 (MSURER £

INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

LOCATION OF PREMISES / DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)

702-708, 710-716, 718-722, 724-728, 730-734, 736-738,740-748,750-756, 758-

764,766-778,782-792,794-800,802-806,810-814,816-822, 824-830,832-838,

840-850,852-860,862-866,868-886, 800-808 Quince Orchard Blvd., Gaithersburg, MD 201878

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

R TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER Y %é%lﬁfggm) PD%:?{M%EWY"; COVERED PROPERTY LIMITS
A | X PRoPERTY X | BUILDING $ 10,000,000
CAUSES OF LOSS | DEDUCTIBLES PERSONAL PROPERTY | g
BASIC ;;zl',LoDlggo || BUSINESS INCOME s
BROAD CONTENTS 104747-18 12/01/2018 12/01/2019 || ZXTRA FXPENSE $
SPECIAL $250,000 RENTAL VALUE s
EARTHQUAKE || sLANKET BUILDING s
WIND || BLANKET PERS PROP $
FLOOD | | eLaNkeTBLDG & PP [ g
X | Excess Prop [$250,000 z Excess Property $70.918.658
$
INLAND MARINE TYPE OF POLICY 5
| CAUSES OF LOSS ] s
|| NAMED PERILS POLICY NUMBER T s
$
C | X | crIME s
WDE OF POLICY 9983-2624 12/01/2018 12/01/2018 | | Crime $1,000.000
Claims Made Deductible $10,000
b EQUIPHENT BREAKDOWN 9M421573 12/01/2018 121012019 —{ FOP z 80,918,658
L $
$

SPECIAL CONDITIONS / OTHER COVERAGES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

Council of Unit Owners of Diamond Farms

t/a Potomac Oaks
780 Quince Orchard Blvd.
Gaithersburg

MD 20878

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE
EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Marsha DePalo

ACORD 24 (2009/09) The ACORD name and logo

© 1995-2009 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
are registered marks of ACORD




Contact Information and Certificate Request

Millenium Insurance Agency, Inc.
10432 Balls Ford Road, Suite 300

Manassas, VA 20109

571-594-5904 Direct

800-517-4893 Fax

Please send all service and certificate request by fax or email below. You may email our service
department or contact the principal agent directly with any Rush Certificate Request or Revisions.

Customer Service Department

service@mia-insurance.com

571-594-5904 Direct

800-517-4893 Fax

Marsha DePalo, Principal Agent

marsha@mia-insurance.com

571-5904-5904 Direct

571-422-0321  Cell
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CPAs, PC.
Principals 18o1 Robert Fulton Drive, Suite 200 Managers
Howard A. Goldidang, CPA, MBA Reston, VA 20151 Allisont A, Day, CPA
Donald E. Harris, CPA Matthew T. Stiefvater, CPA
Anne M, Sheehan, CPA Sheila M. Lewis, CPA

S. Gall Moore, CPA
Jeremy W. Powel{, CPA
Renee L. Watson, CPA

INFORMATION INCLUDED WYTH THE AUDIT

COVER LETTER - The audit report is issued in draft for the Association to review. The cover letter
explains what information must be returned to our office before the audit report (and other letters) can
be finalized.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT - This is our report on the Association’s financial statements.
Once finalized, the Association may distribute this document, along with the audited financial
statements, notes to financial statements and any supplementary information in its entirety to
members, potential members, etc.

MANAGEMENT LETTER - The management letter is not a required communication under auditing
standards, but is a by-product of the audit, We generally issue a management letter o communicate
our comments and recommendations. Use of this letter is restricted to the board of directors and

management.

COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE,_CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE UNDER AU-C §260 - Tinder the
Clarified Statements of Auditing Standards AU-C §260 we are required to communicate audit matters
that, in our professional judgment, may be significant and relevant to those charged with governance
of the Association. Use of this letter is restricted to the board of directors and management.

COMMUNICATION OF SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES AND/OR MIATERIAL WEAKNESSES UNDER AU-C
§265 - Under the Clarified Statements of Auditing Standards AU-C §265, we are required to
communicate in writing any significant deficiencies and/or materjal weaknesses in the Association’s
mternal controls. Use of this lefter is restricted to the board of directors and management. Tf we did
not note any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses, no letter will be issued.

REPRESENTATION LETTER - The representation lefter is a letter from the Association to us
confirming that to the best of your knowledge and belief all information was provided or disclosed to
us. This letter needs to be signed by the President or Treasurer of the Association and the
management agent representative. The letter needs to be returned to our office before the audit can be

finalized.

ADJUSTED TR1AI, BALANCE AND ADJUSTING JOURNAL ENTRIES - These are the proposed audit
adjustments for the period under audit.

phone 703 391 goo3 fax 703 301 gooy www.GGroupCPAs.com



[

Goldklang§&Group

¥ CPAs PC
Principals 1301 Robert Fulton Drive, Suite 2c0 ’ Managers
Howard A, Goldkiang, CPA, MBA Reston, VA 20151 Alliscn A. Day, CPA
Donald E. Harrfs, CPA Matthew T. Stiefvater, CPA

Anne M. Sheehan, CPA Sheila M. Lewis, CPA

5. Gail Moore, CPA
leremy W. Powell, CPA
Renee L, Watsen, CPA

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors of
Council of Unit Owners of Diamond Farms Condominium T/A Potomac Oaks

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Council of Unit Owners of Diamond Farms
Condominium T/A Potomac Qaks, which comprise the balance sheets as of September 30, 2017 and
2016, and the related statements of income, members' equity and cash flows for the years then ended,

and the related notes to the fmangigl statements.

lltf for the Financial Statements
T % " .. 4
Management is responsible for the pr@pa:@tlénﬂﬁndmfay; presentation of thesg financial statements in

coepted in the United States of America; this

Management’s Kesponsibi

4 % LB

accordance with!accéunting: printiplés generally
. Vi .3 ¥ ¥ i . e :, i H B ] ki .
includes the design, implementation, gnd 1na1nten§ﬁce}i of:internal ¢ontrol relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation, offinancial statefnents, that ate, free from, thatérial misstatemeiit, whether due to

{raud or error.

Aunditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards gererally accepted in the United States of
America, Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control, Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation

of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our andit opinion.

phone 703 341 g003 fax 703 391 goo4 www.GGroupCPAs.com



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Council of Unit Owners of Diamond Farms Condominium T/A Potomac Oaks as of
September 30, 2017 and 2016, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then
ended in conformity with accounting principies generally accepted in the United States of America,

Emphasis of Matter Regarding Going Concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming the Association will continue
as a going concern. As discussed in Note 10 to the financial statements, the Association had a deficit
in unappropriated members' equity of $892,631 and a total members' equity deficit of $376,669.
Additionally, the Association does not have sufficient cash and cash equivalents to cover its liabilities
as of September 30, 2017. These conditions raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a
going concern. Management's plans regarding these matters are also described in Note 10. The
financial stalements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this
uncertainty. Our opinion on the financial statements is not modified with respect to this matter.

Disclaimer of Opinion on Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that information on
future major repairs and replacements on page 14 be presented fo supplement the basic financial
staternents. Such inforimgtiog; although not a part of the basic {inancial-statements, is required by the
Financial Accousiting Statidards, Board, who considers it o be an essential partof financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements_in-an appropriate operational,, €cobomic, or historical
context. We have applied certain; limited*progedutes'to ‘the ‘requited supplemetitity information in
accordance with: auditing standards gencrally accepted: in the Unitéd States’of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing
the information.for consistency with' management's responses to]our. inquiries; the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obfained during our atidit of the Hisic fnandial statements. We
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures

do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Reston, Virginia



COUNCIL OF UNIT OWNERS OF
DIAMOND FARMS CONDOMINIUM T/A POTOMAC OQAKS
BALANCE SHEETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 AND 2016

2017 2016
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 41,111 § 425284
Interest-Bearing Deposits 54,462
Assessments Receivable - Net 75,298
Special Assessments Receivable - Net 410
Accounts Recejvable - Other 11,465
Accrued Interest 34
Prepaid Expenses 20,868
Fuel Oil Inventory 22,670
Deferred Tax Asset 28,556
Property and Equipment + Net 39,352
i S, §
Total A%sets §5 aokmen & 678399
§ b ' i { i !
] TABTLITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY, =, -
Accounts Payable $ 599,851 & 979,025
Deferred Insurance Proceeds - 31,058
Prepaid Assessments 85,667 85,172
Deferred Marketing Support Proceeds 15,878 25,288
Total Liabilities $ 701,396 § 1,120,543
Replacement Reserves § 157,300 § 266,665
Operating Reserve 358,662 268,662
Unappropriated Members' Equity (Deficit) (892,631) (977,471)
Total Members' Equity (Deficit) § (376,669) & (442,144)
Total Liabilities
and Members' Equity $ 324,727 3 678,399

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
3



COUNCIL OF UNIT OWNERS OF

DIAMOND FARMS CONDOMINIUM T/A POTOMAC QAKS
STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 AND 2016

INCOME:

Assessments
Special Assessment

Interest

Late and Legal Fees

Laundry
Marketing

Support Proceeds

Deferred Tax Benefit
Bad Debt Recovery

Other
Tatal

Income

EXPENSES:

Audﬁ and
Legal '
Lnsurance

Tax Pleparatlon

Telephone

Postage and Printing
Administrative

Water and

Sewer

Grounds and Tree Maintenance
Trash Remaoval

Plambing

Swimming Pool

Boiler Maintenance

Painting

Repairs and Maintenance

Cleaning

Snow Removal
Depreciation

Bad Debt

Deferred Taxes
Nole Interest

Total

see Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements

Expenses

4

2017 2016

$ 4,180,791 § 4,187,977
245,244 -

804 1,370
70,706 51,280
39,718 41,400
9,410 9,410
- 2,872
. 6,265
21,310 18,746
$ 4,567,083 $ 4319320
$ 29460, § 29400
£15500 1 7550
66,8067 U 71,170
23,3001 § 179,478
4163870 1 485411
S500,4851 L _2477,745
TU335350 T 391,578
26,093 26,525
10,627 11,157
39,862 82,936
708,491 461,026
113,408 107,449
80,669 83,711
170,950 266,674
48,752 45,711
35,542 102,172
- 19,630
287,348 963,227
120,000 109,537
32,239 40,000
11,668 11,410
5,796 28,814
9,160 2,072

- 12,350
$ 3,293,143 $ 4,016,733




COUNCIL OF UNIT OWNERS OF
DIAMOND FARMS CONDOMINIUM T/A POTOMAC OAKS
STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 AND 2016

CONTINUED
2017 2016
Net Income before Contribution
to Reserves $ 1,274,840 § 302,587
Contribution to Reserves (1,190,000) (965,000)
Net Income {Loss) § 34,840 5§ (662,413)

Sec Accompanying Notes to Financial Staternents
5



COUNCIL OF UNIT QWNERS QF

DIAMOND FARMS CONDOMINIUM T/A POTOMAC QAKS

STATEMENTS OF MEMBERS' EQUITY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER. 30, 2017 AND 2016

Balance as of September 30, 2015

Addition;
Contribution to Reserves

Deductions:
Clubhouse
Building Repeirs
Lighting System
Recreation Facilities
Utility Lines
Snow Removal
Telephone =
MNet Loss

13

Balance as of Scp_ﬁcmbmﬁ 30, 201@

Additions: :
Coniribution t 'Rescr?gffa_s

Net Income™™

Deducticns:
Building Repairs
Parking Lot
Recreational
Utility Lines

Balance as of September 30, 2017

Unappropriated Total
Members' Members'
Replacement Operating Equity Equity
Reserves HReserve (Dreficit) (Deficit)
§ 97,839 £ 279,926 5 (315,058) b 62,707
850,000 75,000 965,000
{991} {991}
(287,452) (2874523
(32,592 (32,992)
(10,651} (10,651)
(389,088) {385,088)
{81,689) (81,689
{4,575} (4,575)
2T 662,413) (662,413)

-

TATY § (442,144)

£ 1,100,000 1,19€,000
B o 84,340
(825,471) (825,471)
(6,700) (6,700)
(23,509) (23,909)
(353,285) (353,285)

s 157,300 § 358,662 § (892,631) $  (376,669)

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements



COUNCIL OF UNIT QOWNERS OF

DIAMOND FARMS CONDOMINIUM T/A POTOMAC OAKS
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 AND 2016

2017 2016
CASH FLOWS FROM QPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net Income (Loss) $ 84,840 § (662,413)
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income (Loss)
to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Bad Debt Expense 5,796 22,549
Depreciation 11,668 11,410
Deferred Taxes 9,160 (800
Decrease (Increase) in:
Assessments Receivable {19,874) (28,975}
Accounts Receivable - Other 2,124 {4,565}
Accrued Interest . (34}
Prcpasd Expenses RPN . (L7.412) 4,807

Fuei Oi}”[‘nvantory & 37,295

Inc1adse (Decrease:) m
Accounts Payab[e [
Dafened Insurance Proceeds

(350 1‘53) 706,253
(31 058) 31,058

EPlBEJ&ldiA sgsqments Ao T N 495 380
Deferred Market Supportlnor Proceeds (9,410) (9,410}
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities $ (309,954) & 107,555
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:.
Received from Assessments (Reserves) $ 545000 § 965,000
Received from Special Assessments (Reserves) 219,791 -
Disbursed for Reserve Expenditures (1,238,386) (815,201)
Disbursed for Purchase of Equipment - (14,308)
Disbursed for Interest-Bearing Deposits (624) (619)
Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities $ (74,219 § 134,872
Net Changes in Cash and Cash Equivalents $ (384,173) § 242,427
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 425,284 182,857
Cash and Cash FEquivalents at End of Year $ 41111 § 425284
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSLURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash Paid for Income Taxes $ - $ 3,614

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
7



COUNCIL OF UNIT OWNERS QF
DIAMOND FARMS CONDOMINIUM T/A POTOMAC OAKS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 AND 2016

NOTE 1 - NATURE QF OPERATIONS:

The Condominium is an association organized under the laws of the State of
Maryland for the purposes of maintaining and preserving the common property of the
Condominium. The Association is located in Gaithersburg, Maryland and consists of 539
units. The Association’s Board of Directors administers the condominium operations.

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

A) Method of Accounting - The financial statements are presented on the accrual
method of accounting in which revenues are recognized when earned and expenses when
meurred, not necessarily when received or paid,

B) Member_Assessments - Associztion members are subject to assessments to
provide funds foi the Association's operating expenses, futurecapital acquisitions, and major
repairs and replacerhients. Assessments receivable at the balance shéet date represent fees
due fiom dnit awpers.', The Association's policy is fo assess iate anid interest charges and io
retain’ legal counsel and placesTiens o the propérties of dwners whose assessments ave
delinquent; Any excess assossments at yeaf-end are retained by the Association for use in

futwe years. The #Assotiation utilizes the allo%ance | ethod of accounting for bad debt,

" C) Common Property - Real propeity and common arcas acqiifed from the declarant
and related improvements to such property are not recorded in the Association's financial
statements because those properties are owned by the individual unit owners in common and
not by the Association. Common property includes, but is not limited to, the exterior
structures, mechanical equipment and recreational facilities.

D) Depreciation - The Association owns fixed assets, which were carried at cost.
Depreciation was computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the

assets,

E) Fuel Oil Inventory - The Association maintains a fuel oil inventory for heating
purposes. The Association uses the First-In First-Out method to value its fuel oil inventory.

F) Estimates - The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles, requires management to make estimates and assumptions.
Such estimates affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities. They also affect the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, at the date of the financial statements, and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates,



COUNCIL OF UNIT OWNERS OF
DIAMOND FARMS CONDOMINIUM T/A POTOMAC OAKS
NQTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30. 2017 AND 2016

(CONTINUED)

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (CONTINUED)

() Cash Equivalents - For purposes of the statemnent of cash flows, the Association
considers all highly liquid investments and interest-bearing deposits with an original maturity
of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

H) Reclassification - Certain amounts have been reclassified in the accompanying
2016 financial statements to conform to the 2017 presentation.

NOTE 3 - REPLACEMENT RESERVES:

The Association's governing documents require that funds be accumulated for future
major repairs and replacements. Accumulated funds are generally not available for

expenditiirgs for ndrhial operations. .

&

i

. PM+, The table

: During 2015 ,""’qae Associgtion has. 2 reserve sguély cf’t}ndgﬁfgd by,
d Replacements is

fi Future Major Repairs ;

S
H A

included it the supplementary ‘fnformatiorho

basedon this study. § ¢

H i

I

_’Fhesmgy récomryends, a contrbution, to “reserves of $1,041,930 and interest of
$13.610 ¥or Hscal year 2017, For fiscal year 201 7 the AFsociation Bidgeted to contribute
$855,000 to reserves. Additionally, the Association budgeted to contribution $245,000 in
special assessment income to replacement reserves.

o

Funds are being accumulated in replacement reserves based on estimates of future
needs for repair and replacement of common property COMpPONENts, Actual expenditures
may vary from the estimated future expenditures and the variations may be material;
therefore, amounts accumulated in the replacement reserves may or may not be adequate to
mest all future needs for major repairs and replacements. If additional funds are needed, the
Board of Directors, on behalf of the Association, may increase regular assessments, pass
special assessments, or delay major repairs and replacements until funds are available.

As of September 30, 2017 and 2016, the Association had designated $157,300 and
$266,665, respectively, for replacement reserves. These designated reserves were not fully
funded due to the deficit in unappropriated members’ equity.



COUNCIL OF UNIT OWNERS OF
DIAMOND FARMS CONDOMINIUM T/A POTOMAC OAKS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

NOTE 4 - INCOME TAXES:

For income tax purposes, the Association may elect anmally to file either as an
exempt condominium or as an association taxable as a corporation.  As an exempt
condominium, the Association's net assessment income would be exempt from income tax,
but its interest income would be taxed. Electing to file as a corporation, the Association is
taxed on its net income from all sources (to the exient not capitalized or deferred) at normal
corporate rates after corporate exemption, subject to the limitation that operating expenses
are deductible only to the extent of income from members. For fiscal years 2017 and 2016,
the income taxes were calculated using the corporate method which resulied in 1o income tax
liability.

The Association’s policy is to recognize any tax penalties and interest as an expense
when incurred. The Association’s federal and state tax returns for the past three years remain
subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service and the State of Maryland.

NOTE 5 - CASH AND INTEREST-BEARING DEPOSITS:

As;E of Sef‘ateml;;er 30, 2017, the As ="ciation mamtamed funds in the following

manner: :

) Cdshand Intercat«

[ lcash e S ..ﬂée‘aring e
Institution Equivalents Deposits
Petty Cash $ 1,000 5 -
Mutual of Omaha 40,111 55,086
Totals 3 41111 $ 55,086

Balances at banks are insured by the FDIC for up to $250,000 per financial
institution. Amounts in excess of the insured limits were $0 and $367,874 as of September
30,2017 and 2016, respectively.

NOTE 6 - ASSESSMENTS RECEIVABLIL - NET/SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS RECETV ABLE -
NET:

The Association utilizes the allowance method of accounting for bad debt. Individual
reccivables are written off as a loss when a determination is made that they are uncollectible.
Under the allowance method, collection efforts may continue, and recoveries of amounts
previousiy written off are recognized as income in the vear of collection.

10



COUNCIL OF UNIT OWNERS OQF
DIAMOND FARMS CONDOMINIUM T/A POTOMAC OAKS
NOTES TO FINANCIAT, STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED}

NOTE 6 - ASSESSMENTS RECEIVABLE - NET/SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS RECEIVABLE -
NET: (CONTINUED)

2017 2016
Assessments Receivable 3 318,958 3 330,304
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Assessments {227,226) (275,006)
Assessments Receivable - Net $ 91,732 $ 75298

2017 2016
Special Assessments Receivable $ 27716 5 2,729
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Special Assessments (4,453 (2,319)
Special Assessments Receivable - Net $ 23,263 3 410

NOTE 7 - PROBERFY: MTD EOUIPMBNT NET:
.'. i “'&, ”-':. H HE 4

F1xed assets are camed; at-cost. Depit:ma,ﬂon is computecf Dn«a stralght fine basis

over the est:mated useful lives® of five and"'ten years. The dcprematlon expense for fiscal

years! 2017 and 2{}16 was $11 668 and $1 41 'j!;respecnvely :

'
3

017 . 4L 20168
Truck $ 40,000 3 40,000
Snow Loader 24,600 24,600
Small Tools 12,319 | 12,319
Computer 6,033 6,033
Snow Tractor 21,147 21,147
Skid Blower 13,709 13,709
Snow Blowers 7 7,420 7,420
Fipes 65,888 6,888
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (104,432) (92,764)
Fixed Assets - Net $ 27.684 b 39,352

NOTE 8 - QPERATING RESERVE:

During fiscal year 2009, the Association transferred $283,240 from replacement

reserves to establish an operating reserve, The purpose of the operating reserve is to provide
additional funds for unforeseen operating expenses. The Association elected to contribute
$90,000 and $75,000, respectively, in fiscal year 2017 and 2016. As of September 30, 2017
and 2016, the Association designated $358,662 and $268,662, respectzvely, for the operating
reserve, This fund was not fully funded due to the deficit in unappropriated members’

equity.
11



COUNCIL OF UNIT OQOWNERS OF
DIAMOND FARMS CONDOMINIUM T/A POTOMAC OAKS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 AND 2016

(CONTINUED)

NOTE 9 - DEFERRED MARKETING SUPPORT PROCEEDS:

The Association signed a 10-year service agreement with Verizon for the term
October 2010 to September 2020. As part of the agreement, the Association received.
$40,200 as a marketing support fee. The marketing fee is being amortized over the life of the
agreement and has been recorded as deferred marketing support proceeds, During fiscal
years 2017 and 2016, $4,020 per year was recognized as income to the Association. As of
September 30, 2017 and 2016, $12,060 and $16,080, respectively, remained in deferred ‘
marketing support proceeds.

In addition, the Association signed a 5-year service agreement with Comeast for the
term May 2013 to April 2018. As part of the agreement, the Association received $26,950 as
a marketing support fee. The marketing fee is being amortized aver the life of the agreemernt
and has been recarded as deferred marketing support proceeds. During fiscal years 2017 and
2016555390 per-year was recognized as income to the Assogfition, As of September 30,
2017 énd 2:_'5016,‘"'$3,81;8 and $9,208, respectively, remained i;n:"defeg‘éfgl marketing support
proceeds. = e T e

g R L b

]

NOTE 10 - GOING CONCERN;

f September 30, 2017 the Association had a cumulative opérating deficit of
$892,631 and a total members’ equity deficit of $376,669. Additionally, the
Association had cash and interest-bearing deposits of $96,197 and total liabilities of
$701,396 as of September 30, 2017. Also, the Association had an assessments
receivable balance of 3$318,958 (before deducting the allowance for doubtful
assessments of $227,226). The Association and management are aware of the
Association’s financial situation and are in the process of developing a plan to improve
the Association’s financial position. To help fund the deficit, during fiscal year 2017,
the Association increased its annual assessments and passed a special assessment.
Management plans include delaying major expenditures until funds are available,
These conditicns raise substantial doubt about the Association’s ability to continee as a
going concern within one year after the date the financial statements are available to be
issued. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from
the outcome of this uncertainty. :

NOTE 11 - CHANGE IN MANAGEMENT:

Subsequent to year-end, the Association’s management agent merged. Effective
October 1, 2017, Zalco Realty becarne the new management company.
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COUNCIL OF UNIT OWNERS OF
DIAMOND FARMS CONDOMINIUM T/A POTOMAC OAKS
NOTES TO FINANCIAT, STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30,2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

NOTE 12 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:

In preparing these financial statements, the Association has evaluated events and
transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through [date to be inserted upon
finalization], the date the financial stalements were available to be issued.

Subsequent to fiscal year-end, the Association incurred replacement reserve
expenditures of approximately £104,376.

i\
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COUNCIL OF UNIT OWNERS QF
DIAMOND FARMS CONDOMINIUM T/A POTOMAC QAKS
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ON FUTURE
MAJOR REPAIRS AND REPLACEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(UNAUDITED)

The Association had an updated roplacement reserve study conducted by PM+ Reserves
during 2015 to estimate the remaining useful lives and the replacement costs of the components of
common property. Replacement costs were based on the estimated costs to repair or replace the
common property components at the date of the study. The cstimated replacement costs presented
below do not take into account the effects of inflation between the date of the study and the date the
components will require repair or replacement; however, the Association’s replacement reserve study
does take inflation into consideration when evaluating future expenditures and recommended
contributions to reserves,

The following has been extracted from the Association's 2016 replacement reserve study and
presenis significant information about the components of common property.

2015
Estimated

3015

: : Estifated

Replacement
_Component | 'j : Cost
Condoiminium Building ™ R 7 S e e LRy
Pavement/Asphalt 2-8 771,320
Tennis/Multi-Purpose Courts 5 50,000
Community Center 1-26 151,800
Swimming Pool 1-16 418,290
Maintenance Building 2-18 2,166,940
Other Property Features - 1-24 38,590
Anmal Allowances - 1 487,100

i4
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February 22, 2018

Boeard of Directors
Council of Unit Owners of Diamond Farms Condominium T/A Potomac Qaks

Dear Board Members:

Enclosed, please find the draft audit for Council of Unit Owners of Diamond Farms Condominium
T/A Potomac Oaks for the years ended September 31, 2017 and 2016,

s Please gign and date the enclosed representation letter. The letter should be signed by either
the President or Treasurer of the Association and the management agent representative. This
letter needs to be returned to our office before the audit can be finalized.

o Please send the Association’s most recent financial statements (which should include the
balance sheet and income statement) to our office with the signed representation letter. We
are requesting this information to comply with auditing standards.

e Please return the signed represeniation letter and most recent financial statements to
our office within 60 days from the date of this letter. This information can be mailed,
faxed or emailed to our office. Our email address is RLs@GGroupCPAs.com.

[f we do not receive the above information within 60 days from the date of this letter, we may need to
perform additional audit procedures to satisfy ourselves that no material events have occurred from
the date that we completed our audit fieldwork through the date that we receive the signed
representation letter. These additional procedures would include examining the bank statements,
minutes, financial statements, general ledger and would also include inquiries of management and the
board of directors. We will bill the Association for these additional audit procedures at our

hourly rates.

Please do not hesitate to contact us if there are any questions regarding the draft audit.
Sincerely,

Goldfilang Gueup CPUs, 7.C.

GOLDKLANG GROUP CPAs, P.C.

— @ G/f AL ,QD Fa/./‘ &@cbug % M%TL{) OL(&D'/(E?’

phone 703 351 9003 fax 703 391 goo4 www.GGroupCPAs.com



Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the Assaciation and its environment, including
internal control, sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and
to design the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures. Material misstatements may result
from (1) errors, (2} fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of
laws or governmental regulations that are aitributable to the Association or to acts by management or
employees acting on behalf of the Association. We will generally communicate our significant
findings at the conclusion of the audit However, some matters could be communicated SO0NET,
particularly if significant difficulties are encountered during the audit where assistance is needed to
overcome the difficulties or if the difficulties may lead to a modified opinion. We will also
communicate any internal control related matters that are required to be communicated under
professional standards.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies used by the Association are described in Note 2 to the financial
statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not
changed during the year. We noted no transactions entered into by the Association during the year
for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant {ransactions have
been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates:are én mitegral part of the financial statements prepared byfmanagement and are

based on managément’s knigwle'dgegq_@nd----g;gperignc;._a_tbglut.- past and current évents. and assumptions
about future events. Certain aceounting!-estimaled, are particilarly " sensitive” because of their
significance to the fihancial statéments and becatise of the ‘possibility that future events affecting
them may diffei significaritly from ‘those expectéd:” The Inost (sensitive! estimates affecting the

4

financial statements werer” .-
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Allowance for Doubtful Assessments

The Association’s estimate of the allowance for doubtful assessments was established by
reviewing the receivables for collectability. We evaluated key factors and assumptions used
to develop the allowance for doubtful assessments in determining that it is reasonable in
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Accumulated Depreciation and Depreciation Expense

The Association’s estimates of accumulated depreciation and depreciation expense were
established using the straight line method of depreciation whereby the cost of an asset is
amortized over its useful life. We evaluated key factors and assumptions used to develop the
accumulated depreciation and depreciation expense in determining that they are reasonable in
relation to the financial statements taken as a2 whole.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to
financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements were the

disclosures of subsequent events and the going concern.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

2



Difficuities Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing
our audit. '

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other

than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.
The adjusting journal entries have been provided to the Association and will be posted to the
Association’s accounts, if appropriate. The journal entries are material, either individually or in the

apgregate, to the financial statements.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during

the course of our audit,

Management Representations

We have requegied-certain yeprésentations from management that areincluded in the management

representation lef}ter. ;o

S

5

Management Consultations ﬁyfa‘h C?thefé* Indépendent dccountapts™ 1"

I i

¢ £ i H ; : iy i { § ?
In some cases, management miy decide to constlt’ with ‘other; accountints;about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to“dbtaining & “second o iffion”" on chrtefn sitiationsy If a consultation
involves application ‘6f ‘an accounting principle 6 the "Association's finaticial statements or a
determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the

consultent has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other
accountants,

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Association’s auditors.
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our
responses were not a condition to our retention.

Emphasis of Matter Regarding Going Concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming the Association will continue
2s a going concern. As discussed in Note 10 to the financial statements, the Association had a deficit
in unappropriated members' equity of $892,631 and a total members' equity deficit of $376,669.
Additionally, the Association does not have sufficient cash and cash equivalents to cover its liabilities
as of September 30, 2017. These conditions raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a
going concern. Management's plans regarding these matters are also described in Note 10. The

3



financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this
uncertainty. Our opinion on the financial statements is not modified with respect to this matter.

Reém’red Supplementary Information

With respect o the supplementary information requited by the Financial Accounting Standards
Board, we applied certain limited procedures to the information, including inquiring of management
about their methods of preparing the infermation; comparing the informstion for consistency with
management’s responses to the foregoing inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge obtained during the audit of the basic financial statements; and obtaining certain
representations from management, including about whether the required supplementary information
is measured and presented in accordance with prescribed guidelines,

Very truly yours,

GOLDKLANG GROUP CPAs, P.C.
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